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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
THE MEMBERS OF NIXA FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS XANDER
FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED) WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2025 AT 10.30 A.M.
(IST) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING/AUDIO-VISUAL ELECTRONIC
COMMUNICATION MEANS (“VC/AVEC”), TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

NOTICE

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 together with the Repoits of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

b) the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 together with the Repoit of the Auditors thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors

Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)
KSHAM A oigitally signed

by KSHANMA

PARAS  parassHaH

Date: 2025.08.25

S HAH 11:56:59 +05730°

Kshama Shah

Company Secretary

ICSI Membership No: ACS-42472
Date: August 20, 2025

Place: Mumbai
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Notes:

1.

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry Of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its
General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,
General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28,
2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated Jamuary 13, 2021, General Circular No. 19/2021 dated
December 08, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular No.
02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No.10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and General
Circular No.09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and General Circular No. 09/2024 on September 19, 2024
other applicable circulars, has permitted to hold the Annual General Meeting (“AGM / Meeting”) of
Members of the Company through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Audio-Visual Electronic
Communication means (“AVEC”) without the presence of the Members at a common venue. In due
compliance with the above MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being convened through
VC/AVEC.

The Members are requested to follow the below instructions: -
a) Participation:

i. Pursuant to the aforementioned general circulars, the physical presence of the Members has been
dispensed with and therefore the appointment of Proxy(ies) is/are not permitted. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), Members may
appoint representatives for the purpose of participation and voting in the meeting. The Corporate
Members proposing to paiticipate at the meeting through their representative(s), will be required
to forward the necessary authorization under Section 113 of the Act and such representation to
the Company should be communicated by sending an e-mail to Ms. Kshama Shah Company

Secretary at company_secretary(@nixafincap.com before the commencement of the Meeting,.

ii. Members participating through the VC/AVEC facility shall be reckoned for the pwpose of
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii. The Meeting of the Members will be held through VC/AVEC as per MCA circulars. The
Members are requested to use the Dial-in details as mentioned below to join the Meeting;

Weblink https://zoom.us/j/93935759242pwd=WIugalL eBP39kiRuhZFISHND1F SbQ7Y .1

Meeting 939 3575 9242
ID

Password 201024

For ease of participation of the Members, during the Meeting, Membe1s (including their representatives)
may post questions through typing in the “comment box”/ “chat box” in the above Dial-in. The Members

may also, submit any questions they may have through e-mail at company_secretary(@nixafincap.com
before the commencement of the Meeting.

On the date of the Meeting, the Members, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other persons
authorized to attend the meeting, may join, using above the Dial-in details from 10.15 a.m. (IST) to
10.30 a.m. (IST) post which, no person shall be able to join the meeting.

NIXA FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS “XANDER FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED)
2503 | 25" FLOOR ONE LODHA PLACE | SENAPATI BAPAT MARG | LOWER PAREL | MUMBAI 400 013.
CIN: U65921MH1997PTC258670 | +91 22 61196000 T | +91 22 6119 6080 F |info@nixafincap.com
WEBSITE: www.nixafincap.com



MNiXd

In case, any member requires assistance for using the aforementioned Dial-in before or during the
Meeting, you may t1each out to Ms. Kshama Shah, Company Secretary at
company_secretary(@nixafincap.com.

Voting;

a. In case a poll is demanded, Chairman shall follow the procedure provided in Section 109 of the Act,
and Rules made thereunder, in all other cases matter will be put to vote by way of a show of hands.

b. On demand of the poll, the Members may vote by sending an e-mail on the designated E-mail ID:
company_secretary@nixafincap.com stating their assent/ dissent.

Please note that the e-mail with the vote of a member should be sent only from the registered Email ID
of the member.

Other instructions/ information:
a. Members are requested to address all communications through their registered E-mail ID only.
b. The recorded transcript shall be maintained in safe custody of the Company.

c. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act read with Rules made thereunder, authorizations
for voting by body corporates and the Articles of Association of the Company will be available for
inspection by the Members through electronic mode. Also, the documents referred to in this Notice are
available electronically for inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation of
this Notice up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. Members seeking to inspect such registers/
documents can send an email to company_secretary(@nixafincap.com

d. The Audited Financial Statements (standalone & consolidated) of the Company for the Financial Year
ended on March 31, 2025, the Repoits of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon shall be sent to
the Members and to all other persons so entitled on their email IDs registered with the Company/
Registrar and Transfer Agents or with the Depository Participant(s).

e. Members who hold shares in physical form and have not registered / updated their Email addresses
with the Company, are requested to register / update the same by writing to the Company at
company_secretary@nixafincap.com stating details of folio number and attaching a self attested copy
of PAN card.

f. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode, who have not registered / updated their email
addresses with their Depository Participants, are requested to register / update their email addresses
with the Depository Paiticipants with whom they maintain their demat accounts.

g. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Ms. Kshama Shah, Company
Secretary at 022-61196000 or email her at company _secretary(@nixafincap.com
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By order of the Board of Directors
Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)

KSHAMA Dagitally vigned by

KSHAMA PARAS
PARAS SHAH
DAF:20250825

SHAH 120090 40530

Kshama Shah
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No: ACS-42472

Date: August 20, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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TWENTY-NINTH ANNUAL REPORT
FOR FINANCIAL YEAR: 2024-25

NIXA FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED (‘THE COMPANY")
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS XANDER FINNACE PRIVATE LIMITED)
(CIN: U65921IMH1997PTC258670)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Rohan Sikri

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Jogi

Mr. Tariq Chinoy

STATUTORY AUDITOR
M/s. C ] 8 Nanda & Associates, Chartered
Accountants

PRINCIPAL OFFICER
Mr. Tariq Chinoy

REGISTERED AND CORPORATE
OFFICE

2503, 25" Floor, One Lodha Place, Senapati
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013,
Tel No.: 022-61196000

Fax No.: 022-61196080

Email: info@nixafincap.com

DESIGNATED DIRECTOR
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Jogi

COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms. Kshama Shah {appointed w.e.f. 01.07.2025)
Ms. Mansi Gandhi (resigned w.e.f. 30.06.2025)

INTERNAL AUDITORS
M/s. Aneja Associates, Chartered Accountants

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT
MUFG Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,

Vikhroli (West),

Mumbai — 400 083.

Tel. No.: 022-49186270

Fax. No.:022-49186060

Email:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Twenty-Ninth Annual Report on the affairs of your
Company together with the annual audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

The highlights of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25

is as below :
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(T In Crores) (T In Crores)
Total Income 37.82 14.66
Total Expenditure 7.28 50.12
Profit before tax 30.54 (35.46)
Less: Provisien for taxation

- Current Tax - -
- Deferred Tax 6.58 (7.37)
- Earlier years adjustments - 1.43
Net Profit after tax 23.96 (29.51)

Earnings per share (Face Value ¥ 10/-)
-  Basic(In ) 2.13 (2.56)
- Diluted (In ?) 213 (2.56)

The highlights of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-

25 is as below:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(T In Crores) (¥ In Crores)

Total Income 50.14 15.44

Total Expenditure 16.43 50.16

Profit before tax 33.71 (34.72)

Less: Provision for taxation

- Current Tax 0.80- 0.19

- Deferred Tax 6.58 (7.37)

- Earlier years adjustments - 1.44

Net Profit after tax 26.33 (28.98)
Earnings per share (Face Value T 10/-)

- Basic (In T) 2.34 (2.51)

- Diluted (In 3) 2.3 (2.51)
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2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND COMPANY'’S STATE OF AFFAIRS:

Founded in 2010, Xander Finance Private Limited was established with a focus on real estate
lending across multiple asset classes. W.e.f. February 7, 2025, change in name of the Company
from Xander Finance Private Limited to Nixa Fincap Private Limited (NFPL) was done, post
approval from RBI and ROC. To capture the expanding private credit market, the Company is now
developing an advanced Credit Advisory/ Investment/ Lending platform. The Company made
three new disbursements during the year aggregating to INR 92 crores. The Company along with
its subsidiary Nixa Ventures Private Limited {(formerly known as “Balestier Ventures Private
Limited”) executed multiple advisory mandates and earned an advisory income of INR 21.72
crores during the year.

Simuitaneously, the Company continues to maintain a heaithy asset book backed by adequate
security/hard collateral and continues to implement robust control and checks over its security
including cash-flow being generated from its borrowers.

The revenue of your Company increased from ¥14.66 crores in financial year 2023-24 to ¥37.82
crores in the financial year 2024-25, increase of 158.08 % over the previous financial year. The Net
Profit after tax of the Company for the Financial year 2024-25 was ¥23.96 crores as against a Net
Loss after tax for the Financial year 2023-24 of #29.51 crores. The total credit exposure as on
March 31, 2025 was %120.69 crores comprising of ¥26.69 crores classified under loans and
advances and ¥94.00 crores classified under Investmenis in bonds.

Continuing to maintain a prudent provisioning policy for loan assets, the Company is carrying
Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL”) provision of 12.85 crores as on March 31, 2025 which is in excess
of the minimum regulatory requirement for standard asset provisioning of 0.40% as stipulated by
the Reserve Bank of India (*RBI’) pursuant to applicabie regulations in this regard for the financial
vear 2024-25. Your Company has maintained sufficient liquidity in form of fixed deposits with
Banks; well managed its Asset Liability Management (*ALM’) profile and maintained its
conservative underwriting practices.

Your Company has continued to maintain its prudent practices towards real estate and corporate
lending. It has adopted stringent asset recovery measures. The gross NPA was 22.11% and net
NPA was [3.18% as on March 31, 2025 as compared to the 100% gross NPA and 100% of net
NPA, respectively, in previous year ended as on March 31, 2024

The Company intends to leverage its expertise and graduvally start increasing its AUM with fresh
disbursals targeting deals with solid security structures and opportunities in debt-syndication,
advisory and asset management in relation to lending. With continued and sustained support from
management, pedigree of the Board, and a very strong and experienced team of professionals, the
Company is well poised to enter the next phase of its growth cycle as per the planned approach.
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During the year under review, ¥ 4.79 crores has been transferred to Statutory Reserves as required
under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

4. CHANGE IN NAME OF THE COMPANY:

The Company had changed its name from ‘Xander Finance Private Limited’ to ‘Nixa Fincap
Private Limited’ at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on January 10, 2025.

The fresh certificate of incorporation pursuant to change name of the Company was granted by
Registrar of Companies (‘ROC’), Mumbai on February 07, 2025.

5. CHANGE OF REGISTERED ADDRESS:

The Company has changed its place of business from 101, 5 North Avenue, Maker Maxity, Bandra
Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai- 400051 to 2503, 25™ Floor, One Lodha Place, Senapati
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013 with effect from September 11, 2024,

6. CAPITAL ADEQUACY:

Your Company has maintained a healthy capital adequacy ratio at well above the levels directed by
RBI. As on March 31, 2025, the overall capital adequacy ratio of your Company was 103.92%
(171.16% as on March 31, 2024). Your Company aims to maintain adequate capital cushion over
and above the regulatory requirements.

7. DIVIDEND:

The company has decided not to declare a dividend for the current financial year to retain earnings
and strengthen its financial position for future growth and expansion.

8. NON - DEPOSIT ACCEPTING NBFC:

Your Company being a base layer NBFC having customer interface has not accepied any deposits
from public and shall not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval
from the RBI. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements under Rule 8(5)(v) and {vi) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

9. RESERVE BANK OF INDIA (‘RBI’) REGULATIONS — COMPLIANCE:

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has complied with all regulations and guidelines of the RBI,
as are applicable to it as a Base Layer Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company.

NIXA FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED
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10. ASSET - LIABILITY MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL LEVERAGE:

Your Company has a well-defined Asset/Liability Management Policy (*ALM’} policy to address
the risk of mismatch between assets and liabilities. Your Company’s Asset-Liability Committee
(FALCO’) is set up in line with the guidelines issued by RBI. It monitors asset-liability mismatches
to ensure that there are no imbalances or excessive concentrations on either side of the Balance
Sheet.

Your Company follows a conservative and prudent cash flow management policy.

Your Company recognises the risk of funding long term projects with short term tenor funds and
thus has not borrowed any short-term funds. Your Company has a well-managed ALM profile and
has averted the possibility of a liquidity squeeze in its business operations. The Company has no
borrowings and debt outstanding as on March 31, 2025,

Your Company has never defaulted on its liabilities and has timely serviced its dues on respective
due dates. No liquidity risks were foreseen and the surplus funds of the Company were parked in
fixed deposits with the banks and liquid debt schemes of Mutual Funds. The Company has adopted
a sound liquidity risk management framework which involves detailed analysis and estimation of
the cash inflows and outflows over various time buckets.

11. DEBT SOURCING

In continuation with its business strategy, your Company has deleveraged its liabilities and has not
raised any fresh debt capital during the financial year 2024-25. The Company does not hold any
debt as on March 31, 2025.

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company, being a Non- Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve Bank of
India and engaged in the business of giving loans, is exempt from complying with the provisions of
section [86 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans and guarantees. Accordingly, the
disclosures of the loans given, as required under the aforesaid section, have not been made in this
Report.

Information regarding investments covered under the provisions of section 186(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is provided in the financial statements.

13. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In terms of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has prepared consolidated
financial statements of the Company consolidating its wholly owned subsidiary company ‘Nixa
Ventures Private Limited’ (formerly known as Balestier Ventures Private Limited).

NIXA FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company shall be placed before the ensuing 29
Annual General Meeting of the Company along with the standalone financial statements of the
Company.

The salient features of the said subsidiary company are given in Form AOC-1 annexed to this
Directors’ report as *Annexure I’ as required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

14. PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES /
JOINT VENTURES:

Your Company has 1 (one) unlisted wholly owned subsidiary, Nixa Ventures Private Limited
(“NVPL") (formerly known as ‘Balestier Ventures Private Limited’). Your Company does not
have any joint venture(s) / associate company(ies) within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

During the year under review, your Company has not further infused any amount in the equity
share capital of NVPL. No loan has been granted by your Company to NVPL during the year under
review,

The principal activity of NVPL is advisory and consultancy business. NVPL has
commenced business operations during the year under review. The total income of NVPL
for the Financial Year was Z12.32 crores. The Net Profit after tax for the year was 22.37 crores,

15. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.,
16. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in
‘Annexure — II* forming part of this Annual Report.

17. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME:

Your Company has formulated and implemented ‘Xander Finance Employee Incentive Scheme
2016’ (the '‘Scheme') with an intent to reward the employees of the Company for their performance
and to motivate them to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company. The Company
also intends to use this scheme to retain talent with the Company.

The said Scheme of the Company is implemented and administered by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

Disclosure with respect to the said Scheme in terms of Section 62 of the Act read with Rule 12(9)
of the Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, have been provided at ‘Annexure
111 to this Directors’ report for finaneial year ended on March 31, 20745
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18.

19.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

A. Appointment and cessation of Director(s):

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board for any appointment of
Directers and Key Managerial Personnel of your Company. The Committee considers the
qualification, fit and proper status, positive attributes as per the suitability of the role and other skill
sets as may be required from the candidate before such appointment.

After the Financial Year under review, there were no changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

B. Director(s) Disclosures:

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, circular(s)/ notification(s)/direction(s} issued by the RBI and other applicable laws, none of
your Directors on the Board of the Company are disqualified for appointment as Directors. The
Company is not required to appoint independent Directors under the provisions of the Act and
hence statement on declaration under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable,

DETAILS OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:
The dates of Board and Committee Meetings held during the financial year indicating the number
of Board and Committee Meetings attended by each director is mentioned in

‘Annexure IV’ of this Directors” report. Details of sub-committees of the Board during the
financial year 2024-25 are as below:

a. Audit Committee;

In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, following is the constitution of the Audit
Committee:

Name of member Designation
Rajesh Jogi Chairman
Rohan Sikri Member
Tariq Chinoy Member

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, following is the constitution of the
Nomination and Remuneration committee:

Name of member Designation
Rohan Sikri Chairman
Rajesh Jogi Member
Tariq Chinoy Member

NIXA FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED
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In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, following is the constitution of the Corporate
Social Responsibility committee:

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Commitiee:

Name of member Designation
Rohan Sikri Member
Tariq Chinoy Member
Rajesh Jogi Member

d. Asset-Liability Management Committee:

Your Company has ecnstituted an Asset Liability Management Committee (*ALCO’) which is
primarily responsible for liquidity risk management; interest rate risk management; credit risk
management and other operational risks. The ALCO is responsible for funding and capital
planning; determination of the business strategy of the Company in line with the financial budget
approved by the Board and forecasting and analyzing of risks and preparation of various
contingency plans, The ALCO meets on a quarterly basis and assesses the macro-economic factors
and global developments which may have an influence on the business operations of the
Company, fund flow status, determination of product pricing for loans and advances, liquidity
management and performance of the Company against the budgeted figures.

Following is the present constitution of the ALCO:

Name of the Member Designation
Tariq Chinoy Chairman
Privanka Khanna Member
Srinivasan J Member
Dipak Agarwal Member

e. Information Technology (‘I'T") Strategy Committee:

Pursuant to Master Direction on Information Technology Framework for the NBFC sector issued
by RBI on June 8, 2017, your Company has constituted an IT Strategy committee at the meeting
of the Board of Directors held on June 19, 2018. The 1T Strategy Committee is responsible for
monitoring and implementation of IT security and controls as provided in the above-mentioned
RBI framework. The IT Strategy committee of the Company was reconstituted by the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on June 23, 2025, Following is the present
constitution of the IT Strategy committee:

Name of the Member Designation
Tariq Chinoy Chairman
Priyanka Khanna Member
Kshama Shah Member
Sachin Sawant Member
Rattish Sekhar Member
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20. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY INSTITUTE OF

COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (‘ICSI) ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS:

Your Company has complied with the Secretariai Standards issued by ‘The Institute of Company
Secretaties of India” on Board Meetings (‘$S5-1) and General Meetings (*$S-2°).

21. COMPANY POLICIES:
a) Whistle Blower policy / Vigil Mechanism:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, your Company has in place a Whistle
Blower policy which provides for a vigil mechanism that encourages and supports its Directors and
employees to report instances of illegal activities, unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Code of Business Ethics. It alse provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use this mechanism.

Your Company has constituted a Vigilance and Ethics committee who shall be responsible for
receiving protected disclosures from whistle blowers, maintaining records thereof and placing
the same before the Audit Committee for its disposal.

The Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism is available on your Company’s website ie
https://nixafincap.com

b} Nomination and Remuneration policy:

The Board of Directors of your Company have approved a Nomination and Remuneration policy
which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management of the Company. The policy also lays down criteria for selection and
appointment of Board Members and Key Managerial personnel. In terms of section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors has laid down the
performance evaluation and assessment criteria/parameters for the Board (including Board
Committees} and individual Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration policy is available on your Company’s website ie
https://nixafincap.com

¢) Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace policy:

Your Company is committed to create an environment in which all individuals are treated with
respect and dignity and promote a gender sensitive safe work environment. As required by the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, the
Company has formulated a Prevention of Sexuval Harassment at workplace policy.
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Your Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee pursuant to the provisions of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.
Your Company has appointed Ms. Anagha Sapotdar as the external person from non-governmental
organisation in the Internal Complaints Committee.

During the year under review, no complaints related to sexual harassment had been received by the
Internal Complaints Committee,

d) Risk Management policy:

Your Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks
associated with the business of the Company. Major risks identified by the business and functions,
if any, are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Board of
Directors of your Company have adopted a Risk Management framework which shall manage,
mitigate and attempt to build an estimate of the various components of risk that exist at any point
in time.

Your Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee (*RMC’) which is responsible for
review of risk management practices covering credit risk, operational risk, market risk and
integrated risk. The Risk Management Committee comprises of Mr. Rajesh Jogi (Chatrman), Mr.
Rohan Sikri (Member), and Mr. Tariq Chinoy (Member).

The Risk Management Committee of the Company has not identified any elements of risk which in
their opinion, may threaten the existence of your Company.

€) Know Your Customer policy and Anti-Money Laundering measures:

Your Company in the ordinary course of business grants loans to various borrowers. The Company
is required to abide by the extant regulatory and statutory norms relating to Know Your Customer
and Anti-money Laundering measures laid down by RBI,

Your Company has in place 2 Board approved Know Your Customer policy and Anti-Money
Laundering measures that enables the Company to know and understand its customers and their
respective financial dealings better which in turn will help to manage its risks prudently.

f} Fair Practice Code:

Your Company has in place a Fair Practice Code, which includes guidelines on the terms and
conditions relating to receipt of loan applications from the prospective borrowers and processing
thereof, sanction, monitoring, recovery of loans and grievance redressal mechanism in case any
dispute arises between the Company and its borrowers.

g) Policy on Related Party Transaction:

Your Company adopted a Policy on Related Party Transaction which defines materiality of related
party transactions and manner of dealing with related party transactions and ensure proper approval
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and reporting of related party transactions between the Company and its related parties. During the
year under review, your Company had entered into related party transactions on arms-length basis
and under ordinary course of business.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (‘CSR’):

Your Company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR’) policy, as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
as amended, which, inter-alia, lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially
useful projects for welfare and sustainable development of the community at large.

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its duty towards the community and society at large by identifying the
activities and programmes that can be undertaken by the Company, in terms of the CSR policy of
the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any contribution towards Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) activities, as the profit earned in the preceding financial year was
below the threshold prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Consequenlly, the
requirement to incur CSR expenditure was not applicable for the year.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the year under review, your Company entered into related party transactions in the ordinary
course of business and at arm’s length basis that were duly approved by the Audit committee and
the Board, These transactions are not covered within the purview of Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and further, the Company had no material contracts or arrangement or
transactions at arm’s length basis during the period under review. Therefore, the requirement of
disclosure of related party transactions in terms of Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013
in Form AOC -2 is not applicable to the Company.

All Related Party Transactions as required under Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS-24") are
reported in notes to financial statements.

24. AUDITORS:

In terms of Section 139, 141 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. C J
S Nanda & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN No. 010912N) were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the ensuing 28th Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 31 Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year
2026-27.

25. COMMENTS ON THE QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK
OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITORS:
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Your Directors state that there are no adverse qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or
disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors on the financial statements for financial year 2024-235,

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the
Board.

26. INTERNAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, M/s. Aneja
Associates, Chartered Accountants were reappointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the
financial Year 2024 -23,

27. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

The Company is not required to maintain cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

28. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2025 is as mentioned below:

A, Conservation of Energy:

The Company is not a manufacturing Company; however, energy conservation continues to
receive priority attention at all levels. All efforts are made to conserve and optimise energy.

B. Technology Absorption:

In its endeavour to deliver the best to its clients, your Company is constantly active in hamessing
and tapping the latest and best technology in the industry. Since the Company is not invelved in the
manufacturing of any product, the benefits derived are not quantifiable. Also, no technology has
been developed and/or imported by way of foreign collaboration nor has the company incurred any
expense on Research and Development.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo:

During the year under review, your Company did not have any foreign exchange earnings
{Previous year: Nil) and incurred foreign currency expenditure of 20.07 crore (Previous year: Z0.07
crore).

29. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:

No orders have been passed against your Company by any regulator(s) or courts or tribunals which
would impact the going concem status and / or the future operations of your Company.
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30. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

The Company has bought back of 1,57,89,474 no. of fully paid up equity shares of face value of
INR 10/~ each at INR 28.50 /- per equity shares on May 13, 2025, The paid up share capital of the
Company has reduced from 11,23,35916 no. of fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10/- each
amounting to Rs.112,33,59,160/- to 9,65,46,442 no. of fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10/- each
amounting to 96,54,64,420/-.

The Company has made an application to National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
(NCLT) on July 07, 2025 to reduce the present issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital
of the Company comprising of 9,65,46,442 equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each amounting to Z
96,54,64,420/- to 5,26,86,792 equity shares of T 10/- each amounting to ¥ 52,68,67,920 by
cancelling and extinguishing, in aggregate upto 4,38,59,650 equity shares having face value of ¥
10/- each, for a price at T 28.50/- each for a consideration aggregating upto ¥ 1,25,00,00,025/- ie.,
45.43% of the total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

The above matter has been approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on June 09,2025 and Beard of Directors at its meeting held on June 04,
2025.

The NCLT has passed its order for first hearing on August 07, 2025 and the final hearing is
scheduled on November 27, 2025,

31. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
As per Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors confimm:

i. that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

ii. that the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
Company for that period.

iii. that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv. that the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v. the directors, had laid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi. that the dircctors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicabte laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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32. INTERNAL CONTROL / INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY:

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained
by us, and relying on the Reports of Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors of the Company for
the financial year 2024-25, vour Directors are of the view that the internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements of the Company were adequate and operating efficiently and
further confirm that;

i. the Company has comprehensive internal control systems that are commensurate with the size
and nature of its business;

ii. the Company has laid down standards, processes and structures which enable implementation of
internal financial controls across the organisation and ensure that the same are adequate and
operating effectively;

iii. the systems are designed in a manner to provide reasonable assurance about the integrity and
reliability of the financial statements;

iv. the Company adopts prudent lending policies and exercises due diligence to safeguard its loan
asset portfolio; and

v. the loan approval process involves origination and sourcing of business, credit appraisal and
credit approval in accordance with approved Policy.

33. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No applications are made by the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31
of 2016) during the year and no proceedings for the same are pending against the Company.

34. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH
THE REASONS THEREOF:

Not applicable. The Company has not made any one-time settlement amount to Banks and
Financial Institutions.
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Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, the Annual Return as
on March 31, 2025 will be available on the website of the Company at https:/nixafincap.com

35. ANNUAL RETURN:

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their appreciation to all stakeholders of the
Company including the Reserve Bank of India, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and other
Regulatory Authorities, Members, Customers and Employees of the Company for their continued
support and trust. The Directors are grateful for the support extended by them and look forward to
receiving their continued support and encouragement. The Directors also wish to thank the bankers
and other financial institutions of the Company for their continued support.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)

ipN

-~
Tariq Chinoy
Director Director
DIN: 03341036 DIN: 08830666

Date: August 20, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE I TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/jeint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in %)

Sl No. Particulars Details
g Nixa Ventures Private Limited (formerly
L, Name of the subsidiary known as Balestier Ventures Private Limited)
Reporting period for the subsidiary ; . .
2. concerned, if different from the holding ggg? reporting period ending as at March 31,
company’s reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as
3. on the last date of the relevant Financial | Not applicable
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
4. Share capital (authorised and paid up) 3 12,00,00,000/-
5. Reserves & surplus ¥ 3,15,55,132/-
6. Total assets % 15,58,04,056/-
7. Total Liabilities ¥ 15,58.04.056/-
8, Investments Nil
9, Tumover Nil
10. Profit before taxation ¥3.17,10,763/-
11. Provision for taxation ¥ 79,80,000 /-
12. Profit after taxation ¥2.37.30,763/-
13, Proposed Dividend Nil
14, % of shareholding 100%
Notes:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- Nil

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Nixa Fincap Private Limited
Q:rmerl_\; known as Xander Finance Private Limited)

(
—
B Tk
Rajesh Jogi Tariq Chinoy

Director Director
DIN: 03341036 DIN: 08830666

Date: August 20, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE II TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDIAN ECONOMY

Despite three turbulent years which witnessed a global pandemic, supply chain disruptions, conflict in
Ukraine, and elevated interest rates to counter high inflation, India emerged as the fastest growing major
economy of the world. Notwithstanding conflicts in Europe and Gaza and rising tensions in West Asia, a
global recession that experts thought was imminent has not occurred. Indeed, the key indicatois have
turned positive: inflation is falling across all major countries; unemployment has not risen as economists
thought it would; and the major central banks have put an end to monetary tightening, though they have not
yet begun reducing their key interest rates.

According to the IMF’s World Economic Outlook (April 2023), inflation is falling faster than expected in
most regions; and it has forecasted global headline inflation to fall to 4.2% in 2025 and further to 3.6% in

2026.

In a milieu where the IMF has projected the world’s real GDP growth at 3.0% in 2025 and 3.1% in 2026,
its forecasts for India are impressive: 6.3% in 2025 followed by yet another stint of 6.3% in 2026. Indeed,
the IMF has placed India as the fastest growing major ¢conomy in the world.

India’s economic outlook for 2025 and 2026 remains one of the brightest among major global economies,
as highlighted by the IMF. Despite global uncertainties and downward revisions in growth forecasts for
other large economies, India is set to maintain its leadership in global economic growth. Supported by
strong fundamentals and strategic government initiatives, the country is well-positioned to navigate the
challenges ahead. With reforms in infrastructure, innovation, and financial inclusion, India continues to
enhance its role as a key driver of global economic activity. The IMF’s projections reaffirm India’s
resilience, further solidifying its importance in shaping the global economic future,

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Non-Banking Finance ({NBFC’) sector

Non-Banking Financial Companies (“NBFC”) a key pillar of the Indian financial ecosystem, along with
public sector banks, private banks and financial institutions — forms one of the four broad constituents of
the credit ecosystem of the Indian financial sector. They serve as an alternative channel of credit flow to
the commercial sector, cater to diverse financial needs of millions of small firms as well as individuals.
NBFCs have a competitive edge in their superior understanding of regional dynamics, well-developed
collection systems and personalised services in the drive to expand financial inclusion in India. Lower
transaction costs, quick decision making, customer orientation and prompt provision of services have
typically differentiated NBFCs from banks. The reach and last mile advantages of NBFCs have
empowered them with agility, innovation and a cutting edge in providing formal financial services to
underbanked and unserved sections of the society.

The credit gruwil of NBFCs which has rended above Tndia’s GDP growth historically, is expected to
continue to rise at a faster pace. NBFCs have shown remarkable resilience and gained importance in the
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financial sector ecosystem, reaching Rs. 412,000,000 lakhs at the end of Fiscal 2024, During fiscals 2019

to 2024, NBFC credit is estimated to have witnessed a growth at CAGR ~11%. Rapid revival in the
economy is expected to drive consumer demand in Fiscal 2025, leading to healthy growth in NBFCs.

The NBFC sector is an important stakeholder of the Indian financial sector. Strengthened regulation and
enhanced oversight are in place to further strengthen the resilience of this key sector. NBFCs with superior
capital adequacy, better margins, frugal cost and prudent risk management, and those incorporating above
four key comerstones in their business models will continue to deliver susminable growth in the
foreseeable future

COMPANY INFORMATION

Established in 2010 by The Xander Group under license from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Nixa
Fincap Private Limited (NFPL' or ‘Company") (formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited) is
registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’} as a Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial
Company vide NBFC registration no. B-13.02083. Further, as per the Master Direction-Reserve Bank of
India (Non-Banking Financial Company-Scale Based Regulation), Directions, 2023 dated October 19,
2023, NFPL is being classified as Base layer NBFC having customer interface and not availing public
funds. Innovative in approach and nimble in execution, NFPL is an industry player in providing end to end
credit solutions including advisory services, deal structuring, financing across a range of industries
including real estate, logistics, education, infrastructure, retail & entertainment etc. NFPL is headquartered
in Mumbai with offices in Delhi.

Proprietary origination, innovative structuring and adopting & solution-based approach with active
monitoring, NFPL is led by real estate, finance and legal professionals with substantial experience, and is
engaged in providing a range of credit solutions to companies in situations constrained for conventional
funding. The Company has aligned its product offering to be situational - funding acquisitions and growth,
providing capital to exit private debt and consolidate promoter holding, and growth capital to credible
business groups as needed, to accelerate growth trajectories.

NFPL is focused on deals with first and exclusive charge on the underlying, ensuring a tight security
structure including personal and corporate guarantees, control on project cashflows through escrow, first
mortgage on land/ asset, hypothecation of receivables, majority share pledge, etc.

Range of products include;

¢  Acquisition Finance

o  Promoter Loan & Growth Capital

e Construction Finance

¢ Working Capital Loans

s Loans for Capital Expenditure

* Inventory Funding

e Refinance Transactions

e Loan against Property (Collateral backed)
s Exh of Privare Equity Investors

e Corporate Advisory
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Special Situations Management
Debt syndication

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

During the Financial Year 2024-25; your Company intends to enhance its business performance through
the following initiatives:

a)

b}

Focus on monetizing and then gradually increasing the Asset Under Management (‘AUM") of
the Company:

The AUM as it stands today is a result of a calibrated, account-wise strategy adopted by the
Company over the period to achieve the agreed objective and has thus resulted in large
realizations, utilized to pay down borrowings. The Company intends to start increasing its AUM
with fresh disbursals targeting deals with solid security structures and opportunities in debt-
syndication, advisory and asset management in relation to lending.

Continue to focus on asset liability management:

Your Company follows prudent practices of asset liability management (‘ALM’). The Company
does not have any outstanding debt. Your Company has a well-matched ALM profile and has
never borrowed any short-term funds for deploying into long term assets. Your Company shall
continue to maintain its prudent ALM profile.

To achieve better return on equity:

Your Company shall take measures to reduce unessential operating expenses which in turn shall
help the Company to control its overall costs. Your Company shall endeavour to increase its profits
by generating revenue by undertaking advisory services, deal structuring including syndication,
financing etc.

Opportunities & Threats

Our key challenge is that our competitors, i.e. standalone NBFCs and / or private credit funds have
significantly more regulatory flexibility on what they can do. Despite your company’s impeccable credit
track record, regulatory restrictions on us to undertake certain type of financing e.g. loans against shares or
financing limits our ability to play in that segment. With your company largely competing in the space
where banks are also present, our margins may come under pressure. Capital market (largely investment in
IPOs) segment continues to be volatile and it always difficult to predict revenue from there, though the
early signs seems positive for FY26. We continue to explore new avenues to achieve our growth targets,
while treading carefully at the same time.
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The Company has a sound credit appraisal system in place and is positioned as one of the most
conservative lenders in the Indian market in its target segment. In addition to internal credit assessment,
reputed professional agencies are appointed to conduct a thorough due diligence to understand and mitigate
the risks before making any credit decision.

Risk Management

The Company adopts prudent risk management policies like Know Your Customer (KYC), Anti-Money
Laundering Policy, Credit Policy, Risk Management Policy, Interest Rate Policy and Fair Practice Code
and has multiple committees in place such as Risk Management Committee, Credit Committee, ALCO and
Audit Committee to ensure consistent risk mitigation and value creation.

The Company has a separate asset management team in place that independently monitors all the assets on
a continuous basis. This team communicates regularly with the management of the borrowers and the
Company’s credit team to ensure that any deviations from the contractual terms are highlighted well in
advance.

Internal Control Systems:

The Company maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide a high degree of assurance
regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards of its assets, reliability
of financial controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Company ensures
adherence with all internal control policies and procedures as well as compliance with all regulatory
guidelines. All the internal and regulatory compliance as well as significant audit observations of the
Internal Auditors are reviewed and discussed by the Audit Committee.

Discussion of financial performance

Following chart summarizes the operating history of the Company:

Credit Exposure, Revenue and PAT
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The Company made three new disbursements during the year aggregating to 92 crores. The total credit
exposure as on March 31, 2025 was 2120.69 crores comprising of ¥26.69 crores classified under loans and
advances and ¥94.00 crores classified under Investments in bonds.

Financial performance during FY 2024-25:

Your Company has continued to maintain its prudent practices towards real estate and corporate lending. It
has adopted stringent asset recovery measures., The gross NPA was 22.11% and net NPA was 13.18% as
on March 31, 2025 as compared to 100% of gross NPA and 100% of net NPA as on March 31, 2024.

The revenue of your Company increased from 14.66 crores in financial year 2023-24 to ¥37.82 crores in
the financial year 2024-25, increase of 158.08 % over the previous financial year. The Net Profit after tax
of the Company for the Financial vear 2024-25 was ¥23.96 crores as against a Net Loss after tax for the
Financial year 2023-24 of 29.51 crores.

The borrowings of the Company stood NIL as on March 31, 2025

Particulars (Z in crores) FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Total Revenue 37.82 14.66
Profit after tax 23.96 (29.51)
Credit Exposure 120.69 3243
Borrowings Nil Nil
Net Worth 316.03 291.74
Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio 103.92% 171.16.%
Debt Equity Ratio Nil Nil
Gross NPA/Total advances 22.11% 100%
Net NPA/Total advances 13.18% 100%
NIM 3.6% 2.1%
ROA 7.7% (8.4%)
ROE 7.9% (8.6%)

Figures jfor the previous year have been regrouped, rearranged or reclassified, where necessary to confirm
to the current year's classification.

Human Resource Management

The Company believes that its human resources have the capability and expertise to meet challenging
needs of the marketplace. The Company continues to undertake several initiatives in this financial year
which include enhancement of staff benefits through comprehensive health care and life cover programmes
across all levels.

The Company’s pay-for-performance philosophy promotes a strong culture of performance. The Company
is respensible for monitoring and implementation of ethical practices and policies at workplace. The
Company has put in place policies that are designed to ensure a heahthy and safe workplace, free from
discrimination where employees can raise complaints without fear. It does not discriminate on grounds of
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NixXa

age, gender, colour, ethnicity, language, sexual orientation, caste, economic or social status or special
ability, As on March 31, 2025, the Company had 11 employees on its rolls.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)

Tariq Chinoy
Director
DIN: 03341036 DIN: 08830666

Date: August 20, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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NixXa

ANNEXURE HI TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Disclosure under Xander Finance Employee Incentive Scheme 2016 (the 'Scheme’) pursuant
to the provisions of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025:

Particulars Disclosure as per the Xander
Finance Employee Incentive
Scheme 2016
(the 'Scheme")
Total number of options in force as on April 1, 2024 1,63,178
Number of options granted during financial year 2024-25 Nii
Number of options vested during financial year 2024-25 Nil
Number of options exercised during financial year 2024-25 Nil
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of Nil
options during financial year 2024-25 (refer note below)
Number of options lapsed / cancelled during financial year Nil
2024-25
Exercise Price 21
Variation of terms of options Nil
Money realised by the exercise of options during financial Nil
year 2024-25
Total number of options in force as on March 31, 2025 1,63,178

Details of options granted to Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) under the Xander Finance
Employee Incentive Scheme 2016 during financial year 2024-25:

No Options were granted during the financial year 2024-25.

Details of employees who received a grant of options in any one year of options amounting to
five per cent or more of options granted during that year:

No Options were granted during the financial year 2024-25,
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NixXa

Identified employces who were granted options during any one year equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
Company at the time of grant:

No Options were granted during the financial year 2024-25.

Om behalf of the Board of Directors
For Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)

T

Tariq Chinoy
Director Director
DIN: 03341036 DIN: 08830666

Date: August 20, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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DETAILS OF BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

NiXa

ANNEXURE IV TO DIRECTORS REPORT

1. Board Meetings:

2024-25

The Board met 13 (Thirteen) times during the year under review on the following dates:

First Quarter Second Third Quarter | Fourth Quarter | Total Board
(April to June) Quarter (Oct to Dec) (Jan to March) Meetings

{July to Sept)

21.06.2024 12.07.2024 16.10.2024 25.02.2025 13

25.06.2024 16.07.2024 24.10.2024 28.03.2025 (Thirteen)
(1.08.2024 06.11.2024
11.09.2024 09.11.2024

18.12.2024

2. Committee Meetings:

A. Audit Committee-

The Members met 7 (Seven) times during the year under review on the fellowing dates:

First Quarter | Second Quarter | Third Quarter | Fourth Quarter Total
(April to June) | (July to Sept) (Octto Dec} | (Jan to March) Meetings
12.06.2024 11.09.2024 18.12.2023 25.02.2025 7
21.06.2024 24.10.2024 28.03.2025 {Seven)

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee-

The Members met 2 (Two) times during the vear under review on the following dates:

First Quarter | Second Quarter | Third Quarter | Fourth Quarter Total
{April to June} (July to Sept) (Oct to Dec) {Jan to March} Meetings
- 01.08.2024 06.11.2024 - 2
{Two)

NIXA FINCAP PRIVATE LIMITED
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2503 | 25t FLOOR ONE LODHA PLACE | SENAPATI BAPAT MARG | LOWER PAREL | MUMBAI 400 013.
CIN: U65921 MH1997PTC258670 | +91 22 6119 6000 T | +91 22 6119 6080 F|info@nixafincap.com
WEBSITE: www.nixafincap.com



C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee-

NixXa

The Members met | (One) time during the year under review on the following dates:

First Quarter Second Quarter | Third Quarter | Fourth Quatter Total
{April to June) {(July to Sept) (Oct to Dec) (Jan to March) Meetings
11.09.2024 - - 1
{One)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

For Nixa Fincap Private Limited
{Formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)

r
b S
\e
i o
Director
DIN: 03341036

c——"')..T

Tariq Chinoy
Director

DIN: 08830666

Date: August 20, 20235

Place: Mumbar
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. CJ S Nanda & Associates
% CHARTERED AGCOUNTANTS
Office : 7/24, South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 INDIA

Tel.  : 011-4004 6896-95-94, 011-4914 7863
E-mali : mail@cacjsnanda.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Nixa Fincap Private Limited (formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)("the Company"), which comprises the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of changes in Equity for the yeat then ended, and notes to
the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, its profit/loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Stendalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standafone Financial Statements" section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the "Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Siandalone Rinancial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separafe opinion on these maters. For gach matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below 1o be the key audit matters to be comnunicated in our
report.

I .
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements” section of our report, including in relation fo these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company has made investments in
Security Receipts and Mutual Funds, which
represent a significant portion of the total
assets of the balance sheet. These investments
are classified at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss (FVTPL) in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 109 -
Financial Instruments, as the contractual cash
flows do not meet the Solely Paymenis of
Principal and Interest (SPPI) criteria. The
valuation of these investments involves the
use of significant management judgment and
estimation. Accordingly, this area has been
identified as a key audit Matter

S.No. | Key Audit Matters How the Matter was addressed in our audit

1 Impairment of Loans and Advances | Our audit procedures included, among others. the
(Expected Credit Loss Allowance) following:
All the loans and advances accounts as on 31st | i. Evaluated the reasonableness of the
March 2025 have been classified as Nou- Management estimates by understanding the
Performing Assets (NPAs). Due to the process of ECL estimation and tested the
significance of management’s judgment in controls around data extraction and validation
estimating  impairment  provisions  in as per IND AS 109.
accordance with the Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) model under Indian Accounting |ii. Tested the criteria for staging of loans based
Standard (Ind AS) 109 - Financial on their past-due status to check compliance
Instruments, and considering the material with requirement of Ind AS 109,
impact of such provisions on the financial
statements, this area involves a high degree of
estimation uncertainty. Accordingly, this has
been considered a key audit matter.

2 Fair valuation of Security Receipts

Qur audit procedures included, among others. the
following;

i. Evaluated appropriateness of the Fair Value or
NAYV of Security Receipts, Mutua!l fund based on

the valuation prineiples.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our repoit.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Anditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information comprises
the information included in the Directors' Repoit, but does not inclide the Standalone Financial Statements
and our auditor's report thereon.




Our opinion on the Standzlone Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether such Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statemenis or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is any material misstafement in
this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have not come across any such findings and
hence there is nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those Charge with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(35) of the Companies
Act. 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Tn preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

The Board of Diractors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting Process
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a
whole are free fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor'’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risk of material misstaternent of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain andit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting




a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act.
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to confinue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements ov, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going congern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters commuricated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public discloser about the matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse comsequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companics (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Scction 143(3) of the Act, based on our awdit we report that:




a) ‘We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by Jaw have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books,

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

@) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specifted under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
20135, as amended:

€) On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors of the Company us on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the
Company with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report.

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements. Refer Note No.36 to the Standalone Financial Statements:

ii.The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, if any, required to be transferred. to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company, if any.

iv.(i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from berrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, that the Intermediary shall

a)" directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or




vi.

b) provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") of

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to my/our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (1) and d (ii) contain any material mis statement.

The Company did not declare or paid any dividend during the year and accordingly, reporting under
Rule 11(f) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 is not applicable.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Companies covered under the financial
statements have used accounting software for maintaining their books of account, which includes the
feature of recording an audit trail {edit log). However, this feature was not operational for all relevant
transactions during the year and was enabled only from 27th May 2024. Further, for the period from 27th
May 2024 to 315t March 2025, during which the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled, we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.”

For C J S Manda & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Re,gistr{on Number. 010912N)
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Place: Mew Delhi
Date: Jupe 23, 2025
UDIN: 2453225U4BMIAGUHS3S



Annexure "A" referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date on the Standalone Financial Statements fo the Members of
Nixa Fincap Private Limited (formerly known as Kander Finance Private Limited) (‘the Company')

(i) {a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) According to the explanations given to us, all the Property, Plant and Equipment have been
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets and no material discrepancy was noticed on such verification as
compared to book records.

(c) The Company does not own any Immovable Property and accordingly, the requirements under
clavse (1)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not been commented upon.

{(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the compaty has not revalued its property. Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) during the year and accordingly, the requirements under clause ()(d)
of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company and hence not besn commented upon.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the compaty
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

(i) (2) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
clause (ii)(2) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not been commented upon.

(b) According to informaticn and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits the requirements under clause
({i)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not been commented upon it.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or
granted any advences in the nature of loans (except in the normal course of Business), secured or unsecured,
10 companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

(a) The Company's principal business is to give loans and accordingly, the requirements under clauss
(ii)(2) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made by the Company, including
investments in Security Receipts of Asset Reconstruction Companies, Mutual Funds, Bonds, and its
Subsidiary, are not prejudicial to the inferest of the Company. The Company has not provided any
guarantees or security during the year.




(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, there are two Loan accounts which have been
classified as NPA with total Loan outstanding balance of Rs. 26.68 crores.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company is taking reasonable steps for recovery of the principal and
interest.

(e) The Company's principal business is to give loans and accordingly, the requirements under
clavse(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v} The

Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) during the year and therefore, reporting under
clause (v) of CARO 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance

(vii) Ac

of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act. 2013. for the products/services of the Company.

cording to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutary dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Income Tex, Sales Tax, Goods and Services Tax. Value Added Tax and other

material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. The provisions relating to
Duty of Excise, Employees' State Insurance, Duty of Custom and Cess are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund. Income Tax, Sales Tax.
Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The
provisions relating to duty of Excise, Employees' State Insurance. Duty of Custom and Cess are not

applicable to the Company.

(¢} Details of dues of Income Tax and Goods and Services Tax which have not been deposited as at
March 31, 2025 on account of dispute are given below:

S.No. | Name of the Statute | Nature of Financial Amount of | Forum where dispute is
dues Year Demand (Rs.) | pending
1 | Income Tax Act, Income tax 2018-19 1,28,64,430.00 | Income Tax Appellate
1961 Tribunal restored the
matter to the Assessing
Officer for verification
2 | Income Tax Act, Income tax 2016-17 1,22,91,720.00 | Commissioner of Income

1961 Tax Appeals




3 | Finance Act 1994 Tax on 2015-16 23,63,500.00 | Reply SCN filled ; Order
(Service Tax) Redemption awaited
Premium

4 | Finance Act 1994 Disallowance | 2016-17 73,700.00 | Reply SCN filled ; Order
(Service Tax) of CENVAT | and 2017- awaited

ciedit availed | 18
in respect of
unregistered
premises

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of pur examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has no fransaction which are not recorded in books of accounts have
been surrendered or disclosed as the income during the year in tax assessment year under Income tax Act

1961.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of lease or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by the
Company. Accordingly, clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause (ix)(e) of the Qrder is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries

as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable

() (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and has also not made any preferential

allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year and accordingly the requirements under clause (x) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company

(b) According to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of




shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly. clause(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report
that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audi.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under subs-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received, if any, by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures

{xii} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit,
xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
P P

entered Into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence,
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company

(xvi) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of

Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause (xvi){(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group
doas not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause (xvi)(d) arc not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not inctnred cash losses during the year but there is cash loss in financial year 2023-
24 of Rs 8,88,46,245.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause (xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.




(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our atteniion, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
andit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due,

(xx). The Company was not reguired to spend any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) for
the financial year ended 31 March 2025, as the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xxi) There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order
(CARQ) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

For CJ 8 Nanda & Associates
Chartered Accountants
{Firm _Rgg_;gation Number. 010912N})

Nitesl ggggéoyd
Partrier - ©
(MEN. 532254)
Place; New Delhi

Date; Jute 23, 2025
UDIN: 255822.546MJA lrUU535:




Annexure "B" in referred paragraph 2(f) under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report on even date on the Standalone Financial Statements to the Members of

Nixa Fincap Private Limited (formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Aci")

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(formerly known as Xander Finance Private Limited) ") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalene Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on thet date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial
Controls based on the Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its business, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Conirols over Financial
Reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our

audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on

Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal
Finaneial Controls over Financial Reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporiing included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Standalone
Financial Statements,




A Company's Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone
Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
Financial Reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A Company's Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) Provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) Provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, adequate Internal Financial Controls System over financial reporting with reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements and such Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with
reference to these Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on
the Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For CJ S Nanda & Associates
CharteredAccountants

(Flrm Re lstrat n;i‘jr 010912N)

Place: Ncw Delhi

Date: June 23, 2025
UDIN: 25522254 MT AlrV 4535
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ixa Finup Private Limiteq

Ormer|
lllllhlnl: OW &5 "Xander Finance Private Limited")
(All am © Balance Sheet s at 31t March 2025

Ounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

__—_-_'_‘—'—-___
I Particulars Notes Asat " h:: ';u "
1 ASSEFS— 31 Mar 2025 | Mar2024
1 Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents k] 33702322 2.79,54,070
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 10,21,036 1,01,71,91,773
Loans 5 14,27,01,639 18.36,76.551
Investments 6 2,48,4838,890 1,16.29,84.457
Other financial assets T 98.,49,064 1,52,01,105
2,67,21,12,951 2,40,70,07,956
2 Non-financial assets
Currenl 1ax assels (net) 2 20,54,59,859 19,92,12,165
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 11,88,32,366 18,57,13,932
Property, plant and equipment 10 10,34,123 1,06,87,689
Intangible assets 11 1,88,107 392281
Other non financial assels 12 18,40,42,507 20,41,07,008
50,95,56,962 60,01,13,075
Total Assets 3,18,16,69,913 3,00,71,21,031
11 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 Financial liabilitics
Payables
Trade payables 13
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enlerprises e 599,194 49193474
Other financial liabilities 14 3241382 1,29.49 862
38,40,576 6,21,43336
2 Non-financial liabilities
Current tax linbilities (net) 15 17.24.674 7,24,674
Provisions 16 9724723 1,10,47,057
Other non-financial habilities 17 70,56,589 1,57,71,086
1,75,05.986 2,75,42,817
3 Equity
Equity share capital 18 1,12,33,59,160 1,12,33,59,160
Other equity 19 2,03,69,64,191 1,79.40,75,718
3,16,03.23,351 2,91,74,34,878
Total Liabilities and Equity 3,18.16,69,913 3,00,71,21,031
Summary of significant accounting policies 23
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For CJ S NANDA & ASSOCIATES
ICAI Firm's Registration niumber: 010912N
ChlmrtdaAcg.ﬁu'nt_m!h | 4

Nitesh Kiimar (E;;:I.
Partner
Membership No.532254

VDIMY 25422254BM IALTUYS3S

Place: New Delhi
Date:- June 23, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

[
Tarig Chinoy
Director
DIN No.: 08830666

Dipak Agarwal
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date:- June 23, 2025

Rajesh Jogi
Director
DIN No.: 03341036

\\x 'l(’l:::l dhi

Company Secretary
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:‘F‘“ Fincap Private Limited

suﬂl':mrly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

{M:l alone Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2025
Amounts are in [ndisn Rupees unless otherwise stated)

—
Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars Nofes 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Revenue from operations
(i) Interest income 20 9,50.63,621 6,39,83,859
(ii) Otheroperating income 21 13,72,59,156 1,59.37.417
(i) Net gain on fair value changes 2 7,39,92,426 97,76,445
m Total revenue from operations 30,63,15,203 8,96,97,721 |
(M  Other income bx] 7.19,16,760 5,68.53.909
(1K) Total income (T+ 1D 37,82,31,963 14,65,51,630
Expenses
(i) Finance cost 24 268,186 18,02,364
(ii) Net loss on fair value changes 25 = 25,07,52,323
(iii) Impairment of financial assets 26 (1,03,81,695) 5,68,74,398
(iv) Emplayee benefit expenses 27 5.27.86,134 3,65,47,075
(v) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 28 91,62,871 1,75,10,731
(vi) Other expenses 29 2.00.90,319 13,76,76,375
(IV)  Total expenses (IV) 7,28,25,815 50,11,63.266
(W] Profit/(Loss) before tax 30,54,06,148 (35,46,11.636)
(VI)  Tax expense:
(1) Current tax " =
(2) Deferred tax 6,57,83,262 (7,37,41,029)
(3) Earlier years adjustments - 1.42,50,434
(VL) Profit/(Loss) for the year 23,96,22.886 (29.51,21,041
(VII) Other comprehensive income
A (i) ltems that will not be classified to profit or loss
- Actuarial gain/(loss) on gratuity valuation 43,63,892 (35,31,763)
Tax on above (10,98,304) 8,88,874
Subtotal (A) 32,65.588 (26,42,889)
B (i) Items that will be classified to profit or loss (specify items and amounts) S =
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - z
Subtotal (B) = 5
Other comprehensive income {A+B) 32,65,588 (26,42,889)
(IX)  Total comprehensive income for the year 24,28,88,474 {29,77,63,930)
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of equity share Rs. 10 cach)
Basic 31 213 (2:56)
Diluted 2,13 (2.56)
Summary of significant accounting policies 23
ents

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial

As per our report of even date

For C J § NANDA & ASSOCIATES
ICAT Firm's Registration number: 010912N
Charteréd Accountants

!

Nitesh Kumar Goyal
Partner
Membership No.532254

UDWY ¢ 26'53228U 8M TA U HAKEE

Place: New Delhi
Low—ﬂlmf

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nixa Fincap Private Limited

{Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

T

Tariq Chinoy
Director
DIN No.: 08830666

o

Dipak Agarwal
Chiefl Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date:= June 23, 2025

DIN No.: 03341036

ansi Gandhi
Company Secretary




Nixa Fincap Private Limieg

(Formerly knowp 23 "Xander Finance Private Limited'')
Standalone Cagh Fyq

(AN amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

W Statement for the period ended 31st March 2025

— ]

e
Particulars

For the Year ended
— 31 Mar 2025
Cash flow from Operating activities
Profit before tax as per the statement of profit and loss 30,97,70.040

Adjustment for
Expected credit loss on loans

For the Year ended
31 Mar 2024

(35.81,43,399)

(1,64,35,947) 5,68,74,398
Expected credit loss on investments 43 85455 -
Depreciation and amortisation 91,62,871 1,75,10,731
Interest on fixed deposits (3,38,65,169) (5,24,78,981)
Interest income-unwinding ol security deposit 238367 (6,74,231)
Interest on lease liability 2,59,655 17,86,477
Sale of property, plant and equipment 16,54,737 521,681
Net gain/loss on fair value changes (5,96,76,316) 250752323
Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserve - (49,95,244)
Operating profit before working capital changes 21,54,93,693 (B.88,46,245)
Movement in working capital
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities B,91,894 891,400
Increase / (Decrease) in other non- financial Habilities (87,14,497) 1,19,15,804
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (4,85,94,280) 3,54,16,204
| 1Dy ) in provisi (13,22,334) 4697,613
(Increase) / Decrease in loans 5,74,10,858 51,33,57,535
(Increase) / Decrease in financial asscts (3,24,48,044) (68,76,32,684)
(Increase) / Decrease in other non- financial assets 2.00.64,500 7.41.82.804
Cash Used in operations (1,27,11,903) (4,71,71,324)
Less:  Direct taxes paid (Net of refunds) (62,47,694) 1,38,25309

Net Cash from/ (used) in operating activities

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements

A 653409 | (12.2192260)
W ct
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress and capital advances (10,31,903) (8,175)
Sale of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress and capital advances 72,040 -
Proceeds from investments 2,14.31 30,693 10,22,37,701
Purchase of investments (2,35,59,61,813) -
Interest on fixed deposits 3,38.65,169 5,24,78.981
Net Cash from f{used) for Investing activities B (17,99,25814) 15,47,08,507
Cash NMow from Financing activities
Payment of lease rent (1,08,60,030) (2,12,52,402)
Buy back of shares - (75,00,00,300)
Net Cash from/ (used) in Financing activities € (1.os!su!u:§n! 77,12,52,702
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A)HB)H C) 5748252 (73,8736 455)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 2,79,54,070 76,66,90,525
Cash and Cash Equivalents ai the end of the period 3.37,02,322 2,79,54,070
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period:
- Cash in hand 14,086 7,790
- Cheques in hand - &
- Balance with banks
- in current accounts 36,85,034 7941446
- in fixed deposits 3.00,03,202 2,00,04.834
3.3?.0;,342 2,79,54,070
|Summary of significant accounting policies 23

As per our report of even date

For CJ 5§ NANDA & ASSOCIATES
ICAI Firm's Registration number; 010212N
Chartered Accountants. -

Nitesh Kumar Goyal
Partner
Membership No.532254

UDIM ! 165322548M 5 A LILYARS

Place: New Delhi
Date:- June 23, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly kmown as "Xander Finance Private Limited™)

—
o
o5
Tarig Chinoy
Director

DIN No.: 08830666

~pd

Dipak Agarwal
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date-June 23, 2025

Mansi Gandhi
Company Secretary

Raj
Director
DIN No.: 03341036

Jogi
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly I.{nown as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate Information

Nixa Fincap Private Limited (Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”) ('the Company')
was incorporated on January 10, 1997 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as a private
limited company. The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘the RBI’) as a non-
deposit accepting systemically important non-banking financial company or NBFC-ND-SI under the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans to
corporates and other activities associated with lending.

The audited financial statements were subject to review and recommendation of Audit Committee and
approval of Board of Directors. On June 23, 2025, Board of Directors of the Company approved and
recommended the audited financial statements for consideration and adoption by the shareholders in its

Annual General Meeting,
2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in the format prescribed in
the Division Il of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non-Banking
Finance Companies (“NBFC”) and in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time), the
Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master
Directions’) and notification for Implementation of Indian Accounting Standard vide circular
RBI/2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 (*RBI
Notification for Implementation of Ind AS”) issued by RBI.

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgements, accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assum ptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 2.3.18 -
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) except when otherwise indicated.

2.1. Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company are presented in order of liquidity and in accordance with
Schedule I1I (Division IIT) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA). An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is presented in
Note 35. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when,
there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being
contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:
i, The normal course of business

ii. The event of default
iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

&y




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
g' ormerly I.-mown as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
otes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.2. Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.3. Significant accounting policies

2.3.1 Revenue from operations

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue includes the following:

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount
of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified and measured at

FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with
the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net
amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.

(ii) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets (including investments) classified as fair
value through the profit or loss (“FVTPL?) (refer Note 22 and Note 25), held by the Company on the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In case there is a net gain in the aggregate,
the same is recognised in “Net gain on fair value changes™ under Revenue from operations and if there
is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt

instruments measured at FVOCI is recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified at amortised cost is
presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Other operational revenue

Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the coptrady
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2.3.2 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities can be termed as financial instruments.

2.3.2.1 Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss account
The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financ ial assets’ cash flows and the
Company’s business model for managing financial assets.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in Statement of profit and loss
or other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial Assets

(i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

These financial assets comprise bank balances, loans, trade receivables, and other financial assets.

Financial assets with contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates and represent
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash flows are measured

at amortised cost.
These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly atiributable transaction costs

and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or a financial liability.

(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other com prehensive income

Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where

they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cash flows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income (a separate component of equity). Impairment losses or
reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Upon
disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss. As at the reporting date the Company does
not have any financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments are generally accounted for as at fair value through the profit and loss

account unless an irrevocable election has been made by management to account for at fair value

Lhrqugh other comprehensive income Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
asis.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income for equity instruments are not subsequently
transferred to profit or loss. Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
a) Investments (including Security receipts and equity shares ) -;
b) Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and
c) debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financiz.ll instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they

arise.
Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for selling
or repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not designated
in a qualifying hedge relationship. As at the reporting date the Company does not have any financial

instruments measured held for trading.
Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at
fair value through the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

(i) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

Afier initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue

funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

(ii) Undrawn loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the
Company is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan
commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements. As at the reporting date the Company does not
have any undrawn loan commitments.
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2.3.3 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

2.3.3.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement
purposes unless the new loan is deemed to be credit-impaired at the origination date. If the modification
does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records
a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

2.3.3.2. Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial meodification

A financial asset or a part of financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both
ransferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. The Company has transferred

the financial asset if, and only if, either:

i. The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset; or

ii. It retains the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash

flows.
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

i. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
ii. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset

be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset
continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, in which case,
the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

The Company considers control to

2.3.3.3 Derecognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

2.3.3.4. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
only if there is an enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts with an intenti ettle on
a net basis or to realise the assets and seftle the liabilities simultaneously.




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly !mown as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.3.3.5. Investments in subsidiaries

ot adjusted to fair value at the end of each

Investment in subsidiaries is recognised at cost and are n
Cost of investment represents

reporting period as allowed by Ind AS 27 'Separate financial statement'.
amount paid for acquisition of the said investment.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said
investment may be impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable value/ amount of the
investment and provides for impairment, if any i.e. the deficit in the recoverable value over cost.

2.3.4 Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the ECL principles

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets (including
non-fund exposures) that are measured at amortised costs or at fair value through other comprehensive

income account.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for the
following categories of financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss:
i debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
income;
ii. loan commitments; and
iii. financial guarantee contracts.

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss. Lifetime ECLs are the
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective
basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has

classified its loan portfolio into Corporate lending and Real estate lending.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level.
If a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past due (DPD)

is applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
telow:

Stage 1
All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or

that have a low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The Company classifies all standard advances and advances up to 1 month
default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has imprexed, and

the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2. PR%
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Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit impaired are classified under this stage. More than 1 month due is considered as significant
Increase in credit risk. Further, one-time restructuring of loan accounts allowed by RBI vide circular
resolution framework for COVID-19 related stress dated August 6, 2020 to the extent having no
overdues has been assessed as an indicator of significant increase in credit risk on a conservative basis
and accordingly such loan accounts have been classified under stage 2 upon their restructuring. These
loans shall be upgraded to Stage 1 only after they demonstrate good repayment behaviour over a period
of time,

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures
that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount. The Company shall classify all advances exceeding 90 days default under this category.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
i. Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
ii. A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
iii. The restructuring of a loan or advance by the.Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;
iv. The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loan commitments

When estimating lifetime ECL, for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected
portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based
on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period if the facility
has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further explained

in Note 42

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date. The concept of EAD is further explained in Note 42

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the Company would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It
is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The concept of LGD is further explained in
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2.3.5 Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. Th;
collateral comes in various forms, such as equity shares, movable and immovable assets, project cas
flows etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. To the extent POSSlb.lei
the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as Follateral. Other financia
assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models. Non-financial
collateral is valued based on data provided by third parties or management judgements.

2.3.6 Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when th-e Company ha§ no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any
subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

2.3.7 Determination of fair value

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent
measurement, the Company measures certain categories of financial instruments at fair value on each
balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

To show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level | financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are signj
are denveq fr?m directly or m.d_lrectl)_* observable market data available over the entire p
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in ac
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qU_oted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole.

Difference between transaction price and fair value at initial recognition

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e.
without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only
data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the difference
between the transaction price and the fair value in statement of profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e.

on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value
is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes.
In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recogn ised in
statement of profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

2.3.8 Expenses
2.3.8.1 Finance costs

Finance costs represents interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to
the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
i As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial liability.
ii. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
iii. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows are recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include
fees and commissions payable to advisers, processing fees.

2.3.8.2 Retirement and other employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits including short term compensated absences and statutory bonus/ performance
bonus/incentives payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

&y
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(i1) Post-employment employee benefits

a) Defined contribution schemes

Retirement/ Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plan
and contributions to the respective funds administered by the Government are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds are due

b) Defined Benefit schemes
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuar

on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses for
defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit

and loss.

ial valuation

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date,

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on
settlements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest
cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under
finance cost. Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the
settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognised as expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or
curtailment and when the Company recognises related restructuring costs or term ination benefits.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these
liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a

corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

2.3.8.3 Share-based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Xander Finance Employee Incentive
Scheme 2016 (the 'Scheme'). The fair value of options granted under the scheme is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in other equity.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted at
each reporting period.

. 2.3.8.4 Other income and expenses

All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.
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2.3.8.5 Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current Tax

tax authorities in accordance with the

Current Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the
are those

Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

The tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based

on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred Tax

fferences between taxable income and accounting income
ng differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax
d or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax reflect the impact of timing di
originating during the current year and reversal of timi
is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacte

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax
assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can

be realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-
down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be

available.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside profit

or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

2.3.9 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising due to the differences in the exchange rate between the
transaction date and the date of settlement of any monetary items are taken to the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of the Balance Sheet and resultant gain/ loss is taken to the Statement of Profit

and Loss.
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2.3.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Casl-! and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on hand and balances
}vith banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for
investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above.

2.3.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties,
taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it
increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of
performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off
as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on plant, property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method which is in
line with the estimated useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except for
Leasehold Improvements which are amortised on a straight-line basis over the primary period of the
lease. Leasehold improvements include all expenditure incurred on the leasehold premises that have
future economic benefits.

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Particulars Useful life as prescribed by | Useful life estimated
Schedule III of the Companies | by Company
Act, 2013
Furniture and fixture 10 years 10 years
Office equipment 5 years 5 years
Computer 3 years 3 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Property plant and
equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the
statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with
the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.
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2.3.12 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on makin.g.the
asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment

losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits

embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.
Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement
of Profit and Loss from / up to the date of acquisition/sale.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible as
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years unless it has a shorter useful life.
The Company’s intangible assets consist of computer software with definite life.

down the cost of intangible assets to
sets comprising of software are

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss when the asset is derecognised.
2.3.13 Leases (As a lessee)

Identifying a lease

At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contain, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company assesses whether:
i The contract involves the use of an identified asset, this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly.
ii. The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughout the period of use, and
iii. The Company has right to direct the use of the asset.
This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 April 2018.
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Recognition of right of use asset

The Company recognises a right of use asset at the lease commencement date of lease and comprigg$
of the initial lease liability amount, plus any indirect costs incurred.

Subsequent measurement of right of use asset

The right of use asset is subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term

VY
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly l'mown as “Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

whichever is lesser. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if

any, and adjusted for certain re-measurement of the lease liability.

Recognition of lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the SBI MCLR rate

Subsequent measurement of lease liability

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability using the incremental
borrowing rate/SBI MCLR rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the

remaining balance of the liability.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. Whenever the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding

adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right of use asset or is recorded in statement of profit
or loss of the carrying amount of the right of use asset has been red uced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected by class of underlying asset to not recognise right of use assets and lease
liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months and leases for which the underlying

asset is of low value,
2.3.14 Provisions

A provision is recognized when:

(a) the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event,
(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation and
(c) areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect
of time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those
cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is

recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

2.3.15 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
(i) a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or

(ii) a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Com o
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly 1_cnown as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.3.16 Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Eamings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.3.17 Contingencies and events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

Events occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet, which provide further evidence of conditions that
existed at the Balance Sheet date or that arose subsequently, are considered up to the date of approval
of accounts by the Board of Directors, where material.

2.3.18 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
or liabilities in future periods.
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Note 3: Cash and cash equivalents

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Abat Asat
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Cash on hand 14,086 7,790
Balances with Banks
- fixed deposits (with original maturity within 3 months) 3,00,03,202 2,00,04,834
- in current accounts 36,85,034 79,41,446
Cheques in hand - -
Total 3,37,02,322 2,79,54,070
Note 4: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat asa
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Balances with Banks
- fixed deposits (with original maturity greater than 3
months) 10,21,036 1,01,71,91,773
Total 10,21,036 1,01,71,91,773

&
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Loans

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025

There are no loan assets measured at FVOCI, FVTPL or designated at FVTPL

Particulars Ay o
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024

Receivables under financing activities (at amortised cost) 26,68,50,318 32,42,61,177
Total (A) - Gross 26,68,50,318 32,42,61,177
Less: Provision for expected credit losses 12,41,48,679 14,05,84,626
Total (A) - Net 14,27,01,639 18,36,76,551
i) Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets 26,68.50,318 32,42,61,177
ii) Unsecured . -
Total (B) - Gross 26,68,50,318 32,42,61,177
Less : Provision for expected credit losses 12,41,48,679 14,05,84,626
Total (B) - Net 14,27,01,639 18,36,76,551
Loans in India
i) Public Sector - -
ii) Others (to be specified) 26,68,50,318 32,42,61,177
Total (C) - Gross 26,68,50,318 32,42,61,177
Less: Provision for expected credit losses 12,41,48,679 14,05,84,626
Total (C) - Net 14,27,01,639 18,36,76,551
Loans outside India - -
Less: Provision for expected credit losses - =
Total - Net - -
Total 14,27,01,639 18,36,76,551
Note:
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 6: Investments
; As at As at

Pk 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Measured at Cost
i) Investment in Subsidiary 12,00,00,000 12,00,00,000
(1,20,00,000 unquoted equity shares (31st March 2024 : 1,20,00,000) of face
value of Rs.10/- each of Balestier Ventures Private Limited formerly known
as "Yuj Home Finance Private Limited')
ii) Investment in Group Company
(1 unquoted equity share (3 1st March 2024 : Nil) of face value of Rs.10/-
each of Nixa Investment Advisors Private Limited formerly known as 'XA
Fund Managers Private Limited') 10 5
Total (A) 12,00,00,010 12,00,00,000
Measured at FYTPL
Investment in Mutual Fund 1,01,46,03,647 2
Security Receipts *
i) Investment in CFMARC Trust 1 20,77,33,200 15,27,45,000
ii) Investment in Arcil-AST-063-I1 Trust - 55,25,85,000
iii) Investment in Arcil-AST-063-1 Trust - 33,99,15,000
iv) Investment in ACRE-107-Trust 29,09,96,292 29,21,67,909
v) Investment in ACRE-115-Trust < 4,43,77,113
Less : Provision on investments 8,42,04,991 33,88,05,565
Total (B) 1,42,91,28,148 1,04,29,84,457
Measured at Amortised Cost
Investment in Bonds
i) Blessing Properties Pvt Ltd 52,70,65,646 -
ii) GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 41,30,30,541 =
Less : Provision on investments 43,85,455 -
Total (C) 93,57,10,732 -
Investments in India 2,48,48,38,890 1,16,29,84,457
Investments outside India - -
Total (A+B+C) 2,48,48,38,890 1,16,29,84,457
Total 2,48,48,38,890 1,16,29,84,457

estimated cash flows of underlying loans are considered

* Sccurity Receipts represents loans which are transferred to Asset Reconstruction Companies. For determining the fair value,




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Other financial assets
As at As at
ERriiets 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Security deposits 44,78,047 1,30,51,032
Other receivables 53,71,017 21,50,073
Total 98,49,064 1,52,01,105
Note 8: Current tax assets (net)
Particulars Asat A
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 20,54,59,859 19,92,12,165
Total 20,54,59,859 19,92,12,165
Note 9; Deferred tax assets (net)
Asat As at
Partieulars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Deferred tax assets
Provision for expected credit losses 3,12,45,740 3,53,82,339
Impact of provision for gratuity 19,45,876 26,00,244
Impact of provision for employee stock option plan (ESOP) 8,62,442 8,62,442
Impact of provision for leave encashment 5,01,642 1,80,079
Lease Liability ' - 26,67,902
Fair valuation of Security Deposits - 90,087
Fair valuation of Investments and other assets 7,17,03,307 14,27,30,646
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for financial reporting o o 16,20,19
Impact of brought forward losses 89,71,278 -
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair valuation of Security Deposits 14,199 -
Impact of current year losses . -
Interest on NPA on loans - 4,20,003
Deferred lease rental 1,47,851 -
Total 11,88,32,366 18,57,13,932
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Nixs Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as " Xander Finance Private Limited")

(ANl amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Noles to the standalone financial statements us at 31at March 2025

Note 10: Property, plant and equipment
Particulars Compnters Foraitorc& [ Office Equipment| _ Leasehold | Buildings (ieased) Toal
Fixt Improvements

At cost or fair value st the beginning of the period 29,17,311 19,48,132 14,61,784 2,5691,581 10,91,63,883 14.11,52.691
Additions 9,97,567 (0) 34336 - - 10,31,903
Acquisitions through b bi . . . 2 =
Revaluation edjustment, if any 3 P . w " 5
Disposals 13,68,650 1540,571 10,64,808 2,56.91,581 - 2.96,65,610
Reclassification from/to held for sale . - - - . -
At coat or fair value at the end of the perind 2546218 4,07,561 431312 - 10,91,63,883 11,25,48,984
Accumalated Depreciation and impairment as at the beginning of

the period 26,0274 13,65,877 13,76,196 2,44,07,002 10,07,43,153 13,04,95,002
Depreciation for the period 364,632 1,74,358 5,646 - 84,20,730 £9,65,366
Disposals 13,00,374 12,39,285 998,846 2,44,07,002 - 2,79,45,507
Impairment/ (reversal) of Impairment - ] . - - -
Reclassification from/to held for sale - - - . - =
[Accumulated Depreciation and Impai tasat the end of the

period 16,67,032 3,00,950 3,82,996 0 10,91,63,883 11,15,14,861
Net Carrying amount a3 at the end of the period 8,719,196 1,06,611 48316 (0} - 1034,123
Net Carrying amount a3 at 31 Mar 2024 3,14.537 502,258 85,588 12,84,579 £4,20,730 1,06,87,689
Note 111 Intangible assets
Particulars Software Total

At cost, begmning of the period 8,67.242 £,67,242

Additions ] a
| Acquisitions = -

Fair value adjustment, if any = .

Dispo sals 1,33,389 1.33.389

Total Cost 733,853 733,853

Accurmulated amortisation and impairment.

At the beginning of the period 4,74,961 4,74,961

Amortisation 1,97,505 1,97,505

Disposals 1,26,720 1,26,720

Impairment/ (reversal) of Impairment - G

Total Amortisation and impairment 545,746 545,146

Net Carrying amount a3 at the end of the period 1,88,107 1,848,107
Net Carrying amount as at 31 Mar 2024 3,92,181 39281

e~
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 12: Other non-financial assets

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025

- As at As at
Fustiowers 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Prepaid expenses 17,61,693 9,58,965
Asset acquired in satisfaction of loans (held for sale) 15,39,65,555 15,39,65,555
Deferred lease rental 5,87,455 -
Advance against expenses 7,30,434 7,33,540
GST & service tax input credit available / receivable 2,69,97,370 4,84,48,948
Total 18,40,42,507 20,41,07,008

&




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 13: Trade payahbles

Notes to the standalone financial statements as st 315t March 2025

Asat Asat
_— Rartoey 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
(i) total owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 5,99,194 49193474
and small enterprises
Total 599,194 4,91,93.474
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:
Parficulars Outstanding for Following Perleds From Due Date of Payment Total
Less than | year 1-2 yrs, 1-3 yra More than 3 yrs.
(i) MSME®* 3 . = 5
(i) Others 5.99.194 = - 599,194
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME* - E - =
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - %
“MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:-
Particulars Qutstanding for Following Periods From Due Date of Payment Total
Less than | year 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. More than 3 yrs.

i) MSME* - N 5 -
(1) Others 49193474 - 49193474
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME* - » - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - -
*MSME a5 per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 14: Other financial liabilities
Asat Asat
Parti
— eizei 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Lease Liability 0 1,06,00,374
Payable for expenses 32.41,382 2349488
Total 32.41,382 1,19,49,862

{A.
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

Note 15: Current tax liabilities (net)

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particul
e 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
For taxation 7,24,674 7,24,674
Total 7,24,674 7,24,674
Note 16: Provisions
As at As at
wosiagia 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
| Provision for employee benefits
- Non Current Liabilities
- Provision for Gratuity 71,83,308 98,28,894
- Provision for Leave Encashment 9,34,031 =
- Current Liabilities
- Provision for Gratuity 5,48,241 5,02,654
- Provision for Leave Encashment 10,59,143 7,15,509
Total 97,24,723 1,10,47,057
Note 17: Other Non-financial liabilities
. As at As at
Rrticulans 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Statutory dues payable 70,56,589 1,57,71,086
Total 70,56,589 1,57,71,086

A




Nixs Fincap Private Limited
(Formerty knawn as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes 1o the dafone financial atat te a3 ol Jist March 2025
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise sated)

Note 18: Equity share capital

Particulars Aot Aty
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:
14.81,00,000 (31 March 2024: 14,81,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 1.48,10.00,000 1,48.10.00,000
148.10.00.000 _1,48,10,00,600 |

lssued, subscribed and fully pald up
Bquity shares
11,23 35,916 (31 March 2024: 11.23,35.918) equity shares of Ra 10 each 1,12.13,59,160 1,12,33.59,160
Total Equity 1,12,33,59,160 1,12,33,59,160
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding sl the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Number of shares Amauni Number of shares Amount |
Balance us ol beginning of the period 11,2138 m’ 1,12.33,59,160 14,80,50.216 1.48,05,02,160)
Add:- Equity shares issued during the period . ) - .
Less- Equity shares bought back dunng the period = 1 = 3.57,14.300 35,71,43,000
Balance s st end of the period 11,23.389146] 112,33,59,160 11,13.35,916 1,12,3.59,160,

Terma and rights atiached to equity thares

proportian to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Shares held by holding company and details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of th

e sggregate shares in the Company

The Campany has one class of equity shares having n par valus of Ra. |0 per share. Each shareholder s eligible for ane vote per share held. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directon is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting Dividend declared and paid would be in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidstion of the Company, the bolders of equity shares will be entitled to recerve remaining assets of the Company, after distnbution of all preferential amount. The disinbution will be in|

etk 31-Mar25 3-Mar-24
Number of shares Amaunt Number of shares Amount
Nixa Capiial Management Pie Lid (formerly known as Xander Capiial Mansgement Pie Ltd) . the holding 11,17.21,806 1,11,72,18,060 11.17,21,806) 1,10,72,18,060
Shares of Rs. 10 cach Rully paid
Particulars 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-24
Number of Shares % helding Number of Shares % halding
Nixa Capital Management Pie Lid (formerly known as Xander Capital Management Pre Ltd) , the holding 11,17,21 306 99.45% 11,17.21,806 99.45%

As per the record of the Company, |

holders / m garding b

s register of sh

hits not isswed shares for consideration other than cash during the

'éf'

The iod of five

Iy

immeadiatel

receding the reponting dats

ficial iterest, the above shareholding represents bath legal and beneficial dwnership of shares.
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?Fiu Fincap Private Limited
ormerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limi
ited"
Notes to the standalone financisl statements as at 31t M)nrnh 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 19: Other equity

Particulars Asnt Avat
v - 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024

S“'m?p’ reserve (As required by section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934) 85,19,96,079 80,40,71,501
Securities premium account
Mot oart ; . 76,81,38,607 76,81,38,607
- eamings {‘sum us/deficit in profit & loss account) 5,55,05,385 (13,61,92,923)

er Comprehensive Income 7,54.381 (25,11,207)
Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP) Reserve 34,26,739 34,26,739
Capital Redemption Reserve 35.71,43,000 35,71,43,000
Total 2,03,69,64,191 1,79,40,75,718

Note 19.1: Nature and purpose of reserves

purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

comprehensive income which is considered as part of retained eamnings.

provided to employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration.

Note 19.2: Other cquity movement

Statutory reserve: Statutory reserve represents appropriation of retained eaming as per section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank OF India Act, 1934.
Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used lo record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited

Retained earnings: Retained eamings represents surplus/accumulated eamings of the Company and are availeble for distribution to shareholders, The
Company recognises any change on account of remeasurement of the net defined liability/(asset) which comprises of actunrial gains/losses in other

Capital Redemption Reserve: The reserve has been created by the Company on account of buy back of equity shares undertaken by the Company. An
amount equivalent o face value of the cquity shares bought back has been transferred from Reserves to Capital Redemption Reserve

Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP) Reserve: The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-setiled share-based payments

Asat Asal
TageRn 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Statutory reserve (As required by section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of Indis Act, 1934)
Balance as at the beginning of the period 80,40,71,501 80,40,71,501
Additions during the period - Transfer from Surplus from Stalement of Profit and Loss 4,79.24 578 -
Balance as at the end of the period $5,19,96,079 80,40,71.501
Securities premium account
Balance as at the beginning of the period 76,81,38,607 1,51,81,38,907
Add: Premium on shares issued during the period - -
Less: Adjustment on account of Buy Back - ::.ﬁ!::;;ﬂl}g
Less: Transfer to Capital Redemplion Reserve = 7143,
Balance as at the end of the period 76,81,38,607 76,81,38,607
i it i t & lo count
Retained earnings (;_nr!ﬁus!d:ul'lil:lt in Dﬂmﬁ 3s ac ) pr— T
Balance as at the beginning of the peri e s sial ot}
Add: Profit for the period 2
Less : Appropriations T i
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
ividend paid duri i i i
- Dividend
i 5,55,05.385 (13,61,92,923
Balance as at the end of the period
DIEEC s !nmme 5 (25,11.207) 131,682
Balance as at the beginning of the period
Mmu.duﬂuzﬂqﬂfﬂ ) 32,6558 (642889)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on gratuity valuation e as11.207
Balance as at the end of the period
Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOI?} Reserve 3426739 U298
Balance as at the beginning of the period o (49.95.244)
Add: Provision for the period . e 30167
Balance as at the end of the period
Cigharmnysgeion Bovers 35.71,43,000 35,71,43.000
Balance as at the beginning of the perlod &
Add: Trnafegrd fiom Securfies Bern i 35,11,43,000 35,71,43.000
Balance & at the end of the period
2,03,69,64,191 1,79,40,75,718
Total v




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes o the dalone fi 1al a8 8t 31t March 2025
(All amounts are In Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Intereat Income
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Partlculans 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
1 Income on I Inl nusets d at amortised cost
Interest Income 9,46,49,260 63230178
Other interest income-unwinding of security deposit 414361 6,74,231
Interest on NPA - 79.450
Totsl 9,50,63 621 639,33 859
Note 21: Other operating income
Partlculars For the Year ended For the Yesr ended
31 Mar1025 31 Mar 1024
Prepayment Penalty - 24 46,587
Income on Security Receipts 96,87,119 1.34,90,830
Advisory Fees 10,21,00,000 .
Redempnon Premium 2,54,72.037 =
Total 13,72.59.156 15937417
Note 22: Net galn on falr value changes
For the Yesr ended For the Year ended
Parhcilecs 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar2024
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Om investment portfolio
- Mutual Funds 596,76316 .
« Other stems 1,43,16,110 97,76.445
Fair Value changes:
- Realised 346,79.857 97,76,445
- Unrealised 393,12,569 -
139.92,426 97,716,445
Total 7.3991.426 97,76,445
Note 23: Other income
Particulars For the Year eaded For the Year ended
31 Mar2024
Interest on fixed deposits 3.38,65,169 5,24 78981
Other miscellaneous income 3,80.51.591 43,74.928
Total 7,19,16,760 5,68.53,909
Note 24: Finance cost
Particulars Forthe Yearended For the Year ended
31 Mar 2025 3] Marl024
Bank charges 8531 15887
Interest on lease liability 2,59,655 1786477
| Total 2,608,186 13 4
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Nixa Finesp Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes to the standalone financial statements ms at 315t Marech 2025
All smounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

Note 25: Net loss on falr value changes

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments af fair value through profit or loss L Mar 025
On investment portfolio
- Other items % 250752323
Fair Value changes:
=Rkl (165.14,772)
= Unrealised 26,72,67,095
| Total - 2507,52,323
Note 26: Impairment of financial assets
For the Year ended For the Yesr ended
Parti
) 31 Mar 2028 31 Mar 2024
Impairment on Financial instr I at Amortised cost
Provision for expected credit losses (1,20,50,491) 56874308
Reversal of interest on Non Performing Assel 16.,68,796 -
Total (1,03,81,605) 5,68,74,398
Note 27: Employee benefit expenses
For the Year eniled For the Year ended
Bartiaiers 31 Mar2025 31 Mar 2024
Salaries and wages 4,69,97,662 3,36,88,222
Contributions to provident and other funds 16,59.066 553856
Gratuity 23,84,086 15.41 837
Leave encashment expenses 12,77.665 (2,07,719)
Staff welfare expenses 467,655 9,70.879
Total 527.86,134 36547075
Note 28: Depreciation, amortization and impairment
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Eariert 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Depreciation oftangible and intangible assets 91,62.871 1,75,10,731
91,62,871 1,75,10,731
Note 29: Other
. For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particalars 31 Mar 2026 31 Mar 2024
Rates and taxes 6,55.283 T7,16,220
Rent 1,30,90,558 1,74,55,858
Zei 1.90,729% 4,97 028
Electricity .90, LT
Traveling and conveyance 44,65,124 12,27.332
Communicati 1,76,866 7.15.288
unication
Insurance 11,79.923 28,62,562
Office maintenance 6,355,857 14,61,923
Léial sid profassinial 5 (95,16,161) 10,11,95,032
o 16,54,737 521,681
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 15,34,149 14,10,775
Auditors' remuneration 5,34, 46:26'00I
Corpol ial responsibili = x
i e i 66,0254 49.86,675
Total 2,09,90319 13,76,16,375

'%,




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finanee Private Limited")
Notes to the standalone financial a5t st March 2028

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)
Auditors' Remuneration

Particulars For the Year ended Year ended
31 Mar 2025 313t March 2024
As auditors
Audit fees 12,71,250 1069275
Limited review S .
Tox audit fees 1.57.500 171,000
In other capacity
Centification fees 1,05,399 170,500
Reimbursement of expenses < -
154,149 14,010,775 |
| Details of CSR expenditure:
For the Year ended Year ended
- 31 Mar 2028 315t March 2024
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company duning the year B 46,25,738
b} Amount spent durmg the vear - 46,26,001
11 Construction/acquisition of any asset - .
ath 1} above - 46,26,001
oul - 46,26,001 |
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known s "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the siandalone financial stat ts ns wl 310t March 2028
(ANl amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise siated)

Nole 30: Income tax

The componenta of income tax expense for the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are

E For the Year ended For the Year ended
Pakialws 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Current tax - v
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prier years - 1,42,50,434
Deferred tax relating 1o origination and reversal of temporary differences 6,57.83.262 (1.3741,029)
Tatal tax charge 6,57,83,261 £,04,00,595

Reconcilintion of the tolal tax charge:

The tax charge shown in the sistement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that woul

d apply if all profits had been charged at

corporale it rate applicable m India. A i the tax expense and the ing profit mulliphied by India's domestic
tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 15, as follows
For the Year ended For (he Year ended

Particilars 31 Mar 2028 31 Mar 2024
Accounting profit before lax 10,54,06,148 (35.46,11,636)
Statutory incoma tax rate 2517T% 25.17%
Expecied income lax expense 7,69,00,000 (8.92,00,000)
Difference in tax rale due to

Effect of non-deductible expenses - 12,00,000

Effect of non taxable income < 5

Others (1,11,16,738) 2,85,09.405
Total Tax expense 6,57.83.262 ‘S.N.W,Sl! )
Effective tax rate 21.54% 16.78%
Deferred tsx

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recarded in the Income lax expense;

4 Deferred iax nanels Deferred tax liabilities Income oci

T 31-Mar-z8 31:Mar-25 202425 202425
Depresiation 37,64,131,00 z 21,43,935 .
Impairment allowance for financial assets 3,12,45,740 - (41,36,599) -
Finencial instruments measured at EIR . = o %
Remeasurement gain { (loss) on defined benefit plan 19,45,876 - 441936 (10,98,304)
Other Provisions 13,64,084 . 3,21,561 -
Other temporary differences ,06,74,585 1,62,050 6.45,56.007) -
Total 11,89.94,416 1,62,050 (6.57,83,262)| (10.93.304

Parti Deferred lax assels Delerred tax Liabilities Income statement acl

'articulars
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 2023-24 2023-24

Depreciation 16,20,196.00 - 22,99,632 .
Impai Il for financial assets 3,53,82,339 - 1.43,14,145 -
Financial instruments measured ol EIR - - (15,49,641) &
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 26,00,244 - 3,45,700 B.8838T4
Other Provisions 10,42,521 - (13,09 482) -
Other temporary differences 14,54,88,635 420,000 5.96,40,671 -
Total 18.61,33,935 420,003 7.37,41,029 5.58.574




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise siated)

Note 31: Earnings per share

Basic Eamings Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

equity holders of Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted
ion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the riet profit attributable to
and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax) by the
average number of equity shares that would be issued on the convers

Particul For the Year ended | For the Year ended
o 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (A) Rupees 23,96,22,886 (29,51,21,041)
Nominal value of equity share Rs. / Share 10 10
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share

Opening Balance of equity shares (BI) Nos 11,23,35916 14,80,50,216
Issued during the year (B2) Nos - =
Buy back of shares during the period (B3) Nos - 3,57,14,300
Weighted average no. of equity shares issued during the period (B4) Nos - -
Weighted average no, of equity shares bought back during the period (BS) - 3,27,38,108
Total weighted no. of equity shares for basic EPS (B) = (B1+B4-BS) Nos 11,23,35916 11,53,12,108
Basic EPS (A/B) Rs. / Share 2.13 (2.56)
Total weighted no. of equity shares for diluted EPS (C) Nos 11,23,35,916 11,53,12,108
Diluted EPS (A/C) Rs. / Share 2.13 (2.56)

A
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 32: Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The Company provides share-based employee benefits to the employees of the Company. During the year ended March 31, 2025, an employee
stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence, The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

The Board of Directors approved the Xander Finance Employee Incentive Scheme 2016 (the 'Scheme’) for issue of stock units to the key
employees and directors of the Company. According to the Scheme, the employees selected by the Administrator of the Scheme (as appointed by
Board of Directors of the Company) from time 1o time will be entitled to stock unils, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions,
viz., continuing employment of at least 2 years. The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is
3 years as per the Scheme. However, the Company estimates that based on current market conditions the stock units could be exercised at the end
of 5 years by way of settlement in cash. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Other relevant terms of the grant are as follows Terms

Vesting period 3 years

Exercise period After completion of the vesting period, currently estimated at 5 years
Expected life 5 years

Exercise price Nil

The details of the Scheme are summarized below:
Particulars

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Date of grant -
Date of Board / Nomination & Remuneration committee approval - "
Number of Options granted -

Particulars

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Expired during the year

COutstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

Average
exercise price

Number of
options

Average
exercise price

Number of
options

21.00

1,63,178

1,63,178

39.16

2,15,056

51,878.00

1,63,178

A
)
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Transfer of financial assets

There has not been any transfer of financial assets during the current reporting year and previous year. The
Company had transferred few accounts in the past financial years to an Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC) on
a without recourse basis. These loans were secured and were classified as credit impaired on the date of]
assignment. The Company received the entire purchase consideration in cash from the ARC and has subscribed to
the Security Receipts to the extent of 85%.
In view of the above, the Company has substantially retained all the risks and rewards of the ownership to the
extent of 85% of the loans sold to the ARC and thereby does not meet the derecognition criteria as set out in Ind
AS 109. However for balance 15% of the loans transferred against cash, derecognition criteria as set out in Ind AS
109 has been met.
Since the loans and advances have been transferred and the new asset (in the form of Security Receipts) having
substantially different characteristics have been acquired, the Company has derecognised the loans and recognised
the modified assets i.e. Security Receipts under "Investments".

The modified asset i.e. Security Receipts are classified at "Fair Value Through Profit & Loss" (FVTPL) by the
Company as the contractual cash flows of the Security Receipts do not represent for Solely for Principal and
Interest (SPPI) on amount outstanding under the basic lending arrangement.

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company continues
to have continuing involvement.

L




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 315t March 2025
(ANl amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 34: Retirement benefit plan

Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the Indian regulations, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which,
both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to 8 recognised provident fund. The employce contributes
12% of his/er basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount. The Company recognised Rs.16,59,066 (Previous year Rs.5,53,856) for Provident Fund

contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan
The Company has a non-contributory unfunded defined benefit graluity plan, under which every employee who has completed at least five years of s
gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service,

ervice gets a

Based on Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" notified under Section 133 of the Campanies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016, the following disclosures have been made as required by the standard:

A. Amount recognised in the balance sheet 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Present value of defined benefit obligation 77.31,549 1,03,31,548
Fair value of plan assets - .
Asset/(liability) recognized in the balance sheet 77.31,549 1,03,31,548
B. Change in projected benefit obligation 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Opening defined benefit obligation 1,03,31,548 54,26216
Current service cost 10,43,784 11,58,811
Interest cost 7.20,109 3,83,027
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits paid - (1,68,268.00)
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation (43,63,892) 35,31,762
Closing defined benefit obligation 77,31,549 1,03,31,548
C. Change in plan assets 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Opening fair value of plan assets = -
Return on plan assets = =
Actuarial gain/(loss) - -
Benefits paid - -
Employer direct benefil payments - 1,68,268
Benefit payments from employer - (1,68.268)
Closing fair value of plan assets - <
D. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Current service cost 10,43,784 11,58,811
Interest cost on benefit obligation 7,20,109 3.83,027
Past Service Cost = 5
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 17,63,893 15,41,838

&
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)
E. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Actuarial (gains)/losses
- Effect of changes in demographic assumptions = =
- Effect of changes in financial assumptions (38,70,069) 38,19,704
- Effect of experience adjustments (4,93,823) (2,87,942)
Total remeasurements included in other comprehensive income (43,63,892) 35,31,762
F. Expected cash flows for following year 31-Mar-25 3i-Mar-24
Expected contributions / Additional Provision Next Year 10,43,784 11,58,811
Expected total benefit payments
Year | ' 5,85,082 5,37,689
Year 2 5,79.243 5,56,286
Year 3 6,01322 5,75,562
Year 4 595408 6,16,963
Year 5 592376 6,41,711
Next 5 years 30,98,153 35,69,101
G. Assumptions used 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25
Discount rate 6.72% 6.97%
Attrition rate 10% 10%
Expected rate of retumn on assels NA NA
H. Sensitivity Analysis 31-Mar-25 =-Mus-24
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 71,10,448 84.42,623 93,04,115 1,15,34, 478
Salary increase rate (1% movement) 83,83,761 71,48,965 1,13.97.724 93,94,282
Altrition rate (1% movement) 75,74,631 79,07,058 98,29,641 1,09,09,081

Y
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Nixa Fineap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Noies to the standalone financlal statements as a 315t Mareh 2025
(Afl amounts are In Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 361 Contlngent liabilitics, commitments

(A) Contingent Liabilities
Asnt As ol
Particulars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Cnnligg:m Linbilitics
- Income tax matter in dispute 2.51,56,150 2.87.15.130
= Service tax matter in dispute 24,37.200 24,37.200
= GST matter in dispute - 4552228
2,75,93,350 3,57,04,558 |

The Company does not expect any significant liahilities to materialise

(B) Commitments

- Estimated amount of contracts (net of advance) remnining to lie executed on capital account and not provided for as af 31 March 2025 is Rs. Nil (31 March 2024; Rs. Nil},
- Other commitments pertaining to undn itted credits as.at 31 March 2025 is Rs, Nil (31 March, 2024 ; Rs. Nil)

& .




Nixa Finesp Private Limited
(Formerly known as *"Xander Finance Private Limited"

Notes to the standalone fimancinl statements s a1 315t Mareh 2028
(All smounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 37: Related party disclosures

%) List of reluied parties

Holding Company

Company where the directors have significant influence
Xander Advisory (India) Private Limited
VR Dakshin Private Limited

Subsidiary Company
Dalestier Venures Private Limited (Tormerly known as Yuj Home Fimance Private 1imited)

Key managerial personnel during the year:

Mr. Rohan Sikn, Chairman and Director

Mr. Rajesh Jogi, Independent Dircctor

Mr. Tarig Chinoy, Non Exccutive Dircctor

Mr. Varun Gopinath, Exceutive Diroctor (ill May 31, 2023)

Ma. Pumnima Paliwal, Company Secretary (w ¢ I Dicernber 01, 2022 till April 04, 2023)
Ms. Mansi Gandhi, Company Seeretary (w.e.l April 28, 2023)

bl Transactions with related parties

Nixa Capital Management Pic Limited, Singapore (the Helding Company, formerly kiown s *Xander Caiital Managernent Pie Limitad")

articulars

33

Holding company
Buy back of equity shares

Company where the directars have significant influence
Xander Advisors (Indis) Private Limited
Cost incurred/( towards reimb of

Key Managerial Personnel
Remuneration 1o Key Managerial Personniel during the year®

Mr. Rohan Sikri
Buy back of equity sharcs

Mr. Rujesh Jogi
- Sitting focx
- Consultancy Fecs

Mr, Tariq Chinay
« Consultancy Fees

[Mr.Varum Gepinath
- Salarics & wages
- Post employment benefits

Ms. Purnima Paliwal

- Salsrics & wages

- Past employment benefits
Ma. Mainsi Gandhi

- Salancs & wages
- Post employment benefits

3-Mar-24

(6,733))

23,00,000)
3.00,000

9.80,000

563,400
21,600

74,39,00,260

(1.27.440)

19.29.271

20,00,000
5,00,000

12.80,0001

21,13,066
3,600

10,534
300

4.79.520
19,980

* Provision for gratuity and leave encashment is made for the Company as 8 whale and the amounts p

1g 1o the key ial

identified and hence ot included above

€] Balance with related partics

1 is not specifically

31-Mar-28

31-Mar-24

|rlﬂi.:nl-ln'l'm'pm,I

Investment m subsidinry
Company where the directors have significant influence
Xander Advisors (India) Private Limited

12,00,00,000

35,560
2,234

12,00,00,000
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 38: Capital
Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.
However, they are under constant review by the Board.

For details about Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of the Company as required to be disclosed under RBI
Master Directions - Refer Note 43 (a)

Note 39: Loans or advances to related parties

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the
related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

Note 40: Leases

Company as a Lessee

2025

{(Formerly kmown as "Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 315t March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Sel oul below are the carrying amounts of right-lo-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

The Company had leased premises for & period of § years which had been recognised as a "Right to Use" Asset. The said lease expired during the year on September 30,

Particulars Bulldings (leased) Total
As at March 31, 2024 B4.20,730 84,20,730
| Addition : =
Deprecinti §4,20,730 84,20,730
‘As at March 31, 2025 (0 (0)
Set out below are the carrying amounts of Iease liabilities and the movements during the period:

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2014
Opening Balance 1,06,00,374 1,00,66,299
Addition v 3
Accretion of interest 2,59.655 17,86,477
|Payments 1,08.60,028 2,12.52.402
Closing Balance 0 1,06,00374
The Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as under.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
i fter 12
Encticaliny Within 12 months Allesdd Total Within 12 months e Total
months months

Lease Linbilities - z - 1,06.00.374 - 1.06.00374 |.
The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profil of loss:

As al Murch 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 84,20,730 1,68.41,457
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,59,655 1786477
Total t recognised in profit or loss 86,80,385 1,86,27,934

&
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(Furmerty knows s “Xunder Finunce Private Lim)ied”)
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Nate 41: Fair valoe meseurement

1.1 Valustion principle
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vl & The fair valug of financial intruments that sre nol irsded m mn sctive masked 18 detcrmaned umng valusiion lechaigues which maximise the use of chaerrable marked duts and place lmuited relisace o entily specific extimaics 17 sll e gniflcani inpaty
recquired b (nir value an racryabile, the 1t e i bevel 2

Lavel 3: 11 oot or more of the sgnificant inguds iv el basesd ibe marked datn, the o Includend in level 3. Thin ia the case fl Security Heceipts bnclnded in level 3

[ The follewiag tabls shows en mnalysin of inancis] instromends recorded at fivir vlue by Jevel of ie fair vafie hicrarchy

(3] Murch 2013
| Ansets menrmred of folr value Lavuled | AT 5 Levl-d Totai
Inresiments
Security Receipts . - 0K7,294m WA
Mitissl Fumd = - L0, 46,03 647 100 A 03 7
Total Naanclal sasets messared af falr valos . . 1.:51,52,33,139 | 150,333,139
131 Mareh 2004
Assets menvired o fubr valoe Rarveled Lgvel-d Lavel-d LU
Inresiments
Socurily Reseipis . - 104,29 4 AST 1M B 45T
M = 5 = 5
Total Nnanclsl axsets messured st faly ralere . - 19, 84,457 109,398,457

(413 Valunthan rchnlyue

Security Recelpty
Fair vl L o d ensh flow methed, Cath Mews have been projectcal based en the real sifiong frim usderljmg sscis

1.4 Miovessents in Level J Nuencisl instruments messured wi Dr valoe

mmmm.wmdmmﬂ:mm«wlwnmu\.numwanmmwmr-—ha—-wmlulmmumr-m_-mn-u-mm-m
i mmuuwmwumm-.l-u..hpuusmmmk.m-m—-ul.-h-uwmmu-m-muMmWT-thhﬂﬂdﬂ-m—“

fitiomn s 8 resalt of which Bewme bess liquid. Thenefoee, ——— irpata ta caleilste their faie value:
| The following tables shorw the rectnxiliation of he spening ' Lewel 3 Mnancial sascusarst lshi{fies measar o fsr v
- Salen Tramsfers lnia Tranalers from AL March 3025 | Unreatined guins ond
31:Mapds Arwh | Apeti 3024 Parchare e o R =
brnlwnces bneld ui lbe
end af U prlond
Tmvestments
. (19,65,90,894)
Sty Reoe 160,003,053 " 91.47,76,068 P £0.53,19.9%5
| M) Fond : L5 a7 933,000 5 s 484437383 S9674118
Lo (R S M X TR XYL N R R TRT R : A L4802 010 TEXCNENE|
e fnllonwomg Labies show e pocomici b del Level 3 bl tes messtred i fair valuse
¥ Apeil Perchane Sales Tramthen late Tramfers from | A3} March 3034 | Unrvalisesd gaing amd
b - - ";‘!I’: Levedd lassex related to
alamecrs bedd o the
xnd of the period
Investments
: 5 161,00,06,052 $671,11,59
| Socurity Receipis 1712111783 - 102277 701
| Total = 171213378 - 19.22.37.301 . - 1,61,00,96,052 L1
(Total
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41.5 Semitivity of fair valoe measurements 1o changes in unobservable market data

Thmuﬁwhhmﬂmmm|mnmIMM|muunth! fair value measurements i summarised below

Al-Mar-15
Fi able chan, Unfs
Security Receipty ——— -
Senuitivity 1o movement In significant unchscrvable inputs | ¢ underlying cashf
- Increase by 28% A1,25.61.830 . 40,25,24,013 -
- docrones by 29% - (41,25.60.830)] - (40.25,24.013)

41,6 Fair value of financlal insirements not measured at falr value

St out below is a comparison, by elaas, of the earrying ameuints and firr valuss of the Company's financial instruments Uial are not carried at fuir valus in the financial statements. This ble doca ot inchude the fair values of non-fiiancial
navcta and non-fimancial linbilities

3:Mar-25 Fair Value
ation Level1 Levid | Leweld Toual

Finsncial axsety:
Cash nnd cash oquivalents 137,02322 33z . - 337,00.322
Bank balanc other thin cash and eash oquivalents 10,21,096 10,21,036 - - 10,21,036
Loans 14,27,01,639 £ - 14,27,01,639 14.27,01,6%9
Investments 1,08,57,10,742 12.00,00,010 = 93,47,10,732 1.05.57,10,742

Financiul assots 98.49,064 98,49.064 - z 949,064
Hotel fnaclal sryets Laapssn | 16457430 - IOTMIIT | 1342584800
Financial Uabilities:
Trade Pevables 599,194 599,194 - - 500,194
Other Financial liabilities 1241382 32.41.382 - - 3241382
‘Totsl finsncisl lisbilities 38,40,576 3840576 - B IAD,576 |
OfY balance sheet itams 5 . - 9 -
Other commitmenis N . - . -
Total off-halance shest items = - - - -
31-Mar-24 Fair Value

Notianal smasnt Levek1 Ledd | Lewid Toul
| Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,79,54,070 2.79,54,070 - - 2.79,54,070
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 101,71,91,773 1,01,71,91,773 - 101,709,773
Loars 18,36,76,551 - - 18.36,76,551 18,36.76,551
I in Subsidirs 12,00,00,000 12,00,00,000 - - 12,00,60,000
Other Financial asacts 152.01,105 1.52.01.108 15201105 |
Toss Bepechl st 1.36,40.0.499 1.18,03.46,043 - 15.36,76.551 1.36.40.23,490 |
Fimancial liabilibes;
Trade Payables 49193474 49193474 - - 451,93,474
1.29.49 862 1,29.49,162 - - 1.29.49.862

Total financial lisbililies 621,423,336 621433 = C 6.21,43.336 |
OF balaince sheot items % > 3 2 %
Other commitments - - 5 2 &
Total off-by i . . . . -
41.7 gies of financlal b LU d at fair value
Below are the methodal and homs tsed to d i &knluhrﬂ:lbuwlﬂmmlmmnuﬂuhmmwﬁwmldllhr\inhkmswm These fair valwes were calculated for|
mhluu:purpmmlrThhhwnﬁndulogum‘mﬂimnhuulyhlhmmmnbuuﬂuuﬂ.ulldl.wlil’ﬁt&mﬂu hnigy P T d shove
Financial wssets and lisbilities
For financial assets and financinl lisbiliti=s that hove 3 shori-ierm maturity (less than twelve months), the carmying amounts, which are net of impai area imation of their fair value. Such matrumenis include cash and)

batances, trade receivables, balances other than cash and cath equivalents and trade payables without o specific maturity Suﬂ!mmﬂlhwhmﬁnﬁdnlﬂdlonmmﬂmmmM\Gbﬁmﬂklﬂhhﬂ“uﬂh
balance cheet.

Loans end advaaces to customers
[ The fair values of loans snd roceivables are estimated by discourtted cash flow medels
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

(All amounts are In Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025

Credit risk exposure analysis
As at March 31 2025
Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Per portfolio
Loans - - 26,68,50,318 26,68,50,318
Investments 94,00,96,187 = - 94,00,96,187
Break up into:
Per sector
Real estate loan portfolio 52,70,65,646 - 26,68,50,318 79,39,15,964
Corporate loan portfolie 41,30,30,541 - - 41,30,30,541
Per region
Maharashtra 52,70,65,646 - - 52,70,65,646
Kamataka - - 1,21,52,460 1,21,52,460
Delhi/NCR 41,30,30,541 - 25.46,97,858 66,77,28.399
Total 94,00,96,187 - 26,68,50,318 1,20,69,46,505
As at March 312024
Particulars Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total
Per portfolio
Loans - - 32,42,61,177 32,42,61,177
Break up into:
Per sector
Real estate loan portfolio - S 32,42,61,177 32,42,61,177
Corporate loan portfolio = - - -
Per region
Kamatzka . L 1,21,52,460 1,21,52,460
Delhi/NCR - - 31,21,08,717 31,21,08,717
Total - - 32,42,61,177 32,42,61,177
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Mizz Fincap Private Limiied

(Formerly known = " Xander Finance Private Limited”)

Notes o thestandalone {inanclal staiements 2 2131t March 1015
(AN amounts are In Indian Rupess undess othe rwise stated)

41.4 Liquidity risk and funding management

|Liquidity rink in the risk that the Company will encouster difficultics in mesting theobli insed wilh ita financisl lisbilitics that are settled by defivesing cash or other financial assets The Companys approach to mana ging
Hiuidity Is lo emure, ua fir ua pounible, that il will have sulficiens quidiy 1o mest it liabiities when they ee due, undor both normal and strexsed condiljons. mmM;wkmanlwwhmm}’l'
{reputation. Company has i place n Aauei-Lisbility Management Commirice (ALCO) which functions &1 the opemtional il for mansging the Balance Shoet within the periprmance and risk tsid down by the Bosed and Risk
Commities of the Board. ALCO revicws Asset Lishility auntegy snd Balance Sheet managerwent bn relation 1o asect wad liability prafile. ALCO that the objectiver of Hquidiiy aremet by monitaring the gaps in e
v s time buchkels, declding on the source and mix ol Tiabilitics, mulhmlypmﬂkoflu Ill:wulll m:lludhﬁdl'mm Key principles sdoptad in the Compamy's spprouch o managing liquidiy sk include.
l)khllmq lll:mm lummlnmlmhbﬂl wing i de it of balance sheet and cash flow information

portfc ing andrawn bark lincs.

dive ruification and |imits maburity concentrations,

4141, Liquidity ration

Advances io berrowingy ratle

Ji-Mar 1S Ji-Mar-24
Yearend . .

Mumimum during the &l |2 months . .

Minirmum during the last 12 months -
lAmE&ﬂnlmelm 13 monihs - -

45,42, Analysls Iiabilistes by I
[ The tabile below pummanacs (he remaining comtraciusl maturities of fnanclal liabilitics st the reporiing dele. The smounts aro gross di end include i sccrued il he reportin g da
Muturity pariern of liabilities xs st March 31, 2025
Overd manihe & | Overé monibs & | Over | year & up | Overd yrari & up
Partieul, demay Overs Total
i O " i s v upio & months upio | year o Jyears tof years 5L
|Finencial Bahilives
rade paables - 399,194 - - . - - 350,194 |
Other Meancial lubiliva . 1633 179 16,008,103 - 3241382
Total undiscounted financlal llabllitkes . 2331473 m s . . . 3840576
Maturity paoiern of Habilitkes ex al March 31, 204;
Particulars Ondemand  |Lewsthan Imoaths Over Jmonths & | Over émonthu & | Over ] year & up | Overd yean & up Over 5 yesrn Tohal
upio & months upio | year to 3 years oS yaan
- iP1904M - 3 > - - (IR
: 64700 64.77.161 - - . . 1.29.49.862
- 55646.175 8477061 = 5 - = % 2143336 |




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as " Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(ANl amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

42.5 Market risk
Market Risk is the possibility of loss to the Company caused by the changes in the market variables. It is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions (and hence profits and even financial stability) will be ndvtrsely‘aff‘i:t‘:t_ed
by movements in equity and interest rate. Asset Liability Management (ALM) is a part of the overall risk management system at the Company and is focused on Market Risk. It implies examination of all the assets and Ilﬂbllll:.lﬂ
simultaneously on a continuous basis with a view to ensuring a proper balance between funds mobilization and their deployment with respect to their a) maturity profiles, b) cost and c) availability. The Company has a detailed ALM policy
and it adheres Lo the same.

42.6 Interest rate risk
This is the potential negative impact on the Net Interest Income and it refers to the vulnerability of financial condition to the movement in interest rates. Changes in interest rate affect earnings, borrowing costs, value of assets and cash
flow. Earnings perspective (impact on P&L) involves analysing the impact of changes in interest rates on reported earnings and borrowings over the life of the asset or liability. This is measured by measuring the changes in the Net Interest
Income equivalent to the difference between total interest incame and total interest expense due to changes in interest rates. It is preferable to alter the approach of the interest rate policy 1o barrowers depending on the stage of interest rates
in the cycle i.e. in‘a rising interest rate scenario, it is advisable to keep variable lending interest rates and keep fixed lending interest rates in a falling interest rate scenario and vis a versa for borrowings, This is a guiding indicator and may
be adhered to as much as possible while keeping business interests in mind, )
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) on the Company’s statement of profit and loss and equity

31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Market indices Change in Interest rate Impact on profit X Impact on profit
i
before tax Impact on equity G Impact on equity
Interest rate 100 Basis Points down = = - =
s 100 Basis Points Up Z E = .

42.7 Operational risk

Companies are faced with inherent risks arising out of human error, financial fraud and natural disasters. Operational risk, though defined as any risk that is not categorized as market or credit risk, is the risk of loss arising from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events. In order to mitigate this, internal control and internal audit systems are used as the primary means. Operational nisk events are associated with weak links in internal
control procedures. The key to management of operational risk lies in the Company’s ability to assess its processes and establish controls while providing for unanticipated worstcase scenarios. The Company has well laid out
authorization matrix for each of its operational activities and shall adhere to the same. Effective controls have been established within the Company and these are verified by the internal auditors. One of the major tools in managing
operational risk is a well-established internal control system and flow of information, documents and reporting. Accordingly, the Credit Policy has been detailed out to provide a streamlined and process driven method to providing loans.
Each activity from loan sourcing to final disbursement and closure has been clearly spelt out. Further a proper system of monthly reporting 1o the Board of Directors and [nvestors has been established in order to take care of the timely
reporting requirements. ALM Policy further defines the duties of the ALCO and ALCO's reporting requiremnents in order to manage the operational risk. Insurance is also one of the methods to mitigate some elements of operational risk
and has been taken for all the physical assets of the Company.

42.8 Integrated risk

Companies are faced with varied categories of risk such as personnel risk, financial risk, legal risk etc. Thus, integrated risk can be defined as attached with various activities, operations or transactions and with external risks (risks related
to legislative changes etc.) that may affect overall organization. The main objective to identify integrated risk is to protect assets, ensure continuity of organization’s activities and adopting effective risk mitigation strategy. The Company
ensures to manage the integrated risk by identifying all risks that affect the implementation of processes and activities attached to an organizational goal; it can assess the overall consequences and adopt measures depending on the level of]
unceriainty and the existing inherent risk that affects achieving objectives set. Integrated risk mitigation exercise helps to increase efficiency within the organization by administrative or managerial ways, such as better allocation of]
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "' Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 43: Additional Disclosures required by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI')

Additional Disclosures as per the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India in respect of Non-Banking Financial
(Non Deposit accepting or holding) Systemically important (NBFC-NDSI) as under :

The disclosures are based on the Ind-AS financial statements. Accordingly, the corresponding comparative figures for

the previous year have been restated wherever applicable.

Capital funds, risk assets/ exposure and risk asset ratio (CRAR) as at 31 March 2023

b.

C.

Sr.No ]llem 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
I__|CRAR (%) 103.92% 171.16%
2 |CRAR - TierI capital (%) 103.92% 171.16%
3 |CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 0.00% 0.00%
4  |Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital - =
S |Amount raised by issued of Perpetual Debt Instruments z =

Investments

Sr.No |Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1 |Value of investments

(i) Gross value of investments
(a) in India 257,34,29,335 150,17,90,022
_ (a) outside India - -
(ii) Provision for depreciation
(a) in India 8,85,90,446 33,88,05,565
(a) outside India - -
I(iii) Net value of investments
(a) in India 248 ,48,38,890 116,29,84,457
(a) outside India - -
2 |Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
investments
(i) Opening balance 33,88,05,565 =
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year 43,85,455 33,88,05,565
(i1i) Less : Write-off/ write-back of excess provision during 25,46,00,574 -
the year
(i) Closing balance 8,85,90,446 33,88,05,565
Derivatives

The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.

Disclosures relating to Securitisation

The Company has not entered in securitisation transaction during the year and had no outstanding securitisation

transactions for earlier years.




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes to the standalone financial Statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

€. Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

Sr.No |Particulars
(i) [No.of accounts (Borrowers)

(i) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold

(iii) |Apgregate consideration

(iv) [Aggregate consideration realised in respect of accounts
transferred in earlier years

(v) |Aggregate gain/loss over net book value

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

f. Details of Assignment transactions
The Company has not undertaken any assignment transactions in the current and previous year.

g Details of non-performing financial assets purchase / sold

The Company has not purchased /sold any non-performing financial assets in the current and previous year. However
the company has sold two loan accounts to an asset reconstruction company, details of which are disclosed in (e) above.

&
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

h. Exposure
i, Exposure to Real Estate Sector

{Amount in Rs. crores)

Sr.No Category 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-24
n)  |Direct exposure

(1) |Residentinl Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the boower
or that is rented

(i) |Commercinl Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (ofTice buildings, retail space, muhipurpose 66.73 1837
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial
or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development & construction cic.). Exposure would also
include non-fund based (NFB) limils;

(i) |Investments in Mortgage Backed Securitics (MBS) and other securitised exposures -

1| Residentinl, 3 e
2|Commercial Real Estate. = ’
Total Exp to Real Estate Sector 66.73 1837

ii. Exposure to Capital Mari

(Amount in Rs. crores)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in co e debt;
advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other sccurities or on clean basis to individuals for - 5
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of]
uity-oriented mutual funds;
advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of] - E
ity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;
advances for any other purposes (o the extent secured by the collateral sceurity of shares or convertible - =
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
does not fully cover the advances;
secured and unsecursd advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and = -
market makers,
loans sanctioned (o corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or - -
on clean basis for meeting promoler's contribution to the equity of new campanies in anticipation of]
raising resources,

(i
(ii)

(i)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii) _|bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues: - -
(viii) |nll exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both repistered and unregistered) g a
(ix) |others = p

Total Exposure to Capital Market - E

i, Details of financing of parent company producis
Mone

j  Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
The Company has not lent/ invested/ lent and invested in Single Barrower / Single Group of Borrowers in excess of limits prescribed by the RBI.

k. Unsecured Advances _
The Company has not given any unsecured advances apainst the rights, licenses, authorisations ete.

|, Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators ) .
The Company is not registered with any financial sector regulators except with Reserve Bark of India.

m Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators )
No penalties were imposed by the RBI and other regulators during current and previous year.




Formerly known as *'Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st March 2025
AN smounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

n  Provisions and contingencics (shown under the head expenditure in Statement of Profit and Losy):

rhl Fincap Private Limited

{Amount in Rs. crores)

Sr.No. IP. rticulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
1) Provision made towards Income tax =

(i) |Provision for bonus = a
(1)  |Provision for Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) = =

(ivl  |Provision for gratuity 024 0.15
{v)  IProvision for leave encashment 013 (0.02)
(vi) _ |Provision for expected credit losses (excluding provision towards NPA) 044 (034)
(vii) _|Provision towards NPA (1.64) 6.03

{vin) |Provisions for depreciation on lnvestment -

0. Draw Down from Reserves
There has been no draw down from reserves during the current year and in the previous year.

p. Concentration of Advances, Exposurcs and NPAs

i) Concentration of Advances
{Amount m Rs. crores)

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 107.84 18.37
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 100% 100%
i) Concentration of Exposures

(Amount in Rs. crores)
[Particulars 31-Mar-28 31-Mar-24
Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 107 84 1837
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest b ! s1o Total Exp on borrowers / customers 100% 100%
ili) Concentration of NPAs

(Amount in Rs crores)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-}4
Total of Exposures 1o lop four NPA accounts* 14.27 18.37

iv) Sector-wise NPAs (% of NPA to Total Advances in that sector)

[Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

| Agniculture & allied activities - -
MSME =
Corporale borrowers 1427 1837
Services - -
Unsecured personal loans I =
Auto loans - -

Other personal loans - %

v) Movement of NPAs (Amount in Rs. crores)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Gy |NetNPAs to Net Advances (%) 13.18% 100.00 %
(i) |Movement of NPAs (Gross):
(a)  |Ooening balance 2.4 3505
(b)  |Additions during the year . S
(c)  |Reductions dunng the year (loans written-off) 5.75 262
(d) _ [Closing balance 26.68 3243
(i) |Movement of Net NPAs
() |Opening balance 1837 27.02
(b) Additions dunng the year - .

(c) Reductions during the vear 4.10 B65
1d sing balance 1427 18.37
(ivi  |Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

(8) Opening balance 14.06 803
(b) Provisions made during the year - 6.03

(c)  |Wnie-off / wnite-back of excess provisions 1.65 B
id) Closing balance 12.41 14.06




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
{Formerly known a3 "Xander Finunce Private Limited")
Notes to the standalone financial sta a3 st J1st March 2025
{All amounts are in Indisn Rupees unless otherwise stated)
i) Reconciliation of Asset Classification as per provisions required under Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning {'IRACP'") and impairment
allowances a3 per Ind AS 109
Loss Allowsnces Difference between
Asset Classification as per RBI | Agset Classification Nt:nmlc“mn:“ {Provisions) as Net Carrying thhn:;:qg:’rd Ind AS 109
Norms anperind AS 109 [ AU SR PN o pived under tnd | Amount e e pravisions and
AS 109 e IRACP norms
() 2) (3) 4) {3)=13)-{4) 16) (7)=(4) - (6)
Performing Assets
Is Stage 1 94,00,9,187 4385455 93,57,10.732 17.60,385 625,070
Suge 2 - - = : ‘
|Sut 94,00,%, 187 43,85,445 91,57,10,732 37,6038 6,215,070
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
|Substandard Stage 3 - - - -
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage = = = = 3
1 to 3 years Staged 26,6850, 18 12.41,48.679 14.17.01.638 8.00.55.095 4.40.91,584
More than 3 vears Stage 3 * - 0 - =
Phlom for doubtful 26,68,50,317.61 12.41,48.679.15 14,27,01,63836 8,00.55,095.28 4,40,93,584
5 Stage 3 - - a -
Subtotal for NPA - 5 - &
(Other items such es guarantees, loan 5
commitments, etc. which are in the Stage 1 X, E & 3
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
. Stage 2
under current Income Recognition, . & x - -
Asset Classification and Provisioning
Stage 3
(IRACP) norins = . - - -
Subtotal * - - -
Stage | 94.00.96,187 43,85 455 93,57,10,732 37.60,385 6,125,070
Total Stagel - - - = =
Stage ) 16,68.50,318 12 41.48,679 14,17,01.638 8.00,55,095 4.40,93,584 |
Total 1,20,69,46,505 12,8534,134 1,07.84,12,371 8.38,15.480 4,47.18,654 |
q. Owerseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiariessbroad)
The Company has not i d in assets in the current and previous year. There are m outstanding investments from earlier years.
r. OM-balance Sheet SPV13p ed by the Company
The Company has no off-balance sheet SPV in the current and previous year,
s, Disclosure of Complaints
The C y has not received any ¢ laints in the current and previous year,

-
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 315t March 2025
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 44: Public disclosure on Liquidity Risk Management of the Company

(1) Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
(Amount in Rs. crores)

Number of Significant
8r. No.
0 Couitorantics Amount % of total deposits | % of total borrowings
1 0 - 0% 100%

Note : A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more
than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's,

(i) Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs. crores and % of total deposits)
The Company is a non-deposit 1aking systemically important non banking finance company and does not accept any deposits from the public
(iii) Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. crores and % of total borrowings)

(Amount in Rs, crores)
Type Sanctioned Drawn Outstanding % of total borrowings |

(iv) Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product
(Amount in Rs. crores

Name of the Instrument Amount % of total borrowings

0.00

A "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more
than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs

(v) Stock Ratios:
(a) Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
The Company has not raised any funds through issuance of Commercial Papers (CPs) and hence this disclosure is not applicable.

(b) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
The Company does not have any Non-convertible debentures with original maturity of less than one year and hence this disclosure is not applicable

(c) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
{Amount in Rs. crores)

Short term liabilities
(Amount in Rs. Crores) % of Total Liabilities % of Total Assets % of Public Funds
125 0.39% 0.39% 0.00%

The above stated ‘Other short-term liabilities' do not include cash credit facilities.

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
The Company has a board approved Asset - Liabilities Management Palicy which outlines various parameters for Liquidity Risk Management.

&
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Nixn Fincap Private Limited
(Farmerly known ms " Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the standalone finsncial statements &a at 3151 March 2025

(ANl s maunts are in Indian Rupees unless othernise stated)

Note 45: Earnings and expenditure In foreign curvency (an accrusl busls)
During the year, the Company has incurred loreign currency expenditure of Ra 7,217,320 (Previous year Rs 7,18,199) The Comparry did not have amy foreign exchange eamings

Nate 46: Ned dividend remiited In fareign exchange
Year of remittance (ended en) March 31, 1015 March 31, 1024
Period 1o which it relnles 1 Apnl 2024 10 31 IMJMI_U!I
March 2025 March 2024
| Nusmber of noft-resident shareholders . -

Number of equity shares held on which dividend was due
Amauni remitted (in USD) A
Amount remitted (in INR) -

Amount remitiad durmg the year ended March 31, 2025 is net of applicable witholding taxes

Note 47: Segment Information
The Company 1 primarily engaged in the business of financing and sccardingly there are no separnie reporiable segmenis m per Ind AS 108 dealing with Opersting segment.

Mote 48; Dues payable 1o Micrs, Small and Medium Enterprises
There are no amounts that need 1o be disclored in secordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the “MSMED') pertmmmg 1o micra or small

enierprises, as no supplier has intimated the Caimpany aboul its stalus & micro or small entery o ity regi with the approp under MSMED.
As st As i
Particulars March ) £ March 31, 2024

Principal and imterest amount remaining unpaid
| Interest due thereon remaining unpaid

Note 49:
| The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code’) relating to employes benefits dunmg empl and past-emp benefiis received Presidential ussent in Seplemher 2020, The Code has
lmpaamnmmmormunm,unm.mmmuummumhmrreummhmmnndmuurmmmmrmnnhwmwmw-m
..mﬂwﬂuhwﬂmtudamnnmmmnmmwluwrdwnlmdlmuiwwgmﬂnadebmmmm

Note 50: Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP)
The Company does not have sny Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP),

Note 51; Inlangible surely under development
| The Company does noi have any Intangible assets under development.

Nate 51t Details of Benami Property held
The Company does not hold uny benami property under the Benam: Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1984 (45 of |988) and rules made thereunder

Nete 53: Wiilul Defaulter
The Company is not declared o willl defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

Nate 54: Relationship with Struck ofT Companies
The Company does ot have any transactions with the companies siruck ofl under section 248 of Companies Act. 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

Note §5: Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Note 56: Utitisation of Borrowrd funds and share premium
The Group has not advanced o lowned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 1o any other personis) or entty(ies), mcluding

foreign entities {intermediarios)

Note 57: Events Occuring afler the reporting date
The Board of Directors a1 its meeting held an 30th April, 2025 spproved buy-back of equity shares amounting o INR 45 crares subject 10 approval of the members of the Company
[Mlx.immWyAhd:mc.uxdmmmiunmlndlnnnbmmaupduanNR1!illwqwﬂmmmwFﬁu].mbuyMwunﬂmdwhlquiu
sharsholders of the Company in proportion of the shares held by each shareholder.

halders’ approval was obtained on May 6, 2025
The said buy-back was made out of the Securities Fremium account. The buyback of equity shares commenced on May 9, 2025 and was completed on May 15, 2025

The Board af Directors al its meeting held on 0dth June, 2025 approved the Capital of the C subject 1o approval of Sharcholders and NCLT 1o reduce the present ssued,
|subscribed and paid up equity shore capital of the Company comprising of 9,63,46,442 (Nine Crore Sixty Five Lakhs Forty Six Thousand Four Hundred and Forty Two Only) equity shares
of 2 10/~ (Indian Rupees Ten Only) cach amouniing {0 € 96,54,64,420/ (Indian Rupecs Ninety Six Crore Fifty Four Lakh Sixty Four Thousand Four Hundred and Twenty Only) 1o
5,26,86,792 (Five Crores Twenty Six Lakhs Eighty Six Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety Two) equity shares of T 10 (Indian Rupees Ten Only) amounting 1o T 32,68,67,920 (Indian
Rupess Fifty Two Crores Sixty Eight Lakhs Sixty Seven Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty Only) by cancelling and extinguishing, in sggregale upto 4,38,59,650 (Four Crores Thirty)
Eight Lakhs Fifty Nine Thousand Six Hundred and Fifly ) equity shares having face value of ¥ 10 {Indian Rupees Ten Only) each. for a price at ® 28.50 (Indian Rupees Twenty Eight and
fifty paise Only) each for a consideralion aggregating upto 1,25,00,00,025 {Indisn Rupees One Hundred Twenty Five Crares and Twenty Five Only) e, 45.43% of the total ssued,
|subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Compuny.

The matter was approved by the Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary Genaral Meeting held on June 09,2025

The Company is in the procass of filing the Capital Reduction application to Natianal Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (NCLT).

Note 58: Previews year figures

Figures for the previous year have been reg d ged or reclassified, where v 1o conform to the current year's classification
For C S NANDA & ASSOCIATES For and an behalf of the Baard of Directors of
ICAI Firm's Registrationt o 010§ 12N Nixa Fincap Private Limited '
(Chartered Accountants

N — )

|
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Nitesh Kumar Goyal Tariq Chinoy ajesh Jagl
Partner Director Director
Membesship No.532254 DIN Na.: 04830666

DIN Noi; 03341036 w

UDIN ' 2446322 5URMTA LUt e
—
o
Dipak Agarwal Hmi mudhi
Chiel Executive Oficer Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi Place, Mumbal

Date - June 23, 2025 Date - June 232028




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerty known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")
Annexure te the standalone financis) statements as a0 31 March 102¢
(AT smounts are in Indlan Rupees unless s therwise staled)

to the Nnancisl s

under Masier Directlan - Non-Banking Financisl Company - Sysfemicafly
Impertant Nen-Depesit taking Company and | Depssit aking Campany (Reserve Bank) l;lfullcu. 1016 "

Particulsn

Annl
31 March 1025

A al
31 March 2024

Lisbiltles Side

Leans and umw avalled 'by lh nan-
banking [ fve  of]

Amount Amount Overdie

Interest nccrued thereon hl ut pald:

Amaunt Amount Overdus
Outstanding

(a) Debentures : Secured
¢ Unsecured

( Other than falling within the meaning of public
deponit)

(b) Deferred Credits
(c ) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and bormawing

(¢) Commercial Paper

(D Other Loans (Cash Credit’ Working Capital
Demmand Loan Facilities)

Ansets Side

Amount Outitanding |

2

Bresk-up of Loans and Advances Including
bills receivables [other than these included in
(4) below]

[8) Secured
(b) Unsecured

14,27,01.639

| Amount Outsisnding |

18.36,76,551

3

Bresk up of Leased Assets anil stock on hire
and sther mssets counfing towsrds AFC

(i) Lease mssots including lease rentals under
sundry deblars

(#) Financial lease
(b) Operating lesse

(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under
sundry deblors

(a) Assets on hire
() Repossessed Assets

(iii) Other loans counfing lowards AFC|
nctivities

(#) Loans where assets have been repossessed

|t} Loans ather than (a) above

A_

/ .




Nixs Fineap Private Limited
(Formerly known us "Xander Finance Privale Limited")

A In the dalene fl ns 0l 31 March 2025
(AN amounts are in Indlan Rupees unlens otherwise siated)

Sehedule to the M t 3 required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systernically
Impartant Nen-Deposit taking Company and Depesii taking Company (Reserve Bank) Direcilons, 2016

4)  |Break-up of Investments Amaunt Outsianding Ameunt Cutstanding
Current Investmenty

1. Quoied,

(1) Shares ; (a) Equity s
(b) Preference

{ii) Debentures and Bands
{iii) Units o mutual funds 101,460,647
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify) -
2. Unquoled

(1) Shares | (a) Equity o
(b) Preference =

(i) Debentures and Bands
(ili) Units of mutunl funds
(iv) Government Securities -
(¥) Others (please specify) 2
Leng Term invesiments
1. Quoled:

(1) Shares | (n) Equity -
(b) Preference -

(i) Deberitures and Bonds -
(i) Units of murual funds - 5
(iv) Govemment Secuntiss

(v) Others (please specify) =

2. Unguoted

(1) Shares * (a) Equity 12,00,00,010 12,00,00,000
(b} Preference -

(i) Debentures and Bonds 93,57,10,732

(i) Units of mutual funds - =
(iv) Govemment Securitizs - -

{¥) Others 41,4524, 501 1.04.29 54,457




Nixs Finesp Private Limited

(Formerly known s "Xander Finance Private Limited")
A 19 the standalone flasnelsl #1381 31 March 2005
(ANl ameunts are in Indinn Rupees unless otherwise stated)
Schedule to the Mnancial stat a1 required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemicall
Importsnt Non-Depesit taking Company and Depasit taking Campany (Reserve Bank) Directians, 2016 1
3) |Borrewer group-wise classification of sssets Mnanced s n {2) and (3) above
Calegory Amouni net of provislans a3 st Amaun! net of provitlons as at
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Secured Unsecured Tatal Secured Unsecured Total
1. Relsted Parties
(0) Subsidinnes - - . - £ :
(b) Companies in the same group - - - = = 3
() Other relnted parties = P 2 o = 2
Tolal - P - = = .
2 Other than related parties 14,2701,639 - 142701639 18.36.76,551 * 18,36,76 551
Less' Provision for sub-standard aesets - - - - - .
Total 14,27,01,839 - 14,2701 639 18.36,76 551 - 18,36,76 551
Tetal 14,27,01,639 - 14,27,01,639 183676551 - 18,367,551
6) |Invester group-wise classification of all As st Asat
|Investments (curvent and lang term) in shares 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Categary Market Velue / Break up or fair value Book Value Markel Value / Break up or fair value | Book Value (Net
or NAV (Netal of NAV of Provisions)
Provisions)
1. Relnted Parhies
() Submidianes 12.00,00,000 12,00.00,000] 12.00,00.000 12,00,00,000
(b) Companies m the same group E - : y
(¢) Other related parties - = " .
2, Orher than relaled parties 1,35,02,35,243 1,35,02,35,243 104,29,84 457 104,29,84,457
Tita) 147,02,35,243| 1470295243 116,198,457 1,16 51
7} | Other Infarmation
Asst Asat
20 March 2025 | 31 March 1024
(i} |Gross Mon-Performing Assets
(a) Reloted ponties > -
|jb) Other than related pares 26.08.50.718 ITAL61I1TT
(i) |Met Non-Performing Assets
(a) Relnted parties - .
(b) Other than relsted parties 14.27.01.638 | 18.56.76.531
(i) _|Assets acquired in satisfaction of debi 15.19.65 555 15.39.65 535

ForC18 ’Nm‘_&':i ‘ASSOCIATES
ICAI Firm's Registration number: §10912N

Fartoer
Membership No.532254

UDww! 266239

Place: New Deftu
Dale:- June 23, 2025

For and an behalf of the Board of Directers of

Niza Fincap Privaie Limited
9
Mk

‘ . r'd
Tarig Chiney Rajesh J
Direclor Director =
DIN No.: 0BRI0666 DIN No.: 03341036 L]
Dipak Agarwal Mansi Gandhi
Chief Executive Oficer Company Secretary
Place; Mumbai
Date- June 23, 2025




CJ S Nanda & Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Office : 7/24, South Patel Nagar, New Delhi-110008 INDIA
Tel. :011-4004 6896-95-94, 011-4914 7863
E-mail : mail@cacjsnanda.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Nixa Fincap Private Limited (Formerly known as “Xander Finance
Private Limited”)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Nixa Fincap Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company"), and its subsidiary (the Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred as "the Group") comprising of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flows Statement, and the Consolidated
Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the Information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the "Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31. 2025.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures performed by us and other auditors of
components not audited by us, as reported by them in their audit reports furnished to us by the management,
including those procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

S.No

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures included, among
others. the following:

Impairment of Loans and Advances (Expected
Credit Loss Allowance)
All the loans and advances accounts as on 31st
March 2025 have been classified as Non-
Performing Assets (NPAs). Due to the significance
of management’s judgment in estimating
impairment provisions in accordance with the
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 109 — Financial
Instruments, and considering the material impact of
such provisions on the financial statements, this
area involves a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. Accordingly, this has been considered
a key audit matter.

i) Evaluated the reasonableness of the
Management estimates by understanding the
process of ECL. Estimation and tested the
controls around data extraction validation as
per IND AS 109.

ii) Tested the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109.

Fair valuation of Security Receipts
The Company has made investments in Security
Receipts and Mutual Funds, which represent a
significant portion of the total assets of the balance
sheet. These investments are classified at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) 109 — Financial Instruments, as the contractual
cash flows do not meet the Solely Payments of
Principal and Interest (SPPI) criteria. The valuation
of these investments involves the use of significant
management judgment and estimation.
Accordingly, this area has been identified as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures, among others, included
the following:

i) Evaluated appropriateness of the Fair
Value or NAV of Security Receipts, Mutual
Fund based on the valuation.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Audifor's Report thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report 2024-25 of the Holding Company. but does not include the
Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our respounsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

yoquired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specifies under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate Internal Financial Controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group arc responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
Financial Reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
uccordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
orerror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate Internal Financial Control system in place

and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

f. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
v/ithin the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial information we have audited, to
express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of such entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we arc the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
wie matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companics (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements:



b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other

auditors:

) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who
are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group's companies,
is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act:

f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of such controls of the Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report.

) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid /provided by the
Holding Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Subsidiary Company for the
year ended March 31, 2025.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on Separate
Financial Statements as also the other Financial Information of the subsidiary:

i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial
position of the Group in its Consolidated Financial Statements. Refer Note No. 36 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements;

ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

ii1) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, if any, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
I'rotection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary, incorporated in India and to the extent applicable during
the year ended March 31, 2025,

iv) (i) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary has represented to us and the auditors of the
Subsidiary Company that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
i1 any other persons or enfities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, that the
Intermediary shall;

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.
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(ii) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary, has represented to us and the auditors of the
Subsidiary Company, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company
or its subsidiary from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent Company or any of its subsidiary shall:

a. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiary, nothing has come to my/our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(¢) contain any
material misstatement.

v)  (a) The Company did not declare or paid any dividend during the year and accordingly, reporting under Rule
11(f) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 is not applicable.

(b) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by its subsidiary and accordingly, reporting under Rule
11(f) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 is not applicable.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Companies covered under the consolidated financial
statements have used accounting software for maintaining their books of account, which includes the feature of
recording an audit trail (edit log). However, this feature was not operational for all relevant transactions during the
year and was enabled only from 27th May 2024. Further, for the period from 27th May 2024 to 31st March 2025,
during which the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with during the course of our audit."

For C J S Nanda & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number. 010912N)

A

Nitesh Kumar Goyal
Partner

(MRN. 532254)

Place: New Delhi

Date: 23, June 2025

UDIN: 25532254BMJALI3537



Annexure "A" referred in paragraph I under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements to the Members of the

respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(*CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the
Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports
issued by us for the Company as well as for its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements,
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports



Annexure "B" referred in paragraph I under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements to the Members of the

respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Nixa fincap Private Limited as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated
in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls based on the Internal Control over
Financial Reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable Financial Information,
7 3 required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") and the Standard on Auditing, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and decmed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companics Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an understanding
¢ f Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud

Or €1ror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms
of their report is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

A company's internal financial control over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial
Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of Financial Reporting and
the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting with reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) Pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or fimely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial
Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Confrols over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Finencial Reporting with reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting with
reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company
and its Subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects.
adequate Internal Financial Controls System over Financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial
Statements and such Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these consolidated
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the Internal Control over Financial
Reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For C J S Nanda & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number. 010912N)

e

Nitesh Kumar Goyal
Partner

(MRN. 532254)

Place: New Delhi

Date: 23, June 2025

UDIN: 25532254BMJAJI3537



'Nisa Fineap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

(All amounts are in Indian Rupces unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
BAotae Nows 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
[ ASSETS
1 Finanecial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 84,379,900 30,938,956
Bank balance othier than cash and cash equivalents 4 71,021,036 1,142,111.516
Loans 5 169,701,639 183,676,551
Investments 6 2.364,838,890 1,042,984,457
Other financial assets 7 9.864.064 15216,105
2.609,805.529 2414927585
2 Non-financial assots
Current tax assets (net) 8 209,867,343 199,212,165
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 118,832,366 185,713,932
Property, plant and equipment 10 1,034,123 10,687,689
Intangible assets 1 188,107 392,281
Other non financial assels 12 187,746,500 204,448,977
S517.608.43% 600,455,044
Total Assets 17.473.968 3.015.382.629
Il LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
I Financial linbilities
Payables
Trade payables 13
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) wnmmgdwofmmomm micro enterprises and small 621,298 49,103 474
enterprises
Other financial liabilities 14 3,512,554 13,260,362
4133852 HZ 453,830
2 Non-financial liabilitics
Current tux liabilities (net) 15 724,674 816,153
Provisions 16 9,724,723 11,047,057
Other non-financial linbilities 17 11012237 15.806.337
21,461,634 27,669,547
3 Equity
Equuty share capilal 18 1,123,359,160 1,123,359,160
Other equity 19 2068.519.322 L8019 0RA
3.191.878.482 2.925,259.246
Total Liabilities and Equity 3.217.471.968 3.015,382.629
Summary of significant accounting policies 23
he aceompanving notes aie an mepral pan of the finaneial statements

As pr_our repait of even dafe

For CJ S NANDA & ASSOCIATES
ICAI Firm's Registration number: 010912N
Chartered Accountants

Nitesh Kumar Goyal
Partner

Membership No.532254
UDIN - 25532254BMJA 113537

Place; New Dethi
Date.- June 23, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known ay "Xander Finance Private Limjted")

Tariq Chinoy

Director Director

DIN No.: 08830666 DIN No.: 03341036
Dipak Agarwal Mansi G¥hdhi
Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai

Date:- June 23, 2025




Nivit Fincap Private Limited

{Farmerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Consolidared Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 3151 Marceh 2025
(Al amounty are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Year ended For the Year ended
Faisdt siand 31 Vigr 2028 3 Mar2024 |
Revenue from operations
(i) Interest income 20 95,063,621 63,983,859
(ii) Other operating income 2] 252,255,156 15,937,417
(iii) Met gain on fair value changes n 73.592.426 9,776,445
" Total revenue from operations 421.315,203 80.697.721
(I1)  Other income 23 80 116.269 64,657,369
(Il 'Lotal income {1+ 1) 501,431,472 154.355.090 |
E.’“”"
(i) Finanoe cost 24 268,887 1,849,872
(i) ‘Net loss on fair value chanpes 25 = 230,752,323
(iif) Tmpairment of Gnancial assets 26 (10,381.695) 56,874,398
(iv) Employee benefit expenses 27 52,796,854 36,547.075
(v} Depreciati ization and impai 28 9,162,871 17.510.731
(vi) Ofher axpenses 29 112467.645 138,042,727
(IV)  Total expenses {(IV) 164.314.562 501,577,130
V) Profit hefore tax 337,116,910 (347.222.046)
(VD)  Taxexpense:
(1) Current tax 7,960,000 1.971.826
(2) Delerred tax . 63.783.262 (73.741,028)
(3) Earlier years adjustments 14,359.296
(vir)  Profit for the year 263.353.648 1280.812,139)
(11}  Other comprehensive income
A (i) ltems that will not be elassified to profitor loss
- Actuarial gain/(loss) on gratuity valuation 4.363.892 (3.531,763)
Tax o above {1.0u8.304 ) HERATS
Subtotal {A) 3.265.588 i1.047 189
B (i) Trems that will be classified to profit or loss (specifly items end smounrs) -
{ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B) =
Other comprehensive income (A + B) 32n5.588 12.642.859)
(IX)  Total comprehensive income for the year 266,612,236 (292455.028)
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of equity share Ra. 10 each)
Basic 30 234 t251)]
Diiuted 234 | (.51}
Summary of signlficant accounting policies 2.3
The aceor i notes sre un el past of the financial statements

As per aur repurt of even ate

Far € I § NANDA & ASSOCIATES
TCAI Firm's Registeation number: 010912N
Chartered Accuuntants

N0

Nitesh Kumar Goyal

Partner

Membership No 532254

UDIN - 25532254BMJIAJI3537

Place; New Delhi
Date:- June 23. 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nixa Fincap Private Limited

fFormerly known ax "Xander Finance Private Limied ™)

(—l"".“

13—
Tariq Chinoy
Director
DIN No - O8R3il666

NN Noo 03341036

5

Dipak Agarwal
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumba
Date:- June 23, 2025

\\M__%/

Tansi Gaadhi
Compuny Sceretary




Nixa Fineap Private Limived

(Formerly known as " Xander Finance Private Limited")

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 315t March 2025
(Al amounts are in Indisn Rupees unless otherwise stated)

LIDEN - 25532254BMIANI353T

Place New Delhi
Dite - June 23, 2025

ot -

Dipak Agarsial
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbul
Date: June 212025

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Cash flow from Operating activities
Prufit before tax as per the statement of profit and loss 341440802 (350.753.509)
Audjustment for
E<pected credil loss on loans (10.335.047) 56,874,398
F :pected credit loss on investments 4385455
wepreciation and amortization 9,162,871 17,510,731
Interest on fixed deposits {41.630.870} (60,282 441)
Interest income-unwinding uf security deposit 238,367 (674.231)
Interest on lease lability 259,655 1.786.477
Sale of property, plant ond equipment 1,654,737 521681
Net gainJoss on fair value changes (59.676.316) 250.752.323
Employee Stoak Option Plan (ESOP) reserve - 14485244
Operating profit before working capital changes 239,438,754 189,261,115}
Movement in working capital
Inurense © (Decrease) in other financial Hubilitics 852566 923,800
Inerense / (Decrease) in other non- financial labilities (4.794.100) 11,920,304
| Inereaie | (Decrease) in trade payables (48.572.176) 35,416,204
Inerense ¢ (Decroase) in provisions (1,322.334) 4,697.612
(Increase) - Decrease in leans 30.410.858 513.357,535
(Increase) / Deorease in financial assets (32,448,044) (B12.552.427)
{Inerease) « Degrease in other non- financial assets AT AT 74.124.959
Cash Used in operations (39.170.953)) (172112018
Less:  Dircer taxes paid i Net of rofunds] (18 726,657) 11371739
Net Cash lram/ it A | 181,54 Igd_.!_ 150.0 85
Cash flow from Investing aclivities
Purchase of property, plant and inciuding capital work m progness and capital advances (1,031 W0y (8:175)
Sale of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress and capital advances T2.040
Proceeds from investments 2.198,050.436 102.237.701
PPurchuse of investments (2.355.961.813) -
i 'mﬂmﬂu.'ddluglla AL al0.870 o JH) 441
Net Cash from /Aused) for Investing activities B 117,340,370 162,51 1.967 |
Cash flow from Financing activities
Fayanen of lease rent (10.860.030) (21.252.402)
By back of shares 17 38,000 N0
Net Cash from/ (usedd) in Financing activities c 10,560,030 (771.352.702)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (AX(By+( C ) 53,440,944 (855 5400, 133)
Cash and Cash Equivatents at the beginning of ihe period _ 0,938 950 BE.TTH.080
Cash and Cash Eyuivalents at the end of the perind B4.379,600 30,938.957
Camponents of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the cad of the period:
- Cash in hand 14,086 7790
- Cheques in hand
- Balance witl banks
- m Curent secounts 4.870.284 10.9206,332
- in fixed deposils 44553 20h 008 K4t
84,379,900 30,9395
Summary of significant accounting policies 23
The ax nying notes are an miegral pan of the financial statenents
As per our report of even dale
For € .J 8 NANDA & ASSOCIATES For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm's Registration number: 010912N Nixa Fineap Private Limited
Chartgred Acetuntants (Formerly known as "Nandor Finance Private d i)
,J/’V"’\ a T \ \,,(1;
Nitesh Kumar Goyal Tariq Chinoy Jugi
Partoer Director ur
INembership No.532254 DIN No ; 08830666 IN No 03MTU30

Company Secretary
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited"”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate Information

Nixa Fincap Private Limited (Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited™) ('the Company’)
(‘the Parent Company”) was incorporated on January 10, 1997 under the provisions of the Corpanies
Act, 1956 as a private limited company. The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(‘the RBT’) as a non-deposit accepting systemically important non-banking financial company or
NBFC-ND-SI under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company is engaged in the business of
providing loans to corporates and other activities associated with lending.

Balestier Ventures Private Limited (‘BVPL”) ('the Company) (formerly known as "Yuj Home Finance
Private Limited") was incorporated on March 15, 2018. The principal activity of the company is
advisory and consultancy business. The Company has commenced business operations during the year
under review.

The audited consolidated financial statements were subject to review and recommendation of Audit
Committee and approval of Board of Directors. On June 23, 2025, Roard of Directors of the Company
approved and recommended the audited financial statements for consideration and adoption by the
shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.

2. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions’) and nolification for Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standard vide circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10. 106/2019-20
dated 13 March 2020 (‘RBI Notification for Implementation of Ind AS’) issued by RBL The
Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statements of the Parent company and
Subsidiary Company (hereinafter collectively referred to as the *‘Group®).

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgements, accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the catrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Group are discussed in Note 2.4.18 -
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) except when otherwise indicated.

2.1. Presentation of financial statements

The financial statcments of the Group arc preseuted in order of liquidity and in accordance with
Schedule I1I (Division IIT) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA). An analysis regarding recovery or seftlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in

Note 34. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when,
there 18 an uncondiuondl legally enlorceabie right 10 ollset e recogniscd amounts withuut being

contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances.
i.  The normal course of business
ii. The event of default
iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Group and/or its counterparties
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.2, Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.3. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and
the Subsidiary Company (from the date control is gained), being the entity that it controls. Control is
evidenced where the investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability 1o affect those returns through its power over the investee. Power is
demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly
affect the entity’s returns. The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Parent Company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the Subsidiary Company to align the accounting policies in line with accounting policies
of the Parent Company. The Parent Company holds the entire shareholding in the Subsidiary Company
and there are no contractual arrangements which rebute the control of the Parent Company over its
Subsidiary Company. Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated financial statements include results of the subsidiary of Xander Finance Private
Limited (Parent Company), consclidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’.

| Name of the Company Countryof | Proportion of Consolidated as I

. Incorporation ownership as at

' - ! reporting date J

| Balestier Ventures Private Limited India 100% * | Subsidiary
(formerly known as Yuj Home |

Finance Private Limited) a !
* Out of the above shares, 1 share is being held by one director in the capacity as a nominee

Figures for preparation of consolidated financial statements have been derived from the audited
financial statements of the respective companies 1n the Group

2.4, Significant accounting policies

2.4.1 Revenue from operations

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue includes the following:
(i) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount

of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified and measured at
FVTPL.

N
N
\




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
{Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
¢. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with
the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net
amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset. -

(ii) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets (including investments) classified as far
value through the profit or loss (“FVTPL™) (refer Note 23 and Note 25), held by the Group on the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In case there is a net gain in the aggregate,
the same is recognised in “Net gain on fair value changes” under Revenue from operations and if there

is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses™ in the statement of Profit and Loss.
Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt

instruments measured at FVOCI is recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified at amortised cost is
presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Other operational revenue

Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

2.4.2 Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities can be termed as {inancial instruments.
2.4.2.1 Classification of financial instruments
The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Group's
business model for managing financial assets.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in Statement of profit and loss
or other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial Assets
(i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

These financial assets comprise bank balances, loans, trade receivables, and other financial assets,
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Financial assets with contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates and represent
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash flows are measured
at amortised cost.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or a financial liability.

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments

Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where
they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at fair value, Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income (a separate component of equity). Impainnent losses or
reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Upon
disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss. As at the reporting date the Group does not
have any financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments are generally accounted for as at fair value through the profit and loss
account unless an irrevocable election has been made by management to account for at fair value
through other comprehensive income Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument

basis.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income for equity instruments are not subsequently
transferred to profit or loss. Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
a) Investments (including Security receipts and equity shares );
b) Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and
¢) debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they
arise.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for selling
or repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not designated
i a qualifying hedge relationship. As at the reporting date the Group does not have any financial
instruments measured held for trading.

Financial Liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair
value through the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss such as derivative labilities,
(i) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR,

(ii) Undrawn loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the
Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan
commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements. As at the reporting date the Group does not
have any undrawn loan commitments.

2.4.3 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
2.4.3.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer. when the terms and conditions
have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference
recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been
recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes unless
the new loan is deemed to be credit-impaired at the origination date. If the modification does not result
in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognition. Based
on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Group records a modification gain or
loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

2.4.3.2. Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset or a part of financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial asset have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred
the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. The Group has transferred the financial
asset if, and only if, either:

i.  The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset;

o

ii. It retaing the rights to the cach flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

i, The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
ii. The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

5
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and
without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues
to be recognised only to the extent of the Group’s continuing involement, in which case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

2.4.3.3 Derecognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

2.3.4.3. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
only if there is an enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts with an intention to settle on
a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.4.4 Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the ECL principles

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets (including non-
fund exposures) that are measured at amortised costs or at fair value through other comprehensive
income account.

The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for the following
categories of financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss:
i, debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
meome;
. loan commitments; and
tit. financial guarantee contracts.

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss. Lifetime ECLs are the
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default cvents ever the cxpeoted lifc of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLSs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective
basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Group has

classified its loan portfolio into Corporate lending and Real estate lending.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of cach reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by

b



Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Group does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. If
a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past due (DPD)
is applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Group categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stage 1
All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or

that have a low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The Group classifies all standard advances and advances up to 1 month
default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and
the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2,

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit impaired are classified under this stage. More than 1 monih due is considered as significant
increase in credit risk. Further, one-time restructuring of loan accounts allowed by RBI vide circular
resolution framework for COVID-19 related stress dated August 6, 2020 to the extent having no
overdues has been assessed as an indicator of significant increase in credit risk on a conservative basis
and accordingly such loan accounts have been classified under stage 2 upon their restructuring. These
lc;.ans shall be upgraded to Stage 1 only after they demonstrate good repayment behaviour over a period
of time.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures
that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL 1s recognized and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount. The Group shall classify all advances exceeding 90 days default under this category.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one
or more evenis that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
i. Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
ii. A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
iii. The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider

otherwise;
iv. The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
Loan commitments
When estimating lifetime ECL, for undrawn loan commitments, the Group estimates the expected
portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based
on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Y
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited"”)
Notes forming part of Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period if the facility
has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further explained

in Note 42

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date. The concept of EAD is further explained in Note 42

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the Group would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The concept of LGD is further explained in Note 42.

2.4.5 Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group secks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as equity shares, movable and immovable assets, project cash
flows etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. To the extent possible,
the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other financial assets
which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models. Non-financial collateral
is valued based on data provided by third parties or management judgements.

2.4.6 Write-offs

The Group reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounis subjeéted to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries
against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.7 Determination of fair value

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent
measurement, the Group measures certain categories of financial instruments at fair value on each
balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

1. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the assct or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

To show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the
measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities
with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding
and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement. the Group will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole.

Difference between transaction prive and fair value at initial recognition

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e.
without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only
data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises the difference between
the transaction price and the fair value in statement of profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. on day

one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value
is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Group
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes.
In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in
statement of profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

2.4.8 Expenses
2.4.8.1 Finance costs

Finance costs represents interest expense recognsed by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to
the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities other than Gnancial liabilitics classified as FVTFL.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
i.  As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial liability.
iil. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
iti.  Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective

interest rate, iransaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with
the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
{Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include

fees and commissions payable to advisers, processing fees.
2.4.8.2 Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits including short term compensated absences and statutory bonus/ performance
bonus/incentives payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

Post-employment employee benefits
a) Defined contribution schemes
Retirement/ Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plan

and contributions to the respective funds administered by the Government are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds are due

b) Defined Benefit schemes

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses for
defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they oceur in the statement of profit

and Joss.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yiclds on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past servize cost and gains or losses on
settlements are recognised in the Statement of Prolit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest
cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under
finance cost. Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the
settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognised as expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or
curtailment and when the Group recognises related restru¢turing costs or termination benefits,

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is caloulated by applving the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability. .

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these
liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

2.4.8.3 Share-based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Xander Finance Employee Incentive
Scheme 2016 (the 'Scheme'). The fair value of options granted under the scheme is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in other equity.

10




Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited”)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted at
each reporting period.

2.4.8.4 Other income and expenses

All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.
2.4.8.5 Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. The tax credits are computed
in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based on the expected outcome of

assessments/appeals.
Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax reflect the impact of tming differences between taxable income and accounting income
originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax
is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
In situations where the Group has unabsorhed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax
assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convineing evidence that they can

be realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Group writes-down
the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred
tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future tuxable income will be available.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or Joss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

2.4.9 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising due to the differences in the exchange rate between the
transaction date and the date of settlement of any monetary items are taken to the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

11
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Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of the Balance Sheet and resultant gain/ loss is taken to the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

2.4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on hand and balances
with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for
investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above,

2.4.11 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties,
taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it
increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of
performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repalrs and maintenance costs are expensed off
as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on plant, property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method which is in
line with the estimated useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except for
Leasehold Improvements which are amortised on a straight-line basis over the primary period of the
lease. Leasehold improvements include all expenditure incurred on the leasehold premises that have
future economic benefits.

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

' Particulars Useful life as prescribed by | | Useful life estimated
Schedule II of the Companies by Group
| Aect, 2013
Furniture and fxare | " loyeas Toyeas |
Office equipment ' 5 vears 5 years )
0 omputer B - 3 Srcars ) | 3 years ) 1

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Property plant and
equipment is derecognised on disposal or when 1o future economic¢ benefits are expected from its use.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the
statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with
the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.
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2.4.12 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Group.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for ifs intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recogmtion,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life, The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes m the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits

embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.
Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is récognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement
of Profit and Loss from / up to the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of sofiware are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years unless it has a shorter useful life.

The Group’s intangible assets consist of computer software with definite life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.4.13 Leases (As a lessee)
Identifying a lease

At the inception of the contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contain, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control tl.e use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group assesses whether:
i.  The contract involves the use of an identified asset, this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly.
1. The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughout the period of use, and
ili.  The Group has right to direct the use of the asset.
This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 April 2018.
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Recognition of right of use asset

The Group recognises a right of use asset at the lease commencement date of lease and comprises of
the initial lease liability amount, plus any indirect costs incurred.

Subsequent measurement of right of use asset

The right of use asset is subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term,
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whichever is lesser. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if
any, and adjusted for certain re-measurement of the lease liability.

Recognition of lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present vajue of the lease, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the SBI MCLR rate

Subsequent measurement of lease liability

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability using the incremental
borrowing rate/SBI MCLR rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. Whenever the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right of use asset or is recordéd in statement of profit or loss of the carrymg
amount of the right of use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected by class of underlying asset 1o not recognise right of use assets and lease
ligbilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months and leases for which the underlying

asset is of low value,
2.4.14 Provisions

A provision is recognized when.

(a) the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event,

(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and

(c) areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estumated to settle the present obligation and when the effect
of time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those
cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is
recognised only when it is vittually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

2.4.15 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent Ilablllty but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.
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2.4.16 Earning Per Share

The Group reports basic and diluted eamings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per
share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and atiributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per sharc,: the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.4.17 Contingencies and events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

Events occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet, which provide further evidence of conditions that
existed at the Balance Sheet date or that arose subsequently, are considered up to the date of approval
of accounts by the Board of Directors, where material,

2.4.18 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and [uture periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
or liabilities in future periods.
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(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 3: Cash and cash equivalents

. As at As at
A 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Cash on hand 14,086 7.790
Balances with Banks :
- fixed deposits (with original maturity within 3 months) 79,495,530 20,004,834
- in current accounts 4,870,284 10,926,332
Cleques in hand - -
Tc -al 84,379,900 30,938,956
Note 4: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars S Asat
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Balances with Banks
- fixed deposits (with original maturity greater than 3
months) 71,021,036 1.142,111,516
Total 71,021,036 1,142,111,516
#a BRI
7.5 (s
&
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There are no loan assets measured at FVOCI, FVTPL or designated at FVTPL

Note 5: Loans
< As at As at

Riwtichiary 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Re. eivables under financing activities (at amortised cost) 266,850,318 324,261,177
Inter-Corporate Deposit (ICD) 27,000,000 -
Total (A) - Gross 293,850,318 324,261,177
Less: Provision for expected credit losses 124,148,679 140,584,626
Total (A) - Net 169,701,639 183,676,551
i) Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets 266,850,318 324,261,177
i) Unsecured 27,000,000 .
Total (B) - Gross 203,850,318 324,261,177
Less : Provision for expected credit losses 124,148,679 140,584,626
Total (B) - Net 169,701,639 183,676,551
Loans in India
1) Public Sector - =
ii) Others (to be specified) 293,850,318 324,261,177
Total (C) - Gross 293,850,318 324,261,177
Les3: Provision for expected credit losses 124,148,679 140,584,626
Total (C) - Net 169,701,639 183,676,551
Loans outside India - -
Less: Provision for expected credit losses - -
Total - Net g -
Total 169,701,639 183,676,551
Note:

(<
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Note 6: Investments !

Particul As at As at
articulars 31 Mar 2025 31 Miar 2024

Measured at Cost

i) Investment in Subsidiary -

(1 unquoted equity share (31st March 2024 : Nil) of fuce value of Rs, 105

each of Nixa Investment Advisors Private Limited formerly known as 'XA

Fund Managers Private Limited') 10

Total (A) 10 g

Measured at FVTPL

Investment in Mutual Fund 1.014,603,647

Security Receipts *

i) Investment in CFMARC Trust 1 207,733,200 152,745,000

i1) Investment in Arcil-AST-063-1I Trust - 552,585,000

it1) Investment in Arcil-AST-063-1 Trust . 339,915,000

iv) Investment in ACRE-107-Trust 290,996,292 292,167,909

v) Investment in ACRE-115-Trust = 44,377,113

Less : Provision on investiments 84,204,991 _ 338,805,565

Total (B) 1,429,128,148 1,042,984,457

Measured at Amortised Cost

Investment in Bonds

i) Blessing Properties Pvt Ltd 527,065,646 .

ii) GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited 413,030,541 -

Lese. : Provision on investments 4,385,455 -

Total (C) 935,710,732 -

Investments in India 2.364.838,890 1,042,984,457

Investments outside India - -

Total (A+B+C) 2,364,838.890 1,042,984,457

Total 2.364,838,890 1,042.984,457

estimated cash flows of underlying loans are considered

* Security Receipts represents loans which are transferred to Asset Reconstruction Companies. For determining the fair value,
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Note 7: Other financial assets
As at As at
Farticulars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Security deposits 4,493,047 13,066,032
Other receivables 5,371,017 2,150,073
Total 9,864,064 15,216,105
Note 8: Current tax assets (net)
Particulars Axat At
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
| Ad ance income tax (net of provision for tax) 209.,867.343 199.212,165
Total 209,867,343 199,212,165
Note 9: Deferred tax assets (net)
As at As at
i 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Deferred tax assets
Provision for expected credit losses 31,245,740 35,382,339
Impact of provision for gratuity 1,945,876 2,600,244
Impact of provision for employee stock option plan (ESOP) 862,442 862,442
Impact of provision for leave encashment 501,642 180,079
Lease Liability - 2,667,902
Fair valuation of Security Deposits - 90,087
Fair valuation of Investments and other assets 71,703,307 142,730,646
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for financial reporting 3,764,131 1,620,196
Impact of brought forward losses 8,971,278 -
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair valuation of Security Deposits 14,199 -
Impact of currcnt year losses =
Interest on NPA on loans - 420,003
Deferred lease rental 147 851 -
Total 118,832,366 185,713,932

¥
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(Al amounts are in Indisn Rupees unless othorwive stated)

Nute: to fhe consolidated financinl statements 25 st 31st March 2025

Nate 10: Property, plast and eiquipment .
Paitiuliss Computers Furniture & - | Office Equipment|  Leasehold | Buiidings (leased) Total
Fixtures Improvements )

Al cost or fair valuz at the bepinning of the penod 2517311 | 1,948,132 461,754 25,691,581 109,163 823 141,162,691
Additions 997,567 [11}] 34,336 . 1,031,903
Acquisitions through business combination - . . .
Revaluation adjustment. if any . . . - - .
Disposals 1.368,65G 1,540,571 1,064,808 25,691,581 - 29,665,610
Reclassification fronvio held for sale - = . . = -

At cost or fair value sl tbe and of the period 21.546.228 407.561 431312 - 109,163,883 112,548,984
Accumubnted Depreciation and impairment as 2t the beginning of i

the period ) 2602774 1,363,877 1,376,196 24,407,002 100,743,153 130,455,002
Der ciation for the period 364,632 174358 5.646 8,420,730 £,965.306
Disposals 1,300374 1,239,285 998,846 24,407,002 - 27,945,507
[inpairment/ (reversal) of Impairment . . - - -
Reclassification from/io hicld for sale . - - -

A Inted Dep and img a8 At the end of

the period 1.6A7.032 300,950 352,996 0 109,163 483 111,514,861
Nei Carrying smount 3 at the end of the period 579,196 106,611 48316 {0) ==z 1.034.153
Net Carrying anat 31 Mar 2024 314,537 S§2.255 §5.580 1,284,579 §.420,730 10,657,689
Note 11: Intangible asscts

Particul Suftware Tl

A1 cost, beginning of the period 867,242 67,242

Additions . -

Acquisitions

Fair value adjustinent, if any . Z .

Disposals 133,389 131,389 |

Tuotal Cost 713833 TAMLER

Acteiulated amortisstion and impaimient:

At the beginning of the period 474961 474,961

Amortistion 197.505 197,505,

Disposals 126.720 126,720-

hinpai (reversal) of liay "

Total Amwrtisathon and impairmiot 235,746 545,746
[N¢i Carry Ing amount a5 at the cod of the perind 188,107 I

Net Carrving as at 3] Mar 2024 ALK 392281 |

Y
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Note 12: Other non-financial assets

As at As at
Rarticalars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024

Prepaid expenses 1,761,693 058,065
Asset acquired in satisfaction of loans (held for sale) 153,965,555 153,965,555
Deferred lease rental 587,455 -
Advance against expenses 730,434 733,540 |
GST & service tax input credit available / receivable 30,701,363 48,790,917
Total 187,746,500 204,448,977
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Note 13: Trade payables
T

2028

As at As at
Particulars 21 Mar 2028 31 Mar 2024
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small -
enlerprises
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises 621,298 49,193,474
ond smull enterprises
Toral 621,298 46,193.474

Ageing fur trade payables vutstagdiog as al March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Outstanding for Fullowing Periods From Due Date of Paymeni
Faviioninix Less than 1 year 12 VTS, 2-3yrs. More than 3 yrs. | Fogel |
(i) MSME* - - - = g
(ii) Others 621298 - - 621,298
(ii1) Disputed Dues - MSME® - - . . -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
*MSME us per the Micro. Small and Medium Fntecprises Development Act, 2006
Ageing for trade payables oulstanding as at Mareh 31, 2024 is as follows:-
Qutstanding for Following Periods From Due Date of Payment =
Phrticuiars Less than | vear 1-2 yrs. 2-3 vrs. More than 3 yrs: Yol
(i) MSME* - - - - -
(1) Dthers 39.193.474 - - 39,193,474
[ (iii) Disputed Ducs - MSME® = = - = -
{iv_Jisputed Dues - Others - - - -
*MSME as per the Micro, Small und Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Note 14: Other financial liabilities =
As at Asat
Faigedars 31Mar2025 | 31 Mar 2024
Lease Liability Q 10,600.374
Payable for expentes 3512354 2659 988
Notal 3511554 13,260,362
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Note 15: Current tax liabilities (net)

(Formerly known as "Xander Finanze Private Limited") ;
Notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Fhadepian 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
For taxation 724,674 816,153
Total 724,674 816,153
Note 16: Provisions
As at - Asat
Fartioalars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Provision for employee benefits
- Non Current Liabilities
- Provision for Gratuity 7.183,308 0,823,894
- Provision for Leave Encashment 934,031 =
- Current Liabilities
- Provision for Gratuity 548,241 502,654
- Provision for Leave Encashment 1,059,143 715,509
Total 9,724,723 11,047,057
Nore 17: Other Non-financial liabilities
As at As at
Fartioulars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Statutory dues payable 11,012,237 15,806,337
Total 11,012,237 15,806,337

o~
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Note LA Eqguity share copita)

Terms aad rights attacked to eqoity shares
The Company has anc claxy of equity shares baving a par value of Ry, 10
Eppeoval of the sharcholders in the ensulng Anntial General Meeting Divid

I the cven of liguidation of the Company, the holders of

prepoton 1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

Shures heid by be

Asal Asat
Particulury JIMac2025 [ ) Mer302q

[EQUITY SHARE CAFITAL

Authorised:

19,61.90.000 (31 March 2024 14,81,00.000) equity sharcs of Rs 10 cach 1A1.000.00 e i
—“—————‘————-.____lm,[_______ 141,000,000 1.481.000,000
lsxaed, submcribed nnd fully paid up

Equ’ +shares
(L2335 916 (31 March 2024 11.23.5.916) squcy shares of R 10 cach 123,359,160 1123,159. 160
Total Fquity 1.123.359.160 1,121.389.160
Reconciliation of the sthares £ at the beginning and at the ead of the reporting year

Equlty shures ‘

Fartieulars LMar2s 31-Mar-24

Number of shares Amaont il of sha L

Bulance a3 at begling of the period 112335916 1.12.33.59.160 14,§0.30.216 1.48,0%.02, 160
Add:- Equity shares issued during 1he periad g . L] =
Less:- Equiry shares bought back diiring the periad = = 15,714,300 357,143,000
Dinlar ;= ax ot cod af the perind 11,23,35916 11.33.59,180 112335916) . 1.1333.59,140)

Per shire. Each sharehoider i eligible for anc vale
mduhmﬂuﬂrnﬁwﬂdb:mwhnmm

oqully shares will be eaij

per shwve held. Any dividead proposed by Lhe Board of Direciom is subject 1 the

lled 10 receive remining assetd of the Company, afier distribulion of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in

aod dery shares held by sharcholders hoidi ni n 5% of the a ieshares In the Comps TRy
Farticulary T S
Number of shares nunt Number af shares | - Amount
s Copual Management Pua Lid ((ormerly known & Xander Capital Misagerment Pie LT3 (e Wolig - 11,721,808 1,11,72,18.060] 11,17.21.08 1,11 72.18.060
company, Shores of Rs 10 eneb fully pajd. 3
Tatiiiatiy 3-Maras SLMarzd
Nu el S % holdlog Nurwber of Shares %4 hoiding
Nixa Captal Massgement Ple Lid (Formerly known & Xaoder Capital Mesngement Pie L) the Foliog TIL17.21,806 99,45% 11,17.21,806 93 43%
com; 1y, Shares of Bs. 10 cach fully paid ’
As per ihe record of the Company, including its register of sharcholders / m — -

The O hoas et sesiied shares for considenation sther than cash duri

J interest. the above chareholding represents both Jegal snd benefical ownerahip of !

the perod of five vears imirsdittely precesing the




Niza Fincap Private Limited
(Farmerly kmown s "Xaoder Fhuur.: Private Limlted™)

Notes to the consolidated financial stat a8 at 315t March 2025
(AN are In Indinn Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 19;: Other eqoity

H At As at
i iy 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024

hsm"‘“'? reserve (As required by sevtion 45:1C of the Reserve Bank of Indin Act, 1934) 854,812,231 802.141,501
Sccurities Fremiam accounl 768,138,607 768,138,607
Retained eamings (surplus/deficit in profit & logs account) 84.244,364 (126,438,554)
Other Compreheive Incame 754.381 (2.511.207)
Empinyers Stock Option Plan (ESOP) Resarve 1426739 3,426,739
Capital Redemenion Rescrve 357,143,000 357,143,000
Tow 2.068,519322 1.601,900,086

Note 19.1: Nature and purpose of reserves

Statutary reserve: Stalulory reserve represents approprisltion of retsined carming as per section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank OF India AcL 19234,

Secr Ities prmI.n.m reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issué of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited
purposes such os issuance of banus sheres in sccordance with the provisions of the Campanies Acl, 2013.

Retained earnings! Reiai -" i surplus/ lated earnings of the Cumpany and are available for distribution to shareholders. The
Company reeog any change on sccount of remeasurement of the net defined linbility/(asset) which comprises of sctuaris] galeafionses. in othey
comprehensive income which is considered as part of retained esmings.

C-glr-ll Redemption Reserve: The reserve has been { by the Company on t of buy back of equity shares undertaken by the Company. An amodnt
equivalent to face valuc of the cquity shares bought back las been transferred from Reserves to Capital Redemption Reserve

Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP) Reserve: The share-based payment reserve s ised to recognise the value of equity-seitled share-based payments
provided to omployees, including key manapement personnel, 25 part of their remuneration. :

Note 19.2: Other equlty movement

i Ay at As at
s 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Statutory reserve (As required by section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of lodla Ace, 1934)
Ralance as at the beginning of the period £02.141.501 802.141,501
Additions during the period - Transfer from Surplus from Statement of Profit amd Loss 52.670.730 -
Balance as at the end of the period 854,812.231 §02.141.501
Securlies premium accoannt
Balan-¢ as at the beginning of the period 768.138.607 1,518,138.907
Add: : remium on shares issved during the period - -
Lzss: Adjustment on account of Buy Dack - 392,857,300
Less: Transfer to Capital Redemplion Reserve - 357.143.000
Balanue as at the end of the period 768,138,607 768,138,607 |
Retained earnings (surplos/deficit In profit & loss account)
Balance as at the beginaing of the period {126,438,554}) 163,373,585
| Add: Profit for the period 263,353,648 (289.,812,139)
Less : Appropriations
Transfer (o Stztutory Reserve 52,670,730 F
mvide, d the pu !
- Dividend . S
Balance as al the end of the peried 84.244,364 (126438.554) |
Other Comprehensive Income !
Balance as ot the beginning of the period (2,511,207) 131.682 |.
- Move ine i ;
Actuarial gain/(Joss) on geatuity valuation 1.265.588 (2.642.889) |
Balance as at the end of the period 754.381 2.511.207) | :
Employees Steck Option Plan (ESOP) Rescrve
| Balance as at the beginning of the period 3,426,739 2,421,583
Add: Provision for the period = (4.995.244)]
Balance es at the end of the period 3,426,739 3,426,739 |
Cupitr! Redemplive Reserve
Balan_c as at the beginning of the pericd 357,143,000 357,143,000
Add: Transferred from Secunities Premium x
Balance a al the end of the period 357,143,000 357,143,000
e = 2,068.519.322 1,801,900.686
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Nisa Flacap Private Limited

s.m"'! \nows 81 “Xander Flnancs Private Limitea")
~oles o the }if d 1i clal etuie .
21 31 3181 March 3
(Al amouat are In Indian Rupees uness olberwise stated) -
Note 20: Iaterest income
i For the Year ended For the Year ended
. szl 31 Mar 2025 _ 31 Mar 2024
Ioterest income oo findncial et messured 8l amartived cost
Inlerest Income 94,649,280 3,230,178
Other interest income-unwinding of secunty deponit 414,361 674,231
Interest on NPA i 79.450 |
Lol LRV _ G908 |
Note 21: Other operatiog income
Foribe Year ended For the Year ended
e 34 Mar2028 I Mir204 |
Prepayment Penalty R 2,446,587
Inceme on Security Receipls 9,687,119 13,490,810
Advisory Fees 207,100,000 "
Redemption Premivm 15.472.037 it
Total 252.259,156 15,937,417
Mofe 22: Nel guin on fair value ch Anprs . —
i For the Year ended For the Year ea
Particulars °r3I Mar 2015 1 Mar 2024
Net gain (loss) an Anancial instruments 8t fair valoe through profil or [os
On investirient portolio A
= Mutual Funds :

- Onher ke 14,316,110 9-‘”‘-“&’
F&l;‘\::::hm:m 20212,384 9,776,445
= Unreahs 53,780,042 -

A 73992426 9,776,445
Tatui 73,592 416 9,776,445 |
Sl Mo For the Year ended Far the Year ended
Pacstane 31 Mar 2028 31 Mar 2024
IH2 .44
Lnterest on fixed deposils 41‘2;2.:;2 0.2 ¥ 1
Interest on Inter Corparate Deposit 58 OSI‘JQI 4374978
Other miscell Income g L AL
Total B0.116,269 64657369
Rofe 14: Flaance cost r For the Year ended For the Year ewded
Particulars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024 3
9.2 18,614
Bank charges e 259,653 1,786,477
Interest on leass Lishiliy e
Inlerest op Taxes 268,687 1849872
Tots! .

o~

/.




Nixa Flacap Private Limlred
(Formerly known m1 "Xaoder Flaaoes Private Limited™)
Notes to the 4 i Lal gt an al 1ot Murch 2018
(AD smounts are lo lodiss Repees unlen otherwise itnied)
Note 25: Net low on lair value changrs
For the Yenr ended Far the Year ended
Particulary 1] Mar 2015 3§ Mar 2024
Net paind (loss) en fimancial instrumers ol [air valoe thrdugh profit or loxs
On investment portinlio
- Other items - 350,752323
Fair Valus changes:
= Realised (59,436,141)
- Unrealised ] 310.188,464
Taml = 250,753
Note 26: Impairment of fi lal assets
Pa For the Year snded For the Year endcd
e rtielars 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Impal t om Flasnclal lnst d 81 Amortised cost
Provision for expected credit losses (12,050,491) 56,874,398
Reversal of interest on Mon Perfomming Aset | 668,796 -
68,79 —d
[ Total (10,381.695) 56874338
Note 27: Employee benefit expenses
Particulars For the Year ended Forthe Year ended
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
Salanies and wages 16,997,562 33,688,122 |
Cammibulions o provident and other funds 1,659,068 533,856
Gratuily 2,384,085 1,541,837
Leave encathmenl expenses 1,277,663 {207,719)
Sl welfire eapenses 478375 970,879
Total 52.796.853 36,547,075
Mote 28: Dep ion, amortization aed Impairmest
For the Year egded For the Year ended
P
e 31 Mar2025 31 Mar 2024
Deprecialion of tangible and infangible ssseus 9,162,871 17.510.731
9.162,871 17.510.731
Note 29: Other
; For the Year caded For the Year eaded
Fas 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar2024
Haies and taxes 661,150 723,593
Reof 13,090,558 17,453,858
Electricity 290,729 397,028
Traveling and conveyance 9,692,143 1237332
Communication 380,365 715288
Insurance 1,179813 2R62 562
Office maiorenance 633 857 1,461,923
Legal and professional fee 76,058,839 101,202.332
Lopss on sale of property, plant and equipment 1,654,737 531,681
[Auditors’ remuneration 1,624,145 1,710,775
Corporate socizl responsibility . 4,626,001
Fee and subscription 4 2,141,727
Miscellzneous expenses 7.168.995 2896417
Taral 112.467.645 138,042,737

ﬁ;




Nixs Finesp Privare Limlted
(Formerty known as *Xander Finance Private Limited")
Motes o the fidated fu inl 2521 3ut March 2025

(Al amounts are in lndian Rupees unless otherwise staipd)

Anditors” Rermaneration

For (he Year ended Year ended
Farticiiegy 31 Mar 2025 31at March 2024
As uditors
At foed 1371250 1369275
Limited review . F
Taa audit fees 157,500 171,000
1o other capacity
Certification fees 105399 170,500
Reimbursement of cxpenses E i
1.634.149 1,710.775
Detalls of TSR expenditure:
Parti Foribe Year ended Year ended
b 31 Mar 2025 315t March 2024
) Amaunt required 10 be spont by the Company during ths year = 4,535,738
b) Amount spent during the year 3 4,626,000
1) Construction/acquinition of any asset = -
ii) On oses other thap (i) above 4626001
Total = 4.626,001




Nixs Fincap Private Lindled

(Furoerly knewn as *Xander Finance Private Limlled™)

Notes to the consolidared Tinanc)el statements as ot 3151 March 1025
{(All smounts sre in Indlun Rupees enler otberwise stated)

Note 30: Intome tax

The campanents of income tax expense for the vear caded 3] March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:

Particulan For the Year ended For the Year ended
3 31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024
C w:n[ tax 4 7,980,000 1.971.826
Adjustment in respeet of correnl income tax of prior yenrs : 14.359.206
Defbrete b snlaliag o deipiiation Ko reveval e uigioniy il 85.783.362 (73.741.029)
[Astat b Eharys 73,761.162 {57.409.207)

Reconclilation of the total tax charge:

tax rale for the yesr ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 is, a3 fallows:

The Lax ehirge shown in the sinement of profit and foss differs from the tax charge that wauld apply if all profits had been charged at
¢ Lax rale apy in fodie. A reconcilistion between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 Mar 2028 31 Mar 2024
Accauning profit befre tix 332.116910 {347 222.046)
Statutory meome tix rate 25,17 25.17%
Expeuitd income tix expensc 84,500,000 (87.400,000)
Difference in tax mte des (o
Effert of non-deductible expenses L 1,200,000
Effect of non taxabiz income & =
Gt (11,036.738) 28,790,003
Totx| Tax expense 73,763,161 (57,409.907)
Effective tax rale IR 16.53%
Defer ved tax
The following table shows deferred tax recorded i the balance sheet and chanpes recorded in the (acome tax expense:
Patticulass Deferred Gx assend Deferred tux labitifies Tncome it oci
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-15 14-15 2024-25
Depreciation 3,764,131 - - 2,143,935 -
Lmpairment allowance for financizl assets 31,245,740 = (4,136,599) P
Financial ins!ruments measured at E(R - - - -
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined bene fit plan 1945876 - 443,936 {1.008.304)
Other Provisions 1,364,084 E 321,563 B
Other temporary differsnces 80.674.585 162.050 (64.556.097) -
Tomal 118993416 162,050 (65.783.262) (1.098304)
Particulars Deferrcd tax sssets Deferred mx Habiilties Income steiement 0cCl
31-Mar-24 == 31-Mar-24 2023-24 2023-24
Depreciatian 1.520,196,00 - 2,299,632 -
Impatrment allowance for financial aszes 3582319 - 14,314,149 =
Financial instruments measured at EIR - - (1,549,541) -
Remeasuremnent gain / (loss) on defined benefil plan 2,600,244 - 345,700 B3E. 874
Otlver Provisiuns 1,042,521 - (1,309,482) =
Other temporary differences Il!&s&g_f 410,003 30,640,671 -
Total 186,133,935 410,003 73,741,029 BE8.874

!




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited™)

Notes to the consolidated finaacial statements as at 31st March 2028
(Altamounts are in Indian Rupecs unless otherwise stated)

Not- 31: Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable 1o cquity holders of Company by the weighted averge number

of equity shares outstanding duning the period.

Fli]uted EPS is calculated by divid:::m the net profi: attributable 1o equity holders of Company (afcr adjusting for inlerest an the convertible preference shares and
interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of wx) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted

average number of equity sharcs that would be issued on the conversion of a1t the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended
31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024

Profit atiributable to equity sharcholders (A) Rupees 26,33.53,648 (289,812,119)
Noniinal value of equity share Rs. { Share 10 L
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic carnings per share
Opening Balance of equity shares (B1) Nos 112335916 14,80,50,216
Issued during the year (B2) Nos = 2
Buy back of shares during the period (B3) Nos 0 3,57.14 300
Weighted average no. of equity shares issued during the period (B4) Nos - =
Weighted average no. of equity shares bought back during the period (BS) - 32,738,108
Tota! weighted no. of equity shares for basic EPS (B) = (B1+B4-BS) Nas 11,23,35.916 11,53,12,108
Basic EPS (A/B) | Rs. / Share 234 (2.51)]
Totl weighted no. of equity shares for diluted EPS (C) Mo 11,23,35916 11.53.12,108
Diluted EPS (A/C) Rs. / Share 2.34 (2.51)




Nixa Fincap Private Limlted

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited™)

Notes la the consolidated financial statements as at 315t March 2025
(All amounts are In Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 32: Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
Th: Parent Company provides share-based employee benefits to the employees of the Company. During the year en
employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

The Board of Directors approved the Xander Finance Employee Incentive Scheme 2016 (the
employees and directors of the Company. According to the Scheme, the employees sclected by the A
Board of Directors of the Company) from time to time will be entitled to stock units, subject to satis
viz., continuing employment of at least 2 years. The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the
3 years as per the Scheme. However, the Company estimates that based on current market conditions the stoe
discretion of the management and approvals of the Board to this regard. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

ded March 31, 2025, an

'Scheme') for issue of stock units to the key
drministrator of the Scheme (as appointed by
faction of the prescribed vesting canditions,
exercise period) of options granted is
k units could be cxercised basis the

Other relevant terms of the grant are as follows Terms

Vesting penod 3 years
Exercise period
Expected life § years
Exercise price Nil

After completion of the vesting period, currently estimated at 5 years

The details of the Scheme are summarized below:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

il i i weiih i i

Darz of grant = =
Date of Board / Nomination & Remuncration committee approval - =
Number of Options granted 2 -

Particulars 31-Mar-25

31-Mar-24

Average Number of Average
exercise price options exercise price

Number of
options

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 21,00 1,63,178 39.16
Granted during the year - “ i
Farfeited during the year % = -
Exercised during the year - = 21.00
Expired during the year 3 = =
Qutstanding at the end of the year 21.00 1,63,178 21.00

Exeicisable at the end of the year = = -

2,15,056

51,878.00

1,63,178

4




Nixa Finecap Privatc Limitcd
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless atherwise stated)

Note 33: Transfer of financial assets

There has not been any transfer of financial assets during the current reporting year and previous year. The Group
had transferred few accounts in the past financial years to an Asset Reconstruction Group (ARC) on a without
recourse basis. These loans were secured and were classified as credit impaired on the date of assignment. The
Group received the entire purchase consideration in cash from the ARC and has subscribed to the Security
Receipts to the extent of 85%.

In view of the above, the Group has substantially retained all the risks and rewards of the ownership to the extem
0f 85% of the loans sold to the ARC and thereby does not meet the derecognition criteria as set out in Ind AS 109,
However for balance 15% of the loans transferred against cash, derecognition criteria as set out in Ind AS 109 has|
been met.

Since the loans and advances have been transferred and the new asset (in the form of Security Receipts) having
substantially different characteristics have been acquired, the Group has derecognised the loans and recognised the
modified assets i.e. Security Receipts under "Investments".

The modified asset i.e. Security Receipts are classified at "Fair Value Through Profit & Loss" (FVTPL) by the
Group as the contractual cash flows of the Security Receipts do not represent for Solely for Principal and Interest
(SPPI) on amount outstanding under the basic lending arrangement.

The Group has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Group continues to have
continuing involvement.

=2




Nixa Fincap Privare Limited

(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Privale Limited")

Notes to the consolidated Mnancial statements as 3t 315t March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwlic stated)

Note 34: Retirement benefit plan

Defined contribution plan
In accordance with the Indisn regula:in!u. employees of the Group ure entitled to receive benefils under the provident fimd, a defined contribution plan, in which,
\l:I;‘l.j; :h: :r:gluyu: and tha Gmudp mﬂﬂngbm: monthly at & determined rare. These contributions are made to a recognised provident fund. The employee contributes|

of his/her basic salary an Toup contributes an equal a A ok Rs.5.53,856) for Provident Fund
contribution in the Statemnent of Profit and Less. €qual amount. The Group recognised Rs.16,59,066 (Previous year

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a non-contribulory unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan ; f service gets 8 gratul
¥ plan, under which cvery employee who has compicted at Jeast five years of SeTVice & gratuiry|
on departure at 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed yearof il L P !

Bascd on Ind AS |9 *Emplayee Benefits" notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act 2013, read together with paragrph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rulcs,
2014 and the Companics (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016, the following disclosures have been made as required by the standard:

| A. ..mount recognised in the balance sheet 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Present value of defined benefit obligation 7,731,549 10,331,548
Fair value of plan assets - -
Assct/{liability) recognized in the balance sheet 71,931.549 10,331,548
B. Change in projected bencfit obligation 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Opening defined benefit obligation 10,331,548 5426216
Currenl service cost 1,043,784 1,158,811
Inte.est cost 720,109 383,027
Past Service Cost & g
Benefits paid - (168,268.00)
Acraarial loss / (gain) on obligation (4,363,852) 3,531,762
Closing defined benefit obligation 7.731.549 1,528,837
C. Change in plan assets 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
DOpering fair value of plan assets = =
Return on plan asscls " -
Actuarial gain/(loss) = e
Bencfits paid = -
Employer direct benefit paymenlts =2 168,268
Benefit payments from employer - (168,268)
| Closing fair value of plan assets - =
D. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Curent service cosl 1,043,784 1,158,811
Interest cost on benefil obligation 720,109 383,027
Past Service Cost - -
Expenses recognised in the st t of profit and loss 1,763,893 1,541,838




[Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Xander Finance Private Limited™)

Notes to the consolldated financlal statements s ot 315¢ March 2025
{All amounts are ln [ndian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

E. Amount recognised In other comprehensive income 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Actuanal (pains)/losses Sl
- Effect of changes in demographic assumptions = e
- Effect of changes in financial assumptions (38,70,069) 3,819,704
- Effect of experience adjustments (4,93,823) (2,87,942)
Total remeasurements included in other comprehentive income (4,363.892) 3,531.762
F. Expected cash flows for following year 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Expected contributions / Additianal Provision Nex: Year 1,043,784 1,158,811
Expected total benefit payments
Year | 585,082 537,689
Year2 579,243 556,286
Year 3 601,322 575,562
Yeard 595,408 616,963
Year5 592,376 641,711
[Next 5 years 3,098,153 3,569,101
G. A plions used 3]-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Discount mate 6.72% 6.97%
Attrition rate 10% 10%
|Expected rate of return on asscis NA NA
H. Sensitivity Analysls 31-Mar-25 Srptar A

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 7,110,448 8,442,623 9,304,115 11,534,478
Salary increase rale (1% movement) 8,383,761 7,148,965 11,397,724 9,394,282
Attrition rate (1% movement) 7.574.631 7,907,058 9,829.641 10,909,08)




LET'652'S76'2 SRR'EI'r6L — — | E9ERZTI'IEN'Z I8r'RLR'IGL'E E10'019'€99°1. 6SB'L92'BT5'1 < FIN
EREETI'D6 Lr0'sk9'01 SEE'BLY'6L 99b'565'5T EI0'THR'E ELH'ESL'OI SuligEn [moL
LEE'908'S] - 9LE'908'S 1 LETTI0N] . LETEIONL SINIIQRI [R2UETL-uoU JIQ
LSO'LEO'1L #68'828'6 91121 ETLYTL'S 6EE'LIL'S ¥8€'L09'l sunisiaalg
£51'918 €51'918 - PLY'VEL $LO'YTL = (1au) sanyiqer| xel Jatmy)
SaLIIqE] [B13UTLY)-UON
79C09C'el s 798'09z'e1 pSS'ZISE - PSSTISE SOMIIGE]] [BfoUeuL SO
sasudmua
fews put sasudmiua 0101 UBY) 150
PLY'EGI'6Y v bLY'E61 s 86T°129 - 86Z°179 SIpaLs Jo sanp Fuipueisyno [eio3 (1)
se|qeded apeij
SopInqe] [euBuLg
sapnqer]
0E9'ZRE'SI0'E £E6'SLL'F08 L69'909°01T°T BI6'ELYLITE 979'TSH'ILY' ZECTTO'SPS'] sjassu [Eyo ],
LLE'BFH'HOT = LLE'SIH'P0T 00S'9¥L'(81 $89°0LY SIR'SLT'LE] SI255E [RJOUBUL) UOU 310
187°T6E 1BZT6E - LO1'881 LO1'881 - siasse 2qiBueInT.PYIO
689'£89'D1 689°£89°01 . ECI'bE0'T AR = tudwidinbs pue jued *Auadauy
TEG'EIL'SRI TEG'CIL'SI = 99¢'ZER'R1 | 99¢'7£8'811 - (12u) 12858 X€) Pataja)
§91'ZI1Z'661 So1'T1Z'661 - EPE°L98°60T £FE'L98'60T g (1ou) siasse ¥e} uaun)
51985y JEJIUBUJ-UON
01'912'61 LLI'89L 8T6'Lip'vl #90'008'6 0£1'898'1 PE6'SHE'L s)asse [poueuly JayI0
LSP'v86'THO'] 105'6L2°61¢ OS6'YOL"ETS 068'8E8°F9€'C ELT06K'L61'T LYI'RPE'LOT] SDLISAAU]
155'9£9'€81 165'0L9'€8( - 6E9°10L'691 6£9'10L'ZP1 000'000°LT suzoT]
oIS 111'zZPI1 9€9'5H0S 088'S90"LELT 9E0'120'1L = 9£0°120"1L s1ua[eAINDa Yses pue ysEo Uey) JOyI0 JURRG Nueg
956°8£6°0F " 956'8£6°0€ 006'6LE'E8 2 006°'6LE'V8 swojeAmb2 yses pue yse)
§)356% |etaunu)
- Rlassy
1oL, SO 7] 33)V SUFUOL 7] UIIATA\ IEI0L syjuow 71 By SYIUOW 7T UJITAY
PT-IEN-TE STIEN-IE s1Enonasg

‘SuoesLaue uodnoa [ergoRRU0d Y3 13933l 1Gap panss] '(
Y1 sasn Aueduror) a1 ‘s1aw0isna 0] SASUBAPE Ut SUE0| o} pIeBal YiLAy PIIISS 10 PRLIAGD 2q o} pejoad

UIT) 2121 5319901 pajoadxg a1 Sunewnsa 1oy pesn se JInojaeyaq juawikedal paaadss jo siseq awes
X2 318 A3y uaym o) Suipiosse paskieur SSULIQET] pUB S}OSSE JO SISA[EUR UB SMOYS MO[3q a|qe) 1L

(pajuys astavIa10 ssaqun saadny UEIPU] UT 23 SjUNOWE [)y)
ST0T YT 5] € 18 S¥ 5JUDIUIIN)S [BISUELY) PIJTPHOSIUOI 1] 0} $3j0N
(w P NEALL 23uBUL] 13pury,, v umouy Ajrawio.)

SIRIqE] pue 5)assE JO ssAjeue ey (SE 0N

PRNWYT NvALg deaupg ex|N




Nixa Fincap Privare Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Flaznee Privats Limited)

Nates ta the Udated Iul state; nY a1 31st March 2025
(All smounts sre In Indisn Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 36: Contingeat linbilities, comm|traents

{A) Contingent Liabilities

As gt
Particulacs 31 Mar 20258
Contingent Lishilines
- Income tax marter [n dispure 25,156,150
- Service tax matter in dispute 2437200
- GST maner in disp -
27,593,350 15,704,558
The Company docs nol expect any signilicant labililics 1o materialise

(B} Commitments

- Estimated nmount of contracts (net of advance) remaining w be exe d on capital and not pravided for as 81 31 March 2025 is Rs. NIl (31 March 2024: Ra. Nil).
- Other commilments pertsining o undrawn committed credits s ag 3| March 2025 {s Rs. Nil (3] March, 2024 : Ra. Nil)




Nixa Fincap Private Limired

(Formerly known a3 " Xander Financa Private Limited")

Notes to the consolidated financlal statements as nt 3180 March 2025
(All amonnts are in Indisn Rupees unless olherwise stated)

Note 37: Related party disclosures
a) List of related parties

Holding Company

Company where the directors have significant influence
Xander Advisors (India) Private Limited
VR Dakshin Private Limited

sublld.llﬂf Cornp any
Balestier Ventures Private Limited (formerly known as Yuj Home Finance Private Limited)

Key managerial personnel during the year:

Mr. Rohan Sikri, Chairman and Director

Mr Rajesh Jogi, Non Execulive Director

M.. Torig Chinoy, Non Executive Director

Mr. Varum Gopinath, Excoutive D (till May 31, 2023)

Ms. Pumnima Paliwal, Company Secretary (w.e.f December 01, 2022 i) April 03, 2023)
Ms. Mansi Gendhi. Company Secrctary (w.e.E April 26, 2021) ¥

b) Transactlons with related parties

Nixa Capital Management Pie Limited, Singapore (the Holding Company, farmerly known as "Xander Copital Managemeni Pte Limited®)

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Holding company

By back of equiry shares E 745.900260
Subsidiacy Company

Receipt of dividend income o -
Company where the directars have significant inluence

Xander Advisors (India) Privare Limited

Caost incurred lowards reiml tofrent exp (6,733} {127,440)
Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personne) during the year*

Mr. Roban Sikrl 3

Buy back of equity shares - 1.92927]

Mr. Rajesh Jogi

- £ .ing fees 23,00,000 20,00,000
- Consultancy Fees 300,000 5,00,000
M. Tarig Chinoy

- Consultancy Fees 9,380,000 12,280,000
Mr.Varun Gopinath

- Salaries & wapes - 21,13,U86
- Post employment benefits - 3,600
M. Purnima Paliwal
- Salaries & wages - 10,534.00
- Post emplaymenl benefils - 300.00
Ms. Mansi Gandhi
- Salaries & wages 563,400 479,520.00
- Fost employment benefits 21,600 19.980.00

identified and heoce not included above,

¢) Balance with related partics

+ Provision for gratwity and leave encashment is made for the Company 88 & whole and the amounts periaining 1o the key managerial personnel is not specifically

VR Dzkshin Private Limited

T 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
[Cosupany where the directors have significant influence 35,560
Xander Advisars (India) Private Limiled 22239 :




Nixa Fincap Private Limited

(Formerly known as ""Xander Finance Private Limited")

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 38: Capital

Cupital Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capita] management policy are to ensure that the Group corrfplies with
extemally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structurc.. the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.
However, they are under constant review by the Board.

Note 39: Events after reporting date =
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.




[Nix:. Fincap Privafe Lumited

(Formerly known a3 " Xonder Finance Private Limited")
Notes to the consolidated financial statements ny at 319¢ March 2025
(An 13 are in Indlan Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 40! Lenses

Company as a Lesser

The Farent Company hsd lensed premises fors period of 5 years which had been recognised as o "Right 1o Use® Asset The suid lease expired during the yeoran
Scplember 30, 2025

Set out below are the cemrying amounts of right-to-use assels recognised and the (S distig e perod:
Particulars Buildings (lensed) Total

Asal March 31, 2024 8,420,730 8,420,730

Addition - -
Depreciation 8,420,710 ¥,420,710

As ot March 1), 2025 (0 (0}

Set out below gre the camrying amounts of lcase lisbilities and the mavemenls during the period:

As at March 31, Asat March 31,

Particulars 2025 2024
Opening Balance 10,600,374 30,066,299
Addition - -
Accretion of mieres: 254,633 1, TR6.ATT
Payments 10,860,028 21232.402
Closing Balance 0 10,600,374

The Maturity snalysis of leasc liabilities is as under:

As at March 1, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars After 12 Aflter 12
Within 12 t 1
ith months kil Total Within 12 months roriile Total
Lease Lisbililies - = 5 10,600,374 - 10600374
The following are the recognised in gtat of profit or |oss:
As at March 31, As at March 37,
Particulars 2025 2024
Depreciation exy of Aght-of-use assels $,420,730 16,841,457
I cxpenic on lease liabilities 259,655 1,786,477
Taotal recopnised in profit or loss 8,680.3R5 18,627,934

/':‘_""‘-- -
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[NIin Fincap Privale Limiied |
{Formuarly knawa a8 "Xander Finance Privote Limiisd™) |
Notes (o (he fidated fi 1] a0 At 3t March 2018 |
{All meounts are in lndian Rupees unlen olherwise stated) |
41.8 Sensiilylty of fair value messurements 1o changes la onebservable murket duty ‘
Ihe gumtitative mfarmation atotn the sicnifcnm unoberyvable inputs wsed in leve! § far valus peessuresents i summarnmed below |
A1-Alar-14
Al-Mar-18 7
Unlsvourable v “‘;:o."“’h |
- Favourable ch changes Favourshle changry thanges I
Sensinily 1o i sigruficant v Iopewsi & underlying cashMawg |
= increame by 25% 412,561 830 = 4025740138 ¥
- deermase In 21% = (12 56 LAT0 - (02524018 \
416 Fair value of financlal Insiruments nof meagured af fair valae ‘
Sel out below s 8 comparaon, by class, of the camyng smounts snd fair vilues of ihe Ce, . e the fimanciol statements This table does not inchade the fur vilasy
of nen financial asses snd non-Snsnclal lintalitics mpany's fnantiel instrumenits (hat are oot camed a1 fir value in
31-Mar-25 Fair Vahie _}
Notional smounl Lavel | lLeyel-2 Leveld Jeul |
Tinancial esety; l
Cash and cash equivalents - 84,177,500
. A 4.379 500 ¥
Bank balance other (han carh and cash equivalents S ht e i 2 . 71021036 |
i 160,701,630 3 - 169.701,639 169,701,619
Investmenis ')35:71.0:14! 5 = 935.710,742 935,710,742
(Cihet Fraiacit psacts 9.864.064 9,864 064 - ity 9,844 064
Totsl iinuncisl sty 1,370 677381 169,265,001 - 1.105.412381 1.270.67T7.342
Financial Labilitles: |
Trad. ayables e - 521291
. 621,293 621,254 -
Olber Financial Lablitics 1.512.554 1512554 = = 3512554
LULREILEL I D 1,103,852 413352 - - LIIRRST |
OF bularce shest ifcms . ; .-
Other commaments - - N z =
Tolal off-balance sheet [fems - — = = ﬂ
Ji-Mar-24 Fair Valoe |
Sationsl smoun Leves) I evel2 Leveld Tota)
Finar=ia) sueets:
Cash and cash equivaieats
30,938,956 30,938,956 - - 30.938.956
3:;!:1-1“0% than caoh and cash equivalents 1142,0 11,516 1142,111,516 . - 1,142,111.516
" 183,676,55 | - 183,676,551 - 183676551
R Lol 15.216,108 15:216.108 : 2 15.216.105 |
| — e 1371.943,12% 1IRAIS65TH 1AL4T6.551 - 1371043128
Fimancia) Sabilities: . |
Tle Emates 49,193,474 49,193.474 % 5 49,193,474
[Tatsl Enancia) e 13260362 13260362 - - 13.260.352 |
6TA51835 BIAR0E35 - - B 451838 |
Off balance theet jrems . |
Other commnmenis v - - - -
Total off-balmace shesi items - = = = 1
= - s - = |
41.7 Valustion methodologies of Mmancial instruments not measured at falr value {
Helow wre the methodalogics and plions wed 1o d fr values for the whove Financial instraments Which are nat recorded and mezsured ot far value § 3 Thesa ey,
2 5 ' aur in the C s R I fair v
 atulated 3 hadol - n .
ware « aculsted for disclosure purposcs oaly, The below gies and 7 reinte only 10 the instruments in the 2bove tabizs and, as such, may dilfer from Ihe leche and P plained above
Flaancial assets and Uabilitjes
For finincial assets nnd financial Labiliiics thet bave o sbon term maturity (less than twelve months), the carryiry e ;i irment resso
: N amounis. which are pet of impairment, are s nable approsdunalion of they G val
nclude cash and balances, tade recrivables, balances other than cash 4nd cesh equival i a s ; n of thew fayr value. Such pstiwments
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Nixa Fincap Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Xander Finance Private Limitea™)
Notes {o the consolidated financlal statements as at 3
1
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise n::::). reh AN

Credit risk exposurc analysis
Particulars As at March 31 2025
Per portfolio Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans
Investments - & 266,850,318 266,850,318
940,096,187 - - 940,096,187
Break up into:
Per sector
g?‘ ":’::’k:“““ P“‘rtg‘;}“’ 525,871,695 3 266,850.318 792,722,013
rpo an po 1o 414,224,492 = ¥ 414,224,492
Per region
Ml: - i 525,871,695 a - 525,871,695
Ul'l:?lt - : 12,152,460 12,152,460
DEE 414,224 492 ‘ 254,697.858 668,922,350
To 940,096,187 - 266850318 1.206,946.505
Particul As at March 31 2024
Particulars
—— Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Per portfolio = BEZS e
Loans a : 324261,177 324,261,177
Break up into:
Per sector
Real estate loan portfolio 2 = 124261,177 324,261,177
Corporate loan portfolio 5 - - -
Per region
Karnataka = 3 12,152,460 12,152,460
Delhi/NCR - - 312,108,717 312,108,717
Tolal - - 324,261,177 324,261,177

%
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Nixs Fineap Privwte Lamiing S ———
(Farmerty kaawn az *Xander Finnnca Privets Limited™)
Nates ta the Mmmncia up ml 316t Mareh 2075

Al &rounts sre i Indlan Rupees unfre siherwlm finted)
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ety 1n to erwure, =8 oy o5 powslble, that it will heve su B Lquidity m mem 1y ﬂnbfuuu-:in:;:n?::ﬂa'hﬁrmlmm diticrs, withoud Incurrng e et o h:rﬂ:::o'?‘
reputation Giroup hay h#mmkﬂ{hbllﬁ?mmlmnﬂlﬂ{&mwﬁﬂnﬂhunlwmlmbmkhhﬂhdmwm’-ﬂ an—il'“:"'a? nd e “hul'
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4241 Liguidity ratios

Adwances 1o borrowings ratio

[ SiMards | I Mar3q

Yarend - -
Muzimum during e fast 12 menfhs . 3

Minimum during the lest | 2 months - P

-l\vaﬂurin!Ihehu 11 manths 3 .
4142, Analysis of i Ushillties by . i

The table b the 4 VPSR e Cimicl Mkl vt stav NE uns g o i 4 i i sl the repomiing date

Maturily pattern of HabMiles ws st March 3}, 2025:

i . i@ | Overlyesefiop (OverSymesdoup| o o400, Total

Particulars Ondemand | Lexs than 3 manmal 0':"’:'“'-“‘ Over § mon 5 S nre
-.:—-———-—1""""';'““"" e = 139 |

rade pasable - = e - > = —r—'—lﬂl-’l (7]
ther fimencial habilities = LALLM [IELFEL = .,.‘E-—n 151
[Total undis santed fwmwcia] Babiiiies - R0 T 5 r= e - AL
10081 undiseaan red fnsucial Bubillues
Maturity patrern of babilives ay at March 11, 2024:

&
Particutsry Ondemand | Lews ihwn 3 monits D\'trJ;nuluM& Over 6 months & | Over 1)1-1: L o"-::;::'n " OversSyean Total
= —uptolyeayr | (ol yrsrs

Financini Limblkies = 29197878 |
 [rade pavables. . 29.191474 = 1 : - . 11350, 33
Other Ginaneis] labuins - 5513301 6737, 1A1 - = - - EIASLAE
Tatal ondbcounted fmamwsal fahifiies = 55706675 6747141 = = -
[Total ondbcymmted (il fiahifties
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Mz Fincap Private Limiied
(Formerl> knows a3 "Xander Finsece Private Limited")
Naoles lo the Ddafed fimanclal aral Jist Marvh 2025

(Al amwounts are bn Indian Repess onieo atherwise siafed)

Nate 43; Esrnlngs sud sxpendibure In forcign currency {on accrual buids) )
During the year, the Group ks ingurred foreign currency expenditure of R 7,27,320 (Previous yor RAT18.199). The Company did not have any forcign achange mumings

Note 44: Net dividend ed gn ruchs

Vear of evwiitiapes (rudvdea) March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Ferie Rk heetiees TApI 2024wl | 1 Apal 200 i3l

March 2025 March 2024

Nuinber of non-resdent shareholdes x S
Number of equirty share beld on which dividend was due c -
Amount remittad {ln USD) = &
Amount remiited fin NR) = -

Mole 45; Segmenl infarmation "
The Company i pimasily engaged in the business of financing and accodingly ihere are o separuie reportabic scpments 2s per Ind AS 108 douling with Operating segment

Nele dé: Dues puyable to Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises
There are no amounts that nesd 1o be disclosed in accardante with the Micro Small and Medium Enferprise Developmen Act, 2106 (the "MSMED ) pertaining 10 mieso oe small enterprises, 22 no supplier has
intimated the Company about ils atanis a8 miro o Small enicrprises o its regl with (he apprapri hority under MEMED
emlars Asar Asal
i T 0 March 31,2024
Fr_in:iw il thieres] ampunl (ETRING Unpaid : -
fnterest doe theyoon romining unosid . »
Note 47: Addilonal Disclosurs ns requlred by parsgraph 1 of the Genernl Instructions fare ton of P W 4 1o Schedude 111 to e Companies Act, 2013
Nrt Asels (Le. tolal assets min
m:'| Dabilities) " Share in Prof Share in sther comprehensive iocame Share In tola] comprehensive income
Name of e entlte n the Cronp | Asn % ol Ameunt Asa%ol | Amount Ainveol Amouat At of tafl Amaant
conzolidated cansolidated comprehenaive Incame camprehensive Income
nel eEsety Len
Parest Cll_l!El‘! —
Mina Fncap Privite Limlled 9 N1% A NRSRILAYT | on iy T 00 268 588 IR 742.498 471 |
Subsidiary Co -
Balesier Vientures Provate Limitod 0 9% 31555133 9mi% 200763 T 0% F A% 23,130,743
TN, 00% I217,073 968 | 100.00% 163,35 648 100.00%, yoassa|  wam0vn | 266619036
Nelr 43:
benelits received Presideniial assent in Seplomber 2020, The Code has b publiahed fn the;

The Code on Social Securiry, 2020 ('Code’) relating ta enployes benelits during empioy e pos-employ
Garenie of Indiz However, the date on which ihe Code will coma info effect bas mol been notified and the final rules/intarpresation have not yet been issuad The Group will assess the impace of (he Code when i

comes o elfect and will record any related fmpact in ihe period ive Code becomes effective

Note 49: Lot or advances to related partics -
[The Sroup has nox granted loans or ad I the nat [loans to p Directors, KMPsz andl the related partics (A5 dafinsd under the Companias Act, 2013}, eitber severally or jointly with wy other

et 50; Capital Worlk-in Progress (CWIF)
The Group doss not have any Capital-Wark-in Progress (CWIPL

Nuie 512 Intangible amsets wider develapment
The Group docs nol bave any intangible azsers under developrent.

Note 52: Detalls of Denaml Property bield
e Giroup does ot bold any beosa prapesty under the Benami Tramactions (Prohivitioa) Act, 1988 (45 of 1948) and rules made therennder,

Note 53: Wilful Defsulter
The Groop o nol declarad 8 willlil defaulier by any bank o firancial instinirion or other lender

Naote 54: Retatlonship with Struck afT Compunics ) : -
The Group docs nat have any iraesactions with the companics siruck ofT undey section 24¥ of Cormpanics Acl, 2013 ur section $60 of Companics A, 1956

Nofr 55: Compllance with number of layers af companies : 4 N =
The Group has complid with the aumbar of Inyers prascribed wnder clause {§7) of kection 2 of the Act read wilh Compantes (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 201 7.

Note 56; Uillisation of Barrewed funds and share premiwn : ) ;
The Group has met advanced @ loancd o invested funds [eilher borrowsd funds or sharm pramium tr any ather sources oc kind of funds) to any ot § o enfitylies), including fureign enities

Iniormethiares)

N i oy
(v OF: Foevitim. your. Tguee) i, where pecessry 10 canfirm 16 the current yeae's classification.

Figures for te previous yoar have been regrouped, 1 d of
For € 1.5 SANDS & ASSOCIATES ol o

ICAI Firm's Rigirtrailon rimbre 0109128
c:nm{n} Atcountants TN
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